Yauth Charities of Southerm Nevada

Big Brother»/Big Sisters of Southern Nevada (past President)
Boys & InGci:!s Chub of Southem Nevada

HELP

Nevada Assoctation for the Hendicapped

Mispah Heuse

Nevada Network Against Domestic Viclence
Fratenal Order of the Desert Big Hom Sheep -
Nevada Boys & Gitls Club of Henderson, Nevada

Neveda State Board of Psychological Examiners
First Term:; December 14, 1592 1o fune 30, 1995
Second Term: July 1, 1955 to June 38, 2000
President of Board: July 1, 1998 1o June 30, 2000

MEDIA AFPEARANCES;

Interviews for local television newscasts
Interviews on local radie shows

HONORS AND AWARDS:

Congressional Recognition - Hon. Jon C. Porter (U.8. Congresaman) - Recognition as one of the
ungma]] fﬁund?;lnf ig B}z&uﬂm g.uﬂi &hmﬁufﬁﬂw;m (11/65/05) '3} o
Paychologist of the Year, Novada State olopi fsociation (200 :
Ouistanding

Service Award - State of Nevada Bonrd of Psycholufml Examiners {1992-2000)
Qutstanding Service Award - Board of Directors, Boys & Girls Clu of Henderson, Nevada 2004
Outstanding Service Award - Board of Directors, Boys & Girls Club of Southern Nevade {1992)
Dutsﬁgjng Service Awand - Board of Directors, Big Brothers/Bip Sisters of Southern Nevada
(1978/1983) - =

Track Coach of the Year - Prep League in Los Angeles, California (1968)

Quistanding Student Legistator - Loyola University of Los Angeles, Califomia (1965)

197] - Present Presentation of numergus in.service training sessions for govermmental
agencicy/private businesses on a verety of psychological issues ' '

1976 Youth in Trouble Conference: The Adolescent With Leaming Disabilities, Las Vegas, -
Nevada November 4-6, 1976 i
Presentation: "The Agencics Speak™ _

1977 Third Annval Western Regional Conference: “Humanistic Approaches in Behavior
Modification” Las Vegas, Nevads March 10-12, 1977
Chairpersan: Homework in Counseling & Pgychotherapy: The Use of Systematic Plarned
Assignments to Promote Transfer and Enhance Efficiency - =,

1978 APGA Conventien - Washingtan, D.C., March 20-24, 1978 “The Behavioral Accountability

Pm "

1979 AP(%A Convention - Les Vegas, Nevada April 2-5, 1879 -
“The Behavioral Assessment Model: Counselor sned Client Accountability Before the Fact™
“An Analysis of California Psychological Inventory Factors in Differentiating and Predicting
Between Status Offenders and Juveniie Delinquents™ ' RS

Curriculum Vise
Louiz F. Mortillaro, Ph.D.
Page {1

Docket 69036 Document 2015-36443



1999 CCBA Family Law Seminar
New Approach: Child Custody Evaluations and Alternative Solutions
~ February §, 1999
1998 Nevada State Psychological Association Annual Conference Facilitator: Ethical Issues in
Clinical Practice, May ﬁ. 1959
2003 17" Annusl Low Back Pain Conference, Las Vegas, Nevada
Fune 27-28, 2003
Program Title: Psychological Testing: Shart & Long Varsion
2006 GState Bar of Nevada | 7" Annual Family Law Conference
Program Title: Child Custody: A Local Perspective
Served a3 a presenter/pane] discussant
March 17, 2006, Ely, Nevada
Nevada Rehabilitation Cepter’s Continuation Fducation Class
Las Vegas, Nevada, April 20, 2006
Program Title; Psychological Injuries Due to Auto Accidents
LS. Distnict Court - District of Nevada 2007 District Conference
Program Title: Anger Management to Reduce Stress & Avoid Ethical Problemis
Served as guest speaker May 3, 2007, Las Vegas, Nevada
The Naticna) Diverce Skitls Institute - 2007 .
Frogsam: The Role of The Child Custody Evaluation, Common Diagnestic Tools Used and
How Their Function is Camied Out .
Served as guest speaker, Scptember 10, 2007, Las Vegas, Nevads,

Curriculum Vitse
Louis ¥, Moartitlaro, Fh.D.
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001
ALY LA F1Ry, LD, G2l
lsz': Fﬂﬁgaﬁsmg ggﬁ?‘E??:gBLVD i
IN ; .
LAS VYEGAS, NV 89104
Phone: (707} 3869113 St esom
702) 386-9114
P%E% nalnﬂaﬁmﬂ .com
Attnrney or Brian e
DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
STATE OF NEVADA, t CASE NO: C250630
Plaintiff, DEPT NO. XVII
va. DATE; .
BRIAN K. O'KEEFE, TIME:  woe
:‘%ﬂ Ralion
Defendant.

| RS AR

NOTICE OF MOTION AND MOTION BY DEFENDANT O’KREEFE TO
SUFPRESS HIB STATEMENTS TO POLICE, OR, ALTERNATIVELY, TO
PRECLUDE THE ETATE FROM INTRODUCING PORTIONS OF HIS
INTERROGATION

COMESE NOW Defendant, Brian X. (’Keele, by and through his attomey,

Patricia Palm of Palm Law Firm, Ltd., and hereby moves this Honorable Cou
for an order suppressing O’Keefe’s statements to police during custodi
gquestioning on the bases of Miranda wviolation and unknowingly and
inveluntarily waiver of Miranda rights. [n the event that the Court is no
inclined to grent suppression of OKeefe's statements during the mcﬂrdecj
interrogation by homicide detectives, O'Keefe seeks a ruling precluding the
State from introducing portions of the interrogation which are unfairly
prejudicial.

This Motion is made and based upon the record in this case, including
the papers and pleadings on file herein, the Constitutions of the United States

FILED :
AUG 02 2040

- $01152
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and the State of Nevada, the points and authorities set forth below, and any
argument of counsel at the time of the hearing on this Motion.
Dated this 2nd day of August, 2010.

tricia Pelm, Bar No. 6009
1212 Casino Center Blvd.
Las Vegas, NV 82104
Phone: {702) 386-2113
Fax: (702} 386-9114
Attorney for Defendant O Keefe

RNOTICE OF MOTION

TO: STATE OF NEVADA, Plaindf; and
TO: DAVID ROGER, District Attorney, Attorney for Plaintiff

YOU WILL PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the undersigned will bring on the
above and foregoing NOTICE OF MOTICON AND MOTION BY DEFENDANT
O’'HEEFE TO SUPPRESS HIS BTATEMENTS TO POLICE, O
ALTERNATIVELY. TO PRECLUDE THE STATE FROM INTRODUCIN
PORTIONS OF g;s OGATION on the /2 day of /fg/féﬁ,'éu 10, at
the hour of ¥ ___.m., in Department No. XVII of the ahove-entitlad Court, or ag
soon thereafter as counsel may be heard,

DATED this 2nd day of Auguat, 2010.

PALM

y: PATRICIA PALM
Nevada Bar No. 6009

1212 Casino Center Blvd.

Las Vegas, NV 89104

(702) 386-9113

Attorney for Defendant O'Keefe

A()1153



POIN DA g i[YI}_S_

The State charged Defendant Brizn K. O'Keefe with murder with use of
deadly weapon. He entered a plea of not guilty and invoked his right to
speedy txial. The State filed a motion to admit evidence of other crirpes, which
OKeefe opposed. The Court ruled that the State could introduce evidence o
threats to the alleged victim Victoria Whitmarsh that witness Cheryl Mormi
ciaims were made by QO'Keefe, and his demonstration of proficiency at killin
with knives, which Morris claims to have witnessed. The Court further n
that the State could introduce certified copies of OKeefe's prior Judgment
Conviction for felony domestic battery, involving Whitmarsh. Further, i
OKeefe testified, then the State could inquire into his other prior felon

convictions. Pursuant to the Court’s ruling on his prior Judgments o
Conviction, the State is permitted to introduce only the details of when O'Keef
was convicted, in which jurisdiction, and the name of the offenses, and wi
the felony domestic battery, the fact that Whitmarsh had testified as a State’
witness in that case, 3/16/09 TT 2-10.

The instant case was tried before this Honorable Court beginning Marc
16, 2009, After five days of trial, on March 20, 2009, the jury returned
verdict finding QKeefe guilty of second degree murder with uss of a deadl
weapon. On May 5, 2009, this Court sentenced OKeefe to 10 ta 25 years for
second-degree murder and a consecutive 96 to 240 months (8 to 20 years} or
the deadly weapon enhancement.

O'Keefe timely appealed to the Nevada Supreme Court. After briefing, the
Court reversed O'Keefe's convicton, agreeing with him that the district murtl
*erred by giving the State’s proposed instruction on second-degree murdes]
because it set forth an alternative theory of second-degree murder, the

charging document did not allege this altemate theory, and no evidenca
3
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supported this theory.” The Court explained, “the State’s charging document
did not allege that O'Keefe killed the vicdm while he was committing amn
unlawfil act and the evidence presented at trial did not suppeort this theory
second-degree murder,” O'Heefe v. State, NSC Docket No. 53839, Order o
Reversal and Remand (April 7, 2010). The Court further stated, “The district
court’s error in giving this instruction was not harmless because it is not clear
beyond a reasonable doubt that a rationa) juror would have found O'Keefe
guilty of second-degree murder absent the error.” Id. at 2.

After remand to this Court, trial was reset to begin on August 23, 2010.

_ STATEMENT QF FACTS

The prior trial testimony in this case showed that Brian O'Keefe and
Victoria Whitmarsh met in a teatment facility in 2001. 3/17/09 TT 18,
3/19/09 TT 183-84, They dated and co-habitated off and on and had wha
could be described as a very tumultiious relationship. 3/19/09 TT 186-90. Irj
2004, O'Keefe was .convicted of burglary for entering into the couple’s joint
dwelling with the intent to commit a crime against Whitmarsh., Oeefe wasy

sentenced to probation. He was later convicted of felony domestic battery| .
against Whitmarsh, and he went to prison in 2006, 3/18/09 TT 139-40,
3/19/09 TT 187-88. Whiunarsh testified as a State's witness in the domestid
battery case. 3/18/09 TT 139,

When O'Keefe was released from prison in 2007, he met and began
relationship with Cheryl Morris. 3/17/09 TT 10, 3/19/0% TT 189. He wonl
often speak to Mormis about his previcus relationship with Whitrmarsh, an
even expressed to her that he still had strong feelings for Whitmarsh, 3/17/09
TT 13-14, 37. Morris claimed at trial that OKeefe said he was upset with
Whitmarsh because she put him in prison and he said he wanted to “kill the
bitch.” 3/17/09 TT 14-17. Morris testified that O’Keefe left at one point to be
with Whitmarsh, and then telephoned Morris, asking her to move out of theix

(#1155
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jointly shared apartment so Whitmarsh could move in. 3/17/09 TT 11. Morris
testified that Whitmarsh got on the phone with her during that call and talq
her she had decided to resume her relationship with O'Keefe. The two of them

appeared to be a loving couple and were open about their relationship.
3/16/09 TT 259, 3/15/09 TT 18-21, 30-36.

At about 10:00 p.m. on the evening of the incident, in November 2008,
neighbor who lived in the apartment below G'Keefe and Whitmarsh heard wha
she described as thumping and crying noises coming from upstairs. 3/ 16/
TT 185-88. The noise became =0 loud that it woke her husband, Charle
Toliver, who was in bed next to her. Id. at 186-200. Toliver went upstairs to
mguire about the noise and found the door to O'Keefe's apartment apen. Id. af
206-209. He yelled inside to get the occupants’ attention, at which time
O’Keefe came out of the bedroom and shouted at Toliver to “come get hert® Ig.)
at 209-10. When Toliver entered the bedroom, he saw Whitmarsh lying on the
floor next to the bed and saw blood on the bed covers. 1d. at 210, O'Keefe wad
holding her and saying “baby, baby, wake up, don't do me like this.® 1d. &t
210, 224. OKeefe did not stop Toliver from going in the apartment on
otherwise fight with him. Id. at 224. Toliver left the apartment unrnediately
and shouted at a neighbor who was outside to call the police. ld. at 213, He
also brought Todd Armbruster, another neighbor, back upstairs. Id. at 214
O'Keefe was still holding Whitmarsh and told Armbruster to get the heil out of
there. Id. at 215. Armbruster called 911. [d, at 238. He thought that OKeefe
was drunk. Id. at 240, 245.

By this timne, shortly after 11:00 p.m., police had arrived on the scene.
3/16/09 TT 215, 3/17/09 TT 65. When they entered the bedroom, they found
Whitmarsh lying on the floor next to the bed and an unarmed O’Keefe cradlin
her in his arms and stroking her head. 3/17/09 at 87, 96. The police believe
Whitmarsh to be dead and ordered OKeefe to let go of her, but he refused,

&
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at 51-52, 60-61, 87. The officers eventually subdued him with a taser
and carried him out of the bedroom. Id. 88, O'Keefe was acting egitated, ﬂg.u::]
73, the officers testified that he had a strong odor of alechol on him, and he
appeared to be extremely intoxicated. ld. at 127-28, 3/18/09 TT 170-76]
Much of his speech was incoherent, but at one point he gaid that Whitmarsh|
stabbed herself and he also said that she tried to stab him, 3/17/09 T 56
85, 92. They arrested him and brought him to the homicide offices. 3/17/
TT 177. Subsequent to his arrest, O'Keefe gave a rambling statement indicatin
he was not aware of Whitmarsh's death or its cause. 3/18/09 TT 133, Police
interrogated him at 1:45 a.m., at which time he was crying, raising his voice,
talking to himself, and slurring. Detective Wildemann stated that during the
interrogation (‘'Keefe smelled heavily of alcohol, and when police
photographs of him &t about 3:55 a.m., they had to hold him upright to stead
him. 3/18/09 TT 146-49. Wildemann said it was pretty obvious that O'Keef
had been drinking, however, law enforcement did not obtain a test for hi
breath or blood alcohol level either before or after the interrogation. Id.
Whitmarsh had also been drinking on the date of the incident, and at the
time of her death, her blood alcohol content was 0,.24. 3/18/09 TT 94, 117,
She died of one stab wound to her side and had bruising on the back of her
head. Id. at 93, 103, Medical Examiner Dr. Benjamin testified tha
Whitmarah’s toxicology screen indiceted that she was taking Effexor and tha
drug should not be taken with alcohol. g, at 109. Whitmarsh had about th
times the target dosage of Effexor in her system. 3/19/09 TT 94-96. Th
combination of Effexor and alcohol could have caused anxiety, confusion an
anger. 3/19/09 TT 95-96. Whitmarsh also had Hepatitis C and advan
Cirrhosia of the liver, which is known to cause bruising with cnly sligh
preasure to the body, 3/18/09 TT 93-97. Whitmarsh’s body displayed muyltiple
bruises at the ime Dr. Benjamin examined her and the bruises were different

]
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colors, but she could not say that they were associated with Whitmarsh's death
or atherwise say how long ago Whitmarsh sustained the bruises, 3/18/09 TT
115. DNA belonging to O'Keefe and to Whitmarsh was found on a knife at the
scene, 3/18/09 TT 62-67.
OKeefe testified. 3/19/09 TT 177. He acknowledged his probiems with
alcohal and described his history with Whitmarsh, Id. at 177-93. He disputed
Morria’s claim that he said he wanted to kill Whitmarsh, but he acknowled
being angry with her. Id, at 190. It was Whitmarsh who calied O'Keefe and
initiated their renewed relationship. Id. at 191, He was aware that Whitmarsq
had Hepatiie ¢ when she moved into hia apartment. Id. at 197-98. In
November, 2008, Whitmarsh was stressed becayse of her financial cnﬁdiﬁon.
3/20/09 TT 17. A coupie of days before the incident at issue here, Whitmarsh
confronted O’Keefe with a knife, Id. at 18-19. She had been drinking and wa
on medication. id. O'Keefe had not been drinking that night and was able
diffuse the situation. [d. at 19. On November 5, 2008, O’Keefe learned that h
would be hired for a new job and had two glasses of wine to celebrate. id. a
21-24. OKeefe and Whitmarsh went to the Paris Casino where they both
drinks. Id. at 24-25. They returned home, and she was upset and went
upstairs while he reclined in the passenger seat of the car for a period of time.
Id. at 26-28. He went upstairs and then smoked outside on a balcony whild
she was in the bathroom, Id. at 29-30. He then went in the bedroom and saw|
Whitmarsh coming at him with a knife, Id. at 33. He swung his jacket at her
and told her to get back. Id. He knew that she was mad at him about a lot of
things. [d. He grabbed the knife, she yanked it and cut his hand. Id. at 33/
They struggled for a period of time. Id. at 33-36. During the struggle, she held
the knife and fell down, he fell on top of her and then he realized that she was
bleeding. Id. at 35-37. He was still drunk at this point and was trying to figurs
out what happened. id. at 37. He tried to stop the bleeding and panicked. Id|

7




at 39. He tried taking care of Whitmarsh and asked his neighbor to call
someonie after the neighbor came into his room. [d. at 40. He became agitated
when the neighbor brought another neighbor up to look at Whitmarsh, whaq
was partially undressed, rather than cailing the paramedics. Id. at 41. OKeels
denied hitting or slamming Whitmarsh. Id, at 42, He testified that he did no
intentionally kill Whitmarsh, but felt responaible because he drank that nighj
and he should not have done so. [d. at 49.
AR NT

OKeefe requests a ruling from this Court suppressing his statements o
LVMPD Officer Ballejos and his statements during the recorded interrogation
by homicide detectives on the grounds that the admission of these statements
at trial would viclate his Fifth and Fourteenth Amendment rights pursuant ta
Miranda v. Arizona, 384 U.S. 436, 86 S. Ct. 1602 (1966}, as well as his ripghtd
to a due process and a fair trial under the 14 Amendment, and the similas
provigions of Nevada Constitution, article 1, section 8.

The Fifth Amendment to the United States Constitution, made applicabie
to the states through the Fourteenth Amendment provides that “[n}o person . . |
shall be compelled in any criminal case to be a withess against himself.” U.S.
Const. amend. V. *Under the self-incrimination clause of the Fifth Amendment
to the United States Constitution, statements made by a suspect during police
interrogation are inadmissible uniess the suspect received a prior Miranda
wamning.” Boehm v, State, 113 Nev. 910, 912, 944 P.2d 269, 270 [(1997). The
Nevada Constitution, article 1, section 8, provides even greater protection than
the United States Constitution. See id, at 912-13, 944 P.2d at 270-71
(concluding that the Nevada Constitution provides greater protecton than the
federal constitution on the issue of jailhouse informant interrogation).

A suspect’s statements during a custedial interrogation are not
admissible unless Miranda's procedural requirements have been




followed. In particular, the subject of a custodial interrogation
must be advised of the right to remain silent, the right to consult
with and have an attorney present during any interrogation, and
palice must inform the suspect that any statements made during
the interrogation can be used as evidence againast fhim].
Dewey v. State, 123 Nev. 483, 490, 169 P.3d 1149, 1153 (2007] (citing
Miranda, 384 U.B. at 444, 473-74, 86 S. Ct. 1602).
Here, when OKeefe spoke with Ballejos, he was in handcuffs a.nc#

awaiting transport to the jail. Thus, he was in custody and entitled to be gi

his Miranda wamings pror to questioning. He was not given Miran
warnings, and the guestions regarding his relationship with Whitmarsh an
ber identity do not qualify as “routine booking questions” exempt fro
Miranda's warning requirements,

As Jusﬁcc Rose noted in his dissent in Nika v. State, 113 Nev. 1424
951 P.2d 1047 (1997) (Rose, J,, dissenting and addressing error sua sponte):

[A] well established line of cases has created an exception to the
Miranda rule for “routine booking questions® because such
Guestions are niot related to the investigation of the case and serve
a legitimate administrative need. Pennsvivania v. Muniz, 496 U.S.
582, 601, [] (1990), United States v, Booth, 669 F.2d 1231, 1238
(9t Cir. 1981); Franks v. State, [] 486 S.E.2d 594, 597 (Ga. 1997).
Routine booking questions are limited to biographical! data
necessary to complete booking or pretrial services.™ Muniz, 496
U.S. at 601 [J; see also Franks, 486 S.E.2d at 507 (stating that
basic biographical data is limited to a suspect’s name, age,
address, educational background, marital status, and any other
information required to complete an arrest form).

Id. at 1446-47, 951 P.2d 1061-62 {citation omitted). Moreover, due to th
potential for abuse by police using the guise of seeking objective or neu
information, the ultimate test for whether questioning conatitutes
interrogation is “whether, in light of all the circumstances, the police shou




have known that a question was reasonably likely to elicit -an incriminating
response.” Booth, 669 F.2d at 1238.

In this case, the questions about Whitmarsh had nnthing to do with
administrative booking needs. Moreover, Baligjos knew that {O'Keefe wazJ
extremely intoxicated and possibly mentally ifl. See his use of force report
attached hereto as Exhibit A, pp. 2, 4 {“Officer assessment of citizen condition
Mentally fl/Under the Influence”; Sgt. Newberry's comment, “O’Keefe appeared
to be extremely intoxicated”}. He also knew that O'Keefe had just been tased
twice with 50,000 volts of electricity and dropped on'his head. 3/17/09 TT)
135-36, 141-42. O'Keefe’s condition created a likelihood that any questioning
about Victoria and his relationship to her was reasonably likely to elicit an
incriminating response. Further, there was no exigericy which could have
possibly justified Ballejos’s questioning of O'Keefe without Miranda.

According to Ballejos’s own recorded statement, after AMR checked out
Whitmarsh, O'Keefe was moved downstairs, and Ballejos continued {6 try to
talk to him. O%Keefe gave his name, and then gave her name *Victorial
Whitmarsh” and said they had been dating for several years. Ballejos never got
a specific time frame. Ballejos’s Voluntary Statement, p & {attached hereto aa
Exh. B). Ballejos noted, that it took about thirty (30} minutes to get the lasd
&nd first names and birthdates from OKeefe, and that when they asked for he
name, he said Vercnica, then he changed it to Victoria. Exh, B, at 10,
Ballejios himself must have conaidered his questioming interrogation becaitse in

hie statement he notes that he took a class in mterrogation recently, and he

noted that O'Keefe's facial expressions were not appropriate to his staternen
exXpressing sadness. Exh. B, at 9.

At the preliminary hearing, Ballejos testified that O'Keefe was put on hi
belly on the catwalk, and Ballejos tried to speak with him there. PHT 34. Hd
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was assigned the duty to interview O'Keefe apparently because he is “a C.LT.
officer” and OKeefe “was very angry." PHT 34-35, He only talked with (FKeefe
on the catwalk & few minutes, then O'Keefe was put downstairs, and Ballejos
tried to speak to him again, PHT 35, O'Keefe smelled heavily of alcohol. PHT]
35. O'Keefe gave the name Veronica instead of Victoria. PHT 37.

At trial, Ballejos testified that he was asking O’Keefe for information ory
Victoria's name, date of birth and social for purposes of assisting her if she
went to the hospital. O%Keefe was not answering those guestions but
responded with statements about the officers being mad at him. Then
downstairs he “gave false information about Victoria's actual identity , . . hae
gave two different names Victoria Whitmore, and Victoria Whitmarsh 3
3/17/09 TT 122-25.

According to dispatch records, medical respenders found that Victord

was dead about two {2] minutes after O'Keefé was in custody. Thus, there w
no medical emergency which could justify any interrogation of O'Keefe, eve
assuming that Nevada recognized such an exigency exception to Miranda.

911 Dispatch record, Exh. C, pp. 2 (23:13 “subj’s heen tazed... taking him intqg
custody at this time”; 23:18 (11:18 p.m.) “confirmed 419" (attached hereto).
Other records confirm that the medical responders cleared the scene at 23:20
{i 1:20 p.m.) after finding Whitmarsh dead.

By the time Ballejos got the above information from (Keefe, LMVPD
officers knew that Whitmarsh was dead. Thus, using an alleged exigency as
guise to continue questioning O'Keefe was improper. A search warrant wou
be sought and result in recovery of her identification from her wallet inside her
purse at the scene. There was no exigency, and even if there were, it would
have justified the search of her purse for reliable identification before Ay,
guestioning of an extremely drunk and dazed defendant. It is intersating td

11
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note that the State relied heavily on the guestionable evidence from Ballej
related to his questioning of O'Keefe to incriminate OKeefe and show malice.
DDA Graham engaged in the following colloquy with Ballejos:

Q.  In your duties as an officer, is one of your duties oying
to gather information about the descendant {sic] or the injured
victim at the scene?

A Yes '

Q Okay. And was there anybody there that you knew of
that may have that information for you?

A Mr. O'Keefe

Q Qkay. 3o if uying to gather information, 1 assume to
aesist in the medicgl assistance of Victoria —

A Yes

Q And in doing so, did you ask the defendant questions to
try to gather that information to help assist you in determining
who she waga?

Aldid.

Q2 Okay. You indicated, Officer, that he had given you false
information at the beginning.

A Yea,

Q Did you determine at all whether or not he actually knew
Victoria?

A He stated they were in a dating relationship for several
year. [aic]

Q ... What did you do then when you failed in gathering
information from the only person you knew at the scene that was
able to give you that information?

[Objection sustained]

Q. After the defendant indicated that he dated her for over
years, it is safe, | assume, 1o assume that he would be the one
person that could provide oll the necessary information on her
medical, on her identity, et cetera?

[OChjection sustained].

3/17/09 TT 126-29,
The evidence which the State relies on to show malice toward Whitmarshl
was illegally obtained in violation of Miranda and its use viclates O'Keefe's due

12




process rights under the state and federa) constitutions. In addition, this line

of questioning by the prasecutor amounts to pregentation of false evidence i
violations of due process, since the prosecution knows that Whitmarsh wa
dead and there was no exigency. ‘

The defense seeks suppression of all of O'Keefe’s statements to Eallejcj

during the on the scene non-Mirandized questioning and Ballejos's impression
of O'Keefe's demeanor during that questioning. -

Moreover, as suppression would be meaningless if not respected, .D’Keefe
requests that Ballejos be admonished prior to his testimony by the Court not td
volunteer testimony that is nonresponsive to questions or is otherwise
inadmissible. As was noted at the bench prior to hia previous trial testimony,
during the preliminary hearing, Ballejos volunteersed nenresponsive testimony
and had to be admonished by the justice court to answer the questions put ta
him. See PHT at 24 1l 18-25, 25 11. 1-16, 34 1. 5-15, 34 1. 24 to 35 1. 7. A4
the previous trial, the defense requested the State be required to admonish him
prior to his testimeny. Nevertheless, during his trial testimony, Ballejos again|
interjected improper responses to guestioning. See, e.z., 3/ 17/09 TTat 113 1.
2-6, 114 1. 2-6, 116 1L, 9-15, 122 1. 15-22, 124 1. 9-13, 124 1, 15 to 125 iU
125, When defense counsel ia forced to constantly object, it appears as though
the defense has something to hide and creates the danger of prejudice to the
defense. Thus, OKeefe requests that this Court admonish this particulay
witness ahead of time to refrain from volunteering information not respunaivq
to the questions asked in order to prevent a due process violation.

Next, OKeefe seeks suppression of his recorded interrogation by
homicide detectives.! Again, Iat the time of his arrest, the use of force report

Along with a courtesy copy of this Motion, O'Keefe is submitting to this Cour?’
chambers for review a capy of the interrogation transcript and video.
13
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indicates that police believed that O'Keefe was extremely intoxicated. The 911
call by Todd Armbruster who entered the apartment indicates that he sh

this impression. The recording of this call was admitted at the previous trial a
State's Exhibit 2. 3/16/09 TT at 238. O'Keefe had also been tased and
dropped on his head at approximately 2313 (11:13 p.m.). 3/17/10 TT at 101.

Thereafter, O'Keefe was put in a vehicle where he fell asleep. He w
transported to the homicide offices and a videotape was started while he sat i
an interview room, The video started at 1:23 a.m. 3/17/09 TT 135-36, 141-
42, 3/18/10 TT 141. The interrogation started at 1:45 a.m.

The Miranda warnings were given as follows:

Q Detective: “You have, you have the right to remain silent.
Anything you say can be used against you in a court of law. You
have the right to the presence of an attorney. If you cannot afford
an attorney one will be appointed before questioning. Do you
understand these rights, Brien? Do you understand what | read
you? You been in the system.

A Ah, yes I do but you know what, can you give me the charges?
What is the offenge?

Q You're not being charged with anything.
[continued conversation off topic]

Q Do you understand what [ read to you? You haven't even
answered that yet.

A My Miranda rights?
Q Uh huh.
A Hum,

Q Is that a yes or a no?

A | dont know, maybe vou should read it to me one more Sme.
No, I understand ‘em detective.




The interrogation then continued until 2:01 a.m., then broke until 3:06
a.m. The resumed interrogation continued until 3:28 a.m. 3/ 18/09 TT at 14},
CSA Dan Ford came to O'Keefe’s DNA and clothing at 3:55 a.m. Id. at 142,

The video of the interrogation shows that OKeefe slurred his words
throughout the interrogation, his answers were nonsensical and rambling, he
talked to himeelf and rested on the table and side rail during the break, and he
had to be steadied and assisted by officers when he changed clothing and puf
on the jail booties at the conclusion of the interrogation. Detectives must have
guspected that O'Keefe ﬁ:ight be too intoxicated to fully understand what wa.&{
happening, since they sought to take advantage of any confusion by lying tg
him about Whitrnarsh being dead unt] nearly the end of the interrogation.
Even assuming he may have been sohering up during the hour-long breakd
detectives decided to take, they did not re-advise him or seek a new waiver
before restarting the interview. Even after the break O'Keefe continued to sluf
his words and to be unsteady on hia feet. The interrogation concluded with]
Detective Wildemann stating. “You might wanna open the door actually, l'.tzJ
might be a fucking nut” Interrogation Transeript, p. 34.

The Nevada Supreme Court relied on Miranda to recognize that “a heavy
burden rests on the government to demonstrate that the defendant knowingly
and intelligently waived his privilege against self-incrimination and his right tg

. . counsel. . . . This Court has always set high standards of proof for the
waiver of constitutional! rights [and these high standards apply] to in-cuatody
interrogation.” Anderson v, State, 109 Nev, 1129, 1133, 865 P.2d 318, 320
(1995) [quoting Miranda, 384 U.S. at 475, 86 S, Ct. 1602 (citation omitted)).

A confession is not voluntary unless it is the product of a rational
intellect and a free will. Factors considered in determining veluntarinesg

include the age of the accused, his education and inteliigence, any advice

1%
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concerning constitutional rights, the length of the detention, the repeated an
prolonged nature of any questioning, the use of physical punishment such
deprivation of food and sleep, and prior experience with law enforcement)
Passama v. Statg, 103 Nev. 212, 213-14, 735 P.2d 321, 322 (1987). The va.ljdit_ﬂ
of a Miranda rights waiver must be determined through an examination of the
particular facts and circumstances of each case. Anderson, 109 Nev. at 1133,
863 P.2d at 320.

“It i= & viclation of due process to admit into evidence g ataternent that id
involuntary because of extreme intoxication, such as where a defendant was sa
intoxicated that he was unable to understand the meaning of his comments,

State v. Hicks, 649 P.2d 267, 275 (1982). Cf. State v. Riverg, 733 P.2d 1090
1097 (Ariz. 1987) (affirming lower court’s ruling admitting statements whera

that court found defendant was not intoxicated to such a degres to make hi
gtatements inadmissible, noting that he smelled of alcohol but wal
normaily, did not have shurred speech, and was coherent and able to talk)
Anderson, 109 Nev. at 1134, 865 P.2d at 320 (upholding finding of kn

and voluntary waiver where defendant stated he understood, agreed to talk
was responsive 10 questions, appenred to be coherent and aware of
importance of his statements, and failed to present any evidence that he
intoxcated or medicated to such an extent that he was unable to unders

the meaning of his comments); Falcon v. State, 110 Nev. 530, 874 P.2d 77
(1994} [concluding that the State met its burden to show valid waiver where
defendant was interviewed 11 % hours after the crime was reported and 6 %
hours after arrest, was not observed fo be incoherent or incapable of
understanding the consequences of what was being said to him, exhibited none
of the classic symptoms of intoxication or being under the influence of
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controlled substance, sat up straight in his ‘chair and responded to quastionJ
with no difficulty).
Here, it was obvious that O'Keefe was still extremely into:dcatﬁ at the
time of his interrogation. He had been at the tirne of his arrest, according to
Ballejos’s use of force report. During the interrogation, he was not rational o
responsive to the questioning and at times was incoherent. He slurred hiJ
words throughout the interrogation and even at the conclusion of it, he had ta
be steadied on his feet. The totelity of evidence in this case, therefore, sh
that O'Keefe did not knowingly and voluntarily waive his Miranda rights, as hi

decision to speak with detectives was not the result of rational intellect and fre
will,

Even if the Court declines to order suppression of the entire reco
interrogation, portions of it must be as they are improper under the rules of
evidence and/or are unfairly prejudicial. The following portions are objected ta
on this basis:

A. P.2, question: “You been in the system before, right? You've talked to
police officers before? [improper bad act reference]

B, P.3, question: “You were combative * “apparently when the officers came
in a strugple ensued, ckay, and you . , . kind of, ah, combative is what §
was told.” [relies on hearsay]

C. P.4, response: “could it be because they run my prior record with me a.mj
my 30 called fiancé?” . . . “Domestic violences. What do you think?
fimproper bad act reference|

D. P.6, response; *I got aut of prison, . . I did all my probaticn things.”
[same]

E. P.10, response: *] went through this crap before, Fuckin’ cops.” [same]

F. P.12, response: “] already went through this.” {samel]

17




G. P.13, respanse: “I was with Victoria and we had a lot of shit happen and J

went to jail and | went to prison. | fought my cases. I spent three, foun
years and | got out. . . [ did everything the court said. | satisfied]
[same]

H. P.14, reaponse: *] went to prison,” . . . “after a year and the court order
was”. . . "if you look in my closet, detective, you'd be surprised the
reporis, everything I filed, fought the _ Always supreme court.
[improper bad act reference}

L P. 14, response: “If you go into . . . my closet in the spare bedroom, . . |
end you open up my files that | filed, they done told me I could be an
attorney. Anyway, you'll see the documents that I . . . ] requested)
sequestered and all that. Did all paperwork. Found DNA. Mixture oj
DNA. However, Mr, O'Keefe ___ there was a mixture of DNA,
[inproper bad act reference]

J4. P.15, question: “Brian, Brian, you're talking about a case from —
[same]

K. P.1§, response: “Bucky Buchanan and Sally Loehrer are the judge of the
district court. _ told me _ , Susan..l hate her, the fucling
prosecutor. Oh, Ross Miller, Secretary of State, now Secretary of State.
! was the last case that he lost.” {aame|

L. P.16, response: “The judge end everybody told me be careful of the
warman you fuckin look for, or the woman you want to be with. [same}

M. P.17 response: *But let’s don't forget some factors that might come up.,
For instance, my last attorney was Bucky Buchanan.” [same]

N. P.18, question: *Don’t order her around.” [improper bad sact, opinion,

comimnent, invades province of the jury]




- P.18, question: “you made statements earlier that she stabbed herself
then you made different statements” fhased on hearsay]

. P.24, question: "Stop acting ridiculous." (inappropriate vouching, opinion
or comment, invades province of jury]

. P.25, question: “You're being utterly ridiculous,” [szme]

. P.27, response: *Did time, 22 months in CCDC.” [improper bad act|

- P.29, question: “You're being ridiculous.” [inappropriate vouching,
Opinion or comrment]|

. P.31, question: “Are you really that shocked? You told Charles that she
was dead.”[based on hearsay].

. P.32, question: “You know what a nor-uh, a rational person goes hey
officers, they walk out, they greet them and they say come in. They
not combative, They’re not incoherent. A normal person wants tha
person helped. They don't have a stand-off in the apartment for 19
minutes.”

Response: “Detective, a standoff in the apartment? This is the way you're
being told?

Question: “Yeah.” [relies on hearsay, improper vouching, opinion|
comment, invades the province of the jury].

. P33, question: “You do lmow. You do know. It's Hme to accept]
responsibility for what happened in there. Okay?” [inappropriate -
vouching, apinion or comument, invades province of jury]

W. P.24, question: “No neighbor tells us that. No neighbor tefls us that yo

i were screaming somebody call. They had to go up and see you.” [Iﬂliﬂj
on hearsay]

X. P.24, question: “They said you said she’s dead. Come and get her, she'q

dead.” [relies on hearsay).




Y. P.34, guestion, “You might wanna open the door sctually, he might be &
fucking nut.” [inappropriate vouching, opinion or comment].

NRS 48.015 provides that “relevant evidencs® means evidence having any
tendency to make the existence of any fact that is of consequence to the
determination of the action more or less probable than it would be without the
evidence.,” NRS 48.025(2) recognizes that “[e]vidence which is not relevant iJ
not admissible.” Moreover, NRS 48.035 providesa in part that:

1. Although relevant, evidence is not admissible if its probative

value is sunstantially outweighed by the danger of unfair prejudice,
of confusion of the iasues or of mi eading the jury.

2. Although relevant, evidence may be excluded if its probative
value is substantially cutweighed by considerations of undue
de}sy, wasate of time or needless presentation of cumulative
evidence. . .,

Additionally, “{a]besent certain exceptions, evidence of a perannj

character or a trait of his character is not admissible for the purpose of provin
that he acted in conformity therewith on a particular occasion. Further,
evidence of other crimes, wrongs or acts is not admissible to prove th
character of a person in order to show that he acted in conformity therewithq
Tavlor v. State, 109 Nev. 849, 853, 858 P.2d 843, 846 {1993},

The Nevada Supreme Court recognizes that the use of character evidence
to convict a defendant is extremely disfavored in our criminal justice system|
Such evidence is likely to be prejudicial and irrelevant and forces the accused)
to defend against vague and unsubatantiated charges. 1t may improperly
influence the jury and result in the accused’s conviction because the jury
believes he is a bad person. The use of such evidence to show a propenasity tog
commit the crime charged is clearly prohibited by the law of this state and ig
commonly regarded as sufficient ground for reversal on appeal., See Taylor,
109 Nev. at B54, 858 P 2d at 847 (citing Bamer v, State, 104 Nev. 695, 696-97

20




10

11

12

13

14

15

18

17

18

18

20

21

s |

25

26

27

765 P.2d 1144, 1145-46 (1988)). Even where other-act evidence is relevant to
permissible purpose and proven by clear and convincing evidence, a court
should still exclude it if its probative value is substantially outweighed by the
danger of unfair prejudice. Roever v. State, 114 Nev. 867, B72, 963 P.2d 503,
505-06 {1998}

Although this Court has ryled that Oeefe’s prior conviction j
admissible int the State's case in chief (OKeefe continues to assert his objectio

to this evidencej, the above statements referring to his prior cases are outside

the scope of the court’s ruling limiting admissibility to the fact of the convietio

versus any underlying details, These statements constitute evidence J
inadmissible bad acts. Additionally, muitiple mentions of the prior conviction
compound the prejudice that naturally attaches to the conviction.
Furthermore, O'Keefe's statements regarding police, presecutors and judges in
unrelated matters are irrelevant and prejudicial. In the remaining referencey
above highlighted, detectives improperly reference hearsay and/er give
opinions on whether OKeefe is being ridiculous and inappropriately ordering

them around, on what a normal or rational person would have done in the

same circumstances, on whether he should take regponsibility for wha
happened, and on whether he is a “fucking nut." These references invade th
province of the jury and constitute impermissible vouching, opinion o
comment on the evidence.
fi
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CONCLUSION

Based on the foregoing, Brian O'Keefe moves this Honorable Court for

rulings euppressing his statements to LVMPD Officer Ballejos and hi

interrogation by homicide detectives. In the alternative, O'Keefe requestj

rulings preventing the State from introducing portions of the interrogation

identified herein as being unfairly prejudicial and improper evidence,
DATED this 2nd day of August, 2010.

PALM LAW FIRM, LTD.

Patricia Palm, Bar No. 6000 .
1212 Casine Center Blvd,

Las Vegas, NV 89104

Phone: {702) 386-91 13

Fax: (702) 386-9114
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LAS VEGAS METROPOLITAN POLICE DEPARTMENT

VOLUNTARY STATEMENT

PAGE 1
EVENT #: 081105-3914

SPECIFIC CRIME: HOMICIDE
DATE OCCURRED: 11-05-08 TIME OCCURRED: 2301 HRS.

LOCATION OF OCCURRENCE: 5001 EL PARQUE, APT, £35
LITY OF LAS VEGAS CLARK COUNTY — E

NAME OF PERSON GIVING STATEMENT: QFFICER JEREMIAH BALLEIOS, P#3406

poa: FOCIAL SECURTTY ¥

RACE: BEX:

HEIGHT: WERKHT!:

HaIR: EYES:

WORK SCHECALE: DaY3 OFF;

HOME ADDRESS: HOME PHONE:

WORK ADDRESS: WORK PHONE;
BESY FLACE TO CONTACT:

BESY TIME TO CONTACT:
= S — CrE—

The fcllowing is the transeription of & tape-recorded interview conducted by DETECTIVE
T. IVIE, P¥6405, LVMPD HOMICIDE SECTION, on 11-D6-08 at 0147 hours.

Q. Operatar, this is Detective T. Ivie, P#6405. i'm conducting a taped voluntary
staternent in reference 1o an attempt murder with deadly weapon which occurred
under Event #081106-3818. at appreximately 2301 at 5001 El .Parque, ah, Las
Vegas, Apartment C35, ah, Las Vegas, Nevada 89149, Ah, person giving the
statement is Officer J. Ballgjos, B-A-L-L-E-J-C-S, P#8408, call sign 8LI77, Today's

date is 11-06 of '08, approximately 0147 hours. Ah, this statement is given, ah, at

Warh £, o A IRy TN - ALTORSATEDWRZ
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LAS VEGAS METROPOLITAN POLICE DEPARTMENT

VOLUNTARY STATEMENT

PAGE 3
EVENT # 061105-2818

STATEMENT OF: OFFICER JEREMIAH BALLEJOS
8001 El Parqus, Las Vegas, Nevada 89146. Officer Ballgjos, can you say your first
and last name for me?
Jeremiah Ballejos.
And were you working tonight as a Las Vegas Metropclitan Police Depariment
officer?
Yes.
And how were you, how were you working tonight?
Ah, as pant of, ah, Bolden Area Command's Problem Solving Unil.
And is that a plainclothes capacity?
Yes.
All right, Can you tell me about-a littie bit about what happened tonight and how
you got the call and, and, ah, what actually transpired? |
Ah, we were just-we started monitering the call. It came out as a, uh, like & 511
call. Um, somebody was calling for help, saying that there was a person tljat. ah,
was—had been stabbed and was bieeding, uh, inside the apariment. Ah, so we

came o see if we could, ah, help out at all. Um, when we showed up here, wellwe

pulled up behind, ah, fire and there were, 2h, several marked units already arrived

inside the parking iot. Ah, 30 we just-we went to the location of the apartment. Ah,
there were residents standing outside their doors, ah, trying to find out what was

going on, and, ah, officers were aiready inside the apartment, ah, challenging

N01182




LAS VEGAS METROFOLITAN POLICE DEPARTMENT

VOLUNTARY STATEMENT

PAGE 3 -
EVENT # 081105-3918

STATEMENT OF: OFFICER JEREMIAH BALLEJOS
somebody that was in 2 back bedroom, ah, of the apartment, Um, there wasa CIT
officer, Officer Conn, that was asiready, ah, had already established communication,
ah, with the, the male voice inside the room. Ah, Fm a CIT also s0 you know in
certain situations it s—if we—~if you have that opportunity it's aiways good to have two
CIT officers, ah, se you can coach each other or you know bump heads ifyuu get
stuck with, you know you run inte a wall. Um, so | stacked up behind him and, ah,
tried to see what he could see and listen to what was belng said, what was going
on, and, ah, from his, you know standing behind him what we could see in the deep,
from the deep south end of the living rcom, ah, icoking into this bedroom was, ah,
what looked like, ah, a lot of blood. Um, the sheels were, you know, just soaked
with a, a red substance. Looked like blood to me. And, ah, could hear the voice
coming from. ah, deep inta the room, se we didn't have a, a, a line of sighf on the
person or the, the injured person. Officer Conn was telling, ah, this guy that he
needed to come ¢ut, ah, s0 we—you know __ {unintelligible}, he needed toc come
out so the ambulance and could come in and iry to take care of the woman that was
in there. Um, il seemed...you know they were hesitant, ah, initially because it
almost seemed...you could hear it in his veice, the way he was saying well you
come in here. Um, like he was trying to bail, an, bait us {o come in. So, ah, Sgt.
Newbarry, um, he slowly, siowly worked his way to the north side of the living room,

where he got to the, ah, door stop and was able to do a quick pesk, ah, o see, um,
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LAS VEGAS METROPOLITAN POLICE DEPARTMENT

VOLUNTARY STATEMENT

PAGE 4
EVENT # 081105.3918

STATEMENT OF: QFFICER JEREMIAH BALLEJOS

the fermale and the maie Iying on the ficor, ah, deep in the narth pant of the

bedreom. Um, my ngn-lethai option was OC spray, which wasn't, was of no use in
a case like this. Ah, Officer Conn, ah, gave me his taser instead, so we had a lethal
optien and a non-lethal option when we stacked up and-o go into the room fo get
this, ah, guy into custody and remove him from the, ah, bedroom so that the
ambu~of AMR could get in there and take care of this person. Ah, sowe went in.
Ah, Officer Conn was with me and Officer Taylor. Ah, those are the two officers |
remamber being inside the room with me. Um, we enter. Ah, Officer Conn starts
giving him verbal commands. Um, he-as Officer Conn's trying to give these verbal
command, ah, Brian is...or the, the guy laying on the floor with the victim. um, is
shouting back at him, iike almost shouting over him. So you can-just gave the
impression that whatever, ah, Officer Conn is saying is just—this quy's not hearing,
becausehe's, he's, he's trying to drawned [sic] it out or his, you know his—whatever
he’s saying is more important. Um, __ {unintefligible) lkeoking in, ah, he's kind of,
ah, the female's faying on her back, Ah, looked like a Fili...ah, well he says she's
Filipino but when | saw her she looked like an Asian female, ah, black hair, um,
eyes open, mouth agape, um, wearing a biack tee shit. Ah, from about, ah, her
mid—her befly or tarso, ah, down, ah, all | saw was skin so it didn'l appear, you know
just at a glance, that she was—had any clothes on. Uh, on her skin | could see, ah

splotches of, of a red substance which | assumed to be blood. {Um, he's, ah.. that
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the male is laying next to her, uh, on the ficor, like partially covering her body with,
with his, ah, left knee and his right feg is down touching—in contact with the floor,
um, and he's kind of shiekding her it almost seems from us. Um, | continue to give
him verbal commands. He's not responding. You know he's actualty, ah, pulling
en her shirt, saying, ah, don’t look at her, don't loak &t her. Um, we're really worried
at this paint, I'm worried at this point that whatever condition she's in the longer we
wait the worse it's gonna be. Ah, so when | ses an oppertunity to, ah, he exposes
his torso, gh, | fire with the, ah, ECD, um, 2 preng geoing into his, ah, upper torso,
one going into his lower torse. Ah, Officer Taylor steps in, is able to get his, ah, left
hand behind his back and in a handeuff, while the, gh, the ECD cycles. Um, but he
still has his right hand free, After the cycle tompletes and he starts a hand around,
wan't give if up, ah, as more verbal commands are being given, he's wamed that,
ah, you know he's gonna be tased again. Ah, he's not listening to those commands,
ah, won't give his hand up and we still don't have him under control. She's, ah, you
know if she's injured she's still bieeding. So, ah, | cycle the, the ECD again to allow
Cfficer Taylor to take control of that hand. He gets both hands handcuffed. Um,
Cfficers, ah, Fonbuena and | don't know the officer’s name, step in to the room at
that point to grab hold of ankles and, ah, the other two officers graby hold of tha arms
and he's moved outinto the living room, ah, from the bedroom. Get up, ah, he's set

down on the carpet where they can get a better hold of him and he's removed
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entirely from the, ah, 'cause where he is, right in that living room, AMR can't move

their, ah, all their equipment or themselves. He's just right in the line of, ah, of that

main pathway. So he's removed entirely out into the catwalk, ah, put there, down

there on his belly. Um, try and get information from him. Ah, his name, her name.

Ah, trying to teil him that, you know, we need her birth date and stuff, ah, blood type

and all that so the paramedics can work on him. Ah, he's not responding to me at

first, did not respond to me at first. Ah, starts crying a little bit and stops and he

says well you guys are mad at ma, aren't you and | said well what do you mean?

He said weli [ didr't, | didn't do this, man, she tried to stab ma. And, ah, you know

just kinda left it at that. Um, AMR went up right immediately after we'd gotten him

out-out, ah, you know within a couple minutes of after we got him cut of the

apartment. | don'tknow what the outcome or when she was proncunced or anything

ike that. Ah, he was moved downstairs here where | continued to try and taik to

him. He, sh, got down here and told me his name was Brian O'Keefo. Her namse

was Victoria, ah, Whitmarsh and they had been dating for, ah, several years. |

never got a specific time frame from him. Um, but that's about it. ! don't know what,

ah...

Okay. {unintetiigible), ah, there's just a few guestions. Basically you're on

patrol tonight as a unmarked unit. You hear the call come out as, as fike a 911

disconnect, 4044, right?
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As it—t came out as a 404,
Okay.
And—but the details was of a person who had been siabbed, was bleeding.
Ard that's here at 5001 El Parque?
Yes.
Apariment G357
Uh huh.

A,
Q.
A,
Q.
A
Q.
A,
Q.

All right. You get here, there's other patrol officers already here. You arive here
with, ah, 8gt. Newberry and Officer Conn?

Ah, Sgl. Newberry and Cfficer Taylor.

Officer Taytor. Excuse me. Atwhich point you go into the apartment of go up to the
apartment, there are other officers aiready inside the apartment and they're
challenging the apartment and there's a male voice that's nat complying. Um, at
some point you guys do make entry and go into the apartment and into the back
bedrooms where you see, ah, can you describe that ta me, what you see in that
back badroom a little bit better? :

Yean, when we get, ah, up the stairs and o the. ah. the doorway, the door's open.
Ah, the living room, ah, all the lights are off and so you're, you're vision is
drawn directly or immediately back to this bedroom with the lights on, Ab, white

sheets, ah, just scaked in a real, uh, a red material [sic], um, with like | said, uh, 1,
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[ seen just from experience was just Jooked like biood to me, ah, lets of blood. Um,
and so we, you know we try and cut the pia and get, ah. a best line of sights so you
can look deep into the bedroom as you can, uh, from where Dfficer Conn was when
we arrived, but you just had no...l...we could...had no line of sight of him, just the
voice telling us, um, not responding to the request from Officer Conn to come out
but, ah, saying well you come in hers, you come in here. And it was just creepy the
way he was saying it. Uh, youknow ____ ({unintelligible} like well let's see what we
can do to—f we can formulate some type of plan but not—we're not just gonra go
walking in there ‘cause the, of the, ah, possibilties. But, ah... -
Okay. Once you make entry into that back bedroom you see. you know, you take
this guy whao verbally identified himself later as Brian.
Yeah.
Is there anybody else besides him and the famale laying there on the floor, is there
anybody else in the apartment that you found hiding or anything like that?
No.
No one else was located?
No.
And then as, basically this, this white male he’s un—uncooperative, he, ah, the ECD

is used to take him into custody, he's then rushed out, ah, medical comes up and
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you start fziking to him and ha makes an utterance that you—that officers are mad
at him and that the female came at him with a knife.

Right.

And that they are in some sort of dating relationship for many years and that type
of stuff.

Yes.

Okay. Is there anything else that you can think of that might be pertinent that | have
not asked you or that you may think is petinent to the, to this investigation?

Um, like | said, | thaught it was strange that, ah, you know that it kind of...I'd taken
this class Interviewing (unintelligible) interviewing interrogation and, ah,
theaugh that training we just kinda iooked at, umn, pecple's facial expressions not
matching their, uh, the emaotion that they're trying to self to you and, ah, he seemed
like, you know just his facial features were, which were like anger or, ah, you know,
he was trying...um, didn't match the emotion of, ah, of sadness that he was trying
to portray through his voice and you know it just sesmed weird to me that, you
know, ah, for scmebody that he's in this relationship to—for so long to of Kiiled
themselves {sic], um, or he-when we moved him downstairs he besically went, ah,
satin the back of the patrol car and fell asleep. | just thought that was strange. But,

um...

And this Brian, this white male, do you know if he was intoxicated or not?
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A. Ah, he smelled real heavily of, ah, alcohol,

Did you ever ask him if he had anything to drink?
No, ha just...really hard to talk to. Um, and to solicit some of that infor-you know
Just a small piece of information we got from him, ah, was over, you know, a 30
minute pericd, to get the first and last nama, birth dates. Ah, when we asked, when
we actually asked, ah, what the females name was. the first narme he gave Us was
Veronica, um, and then you know later, ah, when wa tried to confirm it he said wall
okay, it's Victona.

Q. Is there anything else you can think {unintelfigible)?

A No, no.

Q.  Operator, this concludes this taped voluntary statement. Again, today's date is

November 6, 2008, approximately 0203 hours. Thank you.

THIS VOLUNTARY STATEMENT WAS GOMPLETED AT E001 E| PARQUE, ON THE
6th DAY OF NOVEMBER, 2008 AT 0203 HOURS.
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DECLARATION OF RESEARCH ASSISTANT, CUSTODIAN OF RECORDS CONCERNING
LAS VEGAS METROPOLITAN POLICE DEPARTMENT RECORDINGS OF EMERGENCY
“911" CALLS (TAPE AND COMPUTERIZED MATERIALS)

I, Leslie Loretto, hereby declare under the penalty of perjury:

1, That ] am an employee of the Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Department, Las
Yegas, Nevada and in such ca ity, I act as the Custodian of Records for the records and recordings
of 911 ealls made to the Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Department.

2. Thatall calls made to 911 are recorded by the Las Vegas Metropolitan Police
Deparment onte DVDs and into computerized records which materials are maintained for
approximately one year.

. That | have examined the recordings made by the Lasg Vegas Metropolitan
Folice Department and that [ have discovered that on Emhg;_ﬁj_@g a call was made in

referance to an event at =001 El Parque Ave at or near 230! hours.

That I have made an exact, true, accurate and compiete reproduction of the
to 911 onto a CD and have printed an exact, true, accurate, and complete
omputerized information concerning this call, That I have writter the Event

onto that CD. 1 then sealed that CD into an envelope, attached this
declaration and the computerized information toncerning that call to that envelope and wrote my
name anxd the same Event Number on the outside of that envelope.

5. Thm&eoﬁghmlmcordinﬁgnfthccaﬂfﬂmmdmpmﬂmﬁcs}byﬂwm
Vegas Metropolitan Police Departraent was made at the time the call was received by the Las Vegas
Metropolitan Police Department and that the recording was made by a fperz;::m with knowledge in the
course of a regularly conducted business activity of the Declarant or of the office of the Dec :

6. That such recording of the 91] calls made to the Lag Vegas Metropolitan . -
Police Department are 3 ragular \Practice of the Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Department and are
part of the activities of the Lay Vegas Metropolitan Police Department and the recording of the 911
calls are matters observed pursuant to a duty imposed by law,

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is trus and corect,

Executed on: Signatye: f
CUSTODIAN OERECORDS
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I LAS VEGAS METROPOLITAN POLICE DEPARTMENT RECORDINGS OF RADIO TRAFFIC

DECLARATION OF RESEARCH ASSISTANT, CUSTODIAN OF RECORDS CONCERNING
(TAPE AND COMPUTERIZED MATERIALS)

L, Leslie Loretto, hereby declare under the penalty of perjury:

1. That I am an employee of the Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Department, Las
Vegas, Nevada and in such capacity, I act as the Custodian of Records for the records and recordings
of 91 1and 311 calls made to and radio tapes recordedby the Las Vegas Metropolitan Police
Department.

2. That all calls made to 911 are recorded by the Las Vegas Metropolitan Police
Department onto DVDs and inte computerized records which materials are majntai for
approximately one vear. .

3. That I have examined the recordings mads by the Las Vegas Metropolitan
Police Department and that I have discovered that on Novernber 5, 2008 radio traffic was given in
reference to an event at 5001 E} Parguo Ave at or near 230] hours,

4. That I have made an exact, true, accurate and complete reproduction of the
above described radio traffic onto a CD and have printed an exact, true, accurate, and complets
repeoduction of the computerized information concerning this call, That [ have written the Event
Numnber 0811050039(8 onto that CD, Ither sealed that CD into an envelope, attached this -
declaration and the computerized information soncerning that radio traffic 1o that envelope and- -
wrote my name and the same Event Number on the outside of that envelope.

- That the original recording of the radio traffic (OVD and computer entries) by
the Las Vegas Metropolitan Polica Department was made at the time the call was received by the Las
Velias Metropolitan Police Department and that the recording was made by a person with kniowledge
if}'le ]e course of & regularly conducted business activity of the Declarant or of the office of the

clarant.

6. That such recording of the radio traffic transmitted on the Las Ve
Metropolitan Police Department radio channals are a regular practice of the Las Vegas I\E;npnlitan
Police Department and are of the activities of the Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Deparmment
and the recording of the radio traffic are matters observed pursuant to a duty imposed by law.

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct,

Executed on:  November 19, 2008 Signatuge: f ‘é
CYSFODIAN OF RECORDS
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'PALM LAW FIEM, LTD.

® i ®
) ORIGINAL ™ _

PATRICIA PALM Esgdg AUG 02 200
Isz Fzﬁgfs?ﬁg ggﬁ%ﬁ:& BLVD ;
LAS VEGAS, NV 89104 ' R
Phone: J?GE 386-0113

ga.x: 702) 386-0114

il: Egitl'icia.g[onla%@'l.mm
Attormey for Brian ]

DISTRICT CCURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

STATE OF NEVADA, ] CASE NO: C250630
Plaintiff, | DEPT NO. XVII
VS, | DATE: r—— "
BRIAN K. O’KEEFE, TIME: Nates ot Mlon

1

ot | Tl

NOTICE OF MOTION AND MOTION BY DEFENDANT O'KEEFE
ADMIT EVIDEECE SHOWING LVMPD HOMICIDE DETECTIVES HA
PRESERVED BLOOD/BREATH ALCOHOL EVIDENCE IN ANOTHER RECENT
CABE

COMES NOW Defendant, Brian K. O'Keefe, by and through his attorney
Patricia. Palm of Palm Law Fimm, Ltd., end hereby moves this Honorable Cnurl] '
for an order allowing ('Keefe to present evidence that in at least CII-'Ie other
recent homicide case, LYMPD Homicide Detectives did obtein blood/breath
alcohol testing of the murder suspect.

This Motion is made and based upon the record in this case, including
the papers and pleadings on file herein, the Constitutions of the United States
and the State of Nevada, the points and authorities set forth below, and any
argument of
1
111 |
11 FILED
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Nevada, the points and authorities set forth below, and any argumant of counse! at the

time of the hearing on this Motion,
Dated this 20th day of July, 2010.

Hif
Hi
it
ff
it
it
it
1
it
it
i
it
fit
Hi
i
i

Patricia Palm, Baf No. 6008
1212 Casino Center Bivd.

Las Vegas, NV 89104

Phone: (702) 388-2113

Fax: (702) 386-8114

n31100

L—r "
Docket 69036 Document 2015-36443




14a

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

14

0

21

72

23

24

25

26

27

28

E% NTS TH S

The Siate charged Defendant Brian K. O'Keefe with murder with use of a deadly
weapon. He entered a plea of not guilty and invoked his right fo a speedy trial.
State filed 2 motion to admit evidence of other crimes, which O'Keefe opposed.
Court ruled that the State could introduce evidence of threats to the alleged victi
Viclaria Whitmarsh, which witness Cheryl Mormis claims were made by O'Keefe. and hi
claim of proficiency at killing with knives, which Morris claims to have witnessed.
Court further ruled that the State could introduce certified copias of the prior Judgme
of Canviction for felony domestic battery, which involved Whitmarsh. Further, if OrKeefs
testified, then the State couid inguire into his other pricr felony convictions. Pursuant to
the Court's ruling on his pricr Judgments of Conviction, the State is parmitted tg
intreduce oniy the details of when O'Keefe was convicted, in which jurisdiction, and t
name of the offenses, and with the felony domestic battery, the fact that Whitmarsh h
testified against him in that case. 3/16/09 TT 2-10.

The instant case was tried before this Honorable Court beginning March 16,
2009. O'Keefe was prohibited from introducing evidence regarding Whitmarsh's menta
heaklth condition which caused her to bs erratic, have uncohtrolled anger, attem
suicide by overdosing and cutting herself with knives ang scissors when stregsed, an
required anger management therapy. After five days of trial, on March 20, 2009, t
jury retumed a verdict finding O'Keefe guilty of second degree murder with use of
deadly weapon. On May 5, 2009, this Court sentenced O‘'Keafa to 10 to 25 years for
second-degree murder and a consecutiva 98 {0 240 months (8 to 20 years) on the1
deadly wegpon enhancament.

C'Keefe timaly appealed to the Nevada Supreme Court. After briefing, the Cou
reversed O'Keefe's conviction, agreeing with him that the district court “sied by givi
the Staste's proposed insfruction on second-gegree murder becauss it set forth g
aiternative theory of second-degree murder, the charging document did not allege thi
aitemate theory, and no evidence supported this thecry.” The Court explained,

3
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State’s charging document did not allege that O'Keefs kilied the victim while he wa
committing an unlawful act and the evidence presented at triat did not support thi
theory of second-degree murder.” Q'Keefe v. State. NSC Docket No. 53859, Ordar
Reverzal and Remand {April 7, 2010), The Court further stated, “The district court’
error in giving this instruction was not harmiess because it is not clear bayond
reasonable doubt that a raticnal juror would have found O'Keefe guilty of second
degree murder absant the error” Id. at 2. Having reversed on this ground, the Cao
declined to address O'Kesfe's remairing contentions, which included a contention tha
the district court erred by refusing O'Keefe's raguest o prasent evidence of Whitmarsh'
prior suicide attempts, anger outbursts, anger management therapy, seif-mutilation, and
eratic behavior.

After remand ta this Court, trial was reset to bagin on August 23 2010,

STATEMENT QF FACTS

The pricr trial testimony in this case showed that Brian O'Keefe and Victor
Whitmarsh met in a treatment facility in 2001. 3117/69 TT 16, 3/19/08 TT 183-84. The
dated and co-habitated off and on and had what could be described as a very

tumultuous relstionship. 31909 TT 188-90. In 2004, O'Keefe was convicted
burglary for entering info the coupie's joint dwelling with the intent to commit a ¢rim
against Whitrmarsh, O'Keefe was sentenced to probation, but his probation w
revoked when he was convictad of a third offense of domestic battery agains
Whitmarsh, and he went to prison in 2008, 3/18/08 TT 139-40, 3/19/09 TT 187-88,
Whitmarsh testifisd against ('Keefe in the domestic battery casa. 3/18/09 TT 139.
When O'Keefe was released from prison in 2007, he met and began
relationship with Cheryl Mormis. 3/17/09 TT 10, 3/19/08 TT 189, He would often apeaj
1o Momris about his previcus relationship with Whitmarsh, and even exprassad to har
that ha still had strong feelings for Whitmarsh. 3/17/08 TT 13-14, 37. Momis ciaimed
trial that O'Keafe sald he was upset with Whitmarsh becauss she pul him in prisnﬁ a
he said he wanted Lo “kill the bitch,” 3/97/09 TT t4-17. Morris testified that O'esafe
&t one point to be with Whitmarsh, and then telepioned Morris, asking her to move

001102
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of their jointly shared apariment so Whitmarsh could move in. 3/17/08 TT 11. Morti
testified that Whitmarsh got on the phone with her during that caill and tokd her she ha
decided to resume her reiationship with O'Keefe. The two of them appeared to be

loving couple and were apen about their relationship. 3/16/08 TT 2589, 3/15/08 TT 18-
21, 30-358.

At about 10:00 p.m. on the evening of the incident, in November 2008,
neighbor who lived in the apariment balow O'Keefe and Whitmarsh heard what sh
described as thumping and crying noises coming from upstairs. 3/16/08 TT 185-88,
The noise became s0 loud that it woke her husband, Charles Toliver, who was in bed
next to her. |d. at 188-200, Toliver went upstairs t¢ inquire about the noise and found
the door to O’'Keefe's apartment open. Id, at 206-209. He yelled inside to gat th
occupants’ attention, at which time O'Keefe came out of the bedroom and shouted aj
Toliver to "come get herl™ |d. al 209-1C.  When Toliver entared the bedroom, he saws
Whitmarsh lying on the floor next to the bad and saw blood on the bed covers. Id. af
210. O'Keefe was hoiding her and saying "baby, baby, wake up, don't do me like this.”

Id. af 210, 224. O'Keefe did not stop Toliver from going in the apartment or otherwi
fight with him. Id, at 224. Toliver left the apartment immediately and shouted at
neighbor who was outside to call the police. Id. at 213. He also brought Tod
Armbruster, another neighbor, back upstairs. Id, at 214. O'Keefe was still holdin
Whitmarsh and told Armbruster to get the hell out of there. Id, at 215. Armbrus
calied 811. id. at 238. He thought that O'Keefe was drunk. Id. at 240, 245,

By this time, shortly after 11:00 p.m., police had arrived on the scene. 3/18/0
TT 215, 3/17/08 TT 85. When they entered the bedroom, they found Whitmarsh lying o
the floor next o the bed and an unarmed O'Keefe cradling her in his arms and strokin
her head. 3/17/09 at 87, 96. The police belleved Whitmarsh to be dead and orderad
O'Keefe to let go of her, but he refused. Id, at 51-52. 60-61, 87. The cfficery
eventually subdued him with a taser gun and carried him out of the bedroom. |d. 88,
O'Keafe was acting agitated, id. at 73, the officers testified that he had a strong odor oq
glcohot on him, and he appeared to be extremely intoxicated. M. at 127-28, 3/18/09 TT|
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170-78.  Much of his speech was incoherent, but at one paint he said that Whitmarsh
stabbed herself and he also said that she lred to stab him. 3/17/08 TT 56, 85, 92
They arested him and brought him to the homicide offices. 17/08 TT 177,
Subsequent o his amest, O'Keefe gave a rambling statement indicating he was
aware of Whitmarah's death or its cause. 3/18/09 TT 133. Police interviewed himnj
1:20 a.m., at which time he was crying, raiging his voice, talking to himself, and sluming.
Detective Wildemann stated that during the interview O'Kesfe smelled heavily of
aicohol, and when police took photographs of him at about 3:55 a.m., they had to hotd
him upright to steady him. 3/18/09 TT 14649, Wildemann said it was pretty obviou
that O'Keele had been drinking, however, law enforcemnent did not obtain a test for hi
breath or bicod alcohol level either before or after the interview. g

Whitmarsh had alsc been drinking an the date of the incident, and at the time
her death, her blood alcohol content was 0.24. 3/18/08 TT 94, 117. She died of
stab wound {0 her side and had bruising on the back of her head. |d, at 83, 103,
Medical Examiner Dr. Benjamin testified that Whitmarsh's toxicology screan indica
that she was taking Effexor and that drug should not be taken with aicohal. Id. at 109)
Whitmarsh had about three times (he target dosage of Effexor in har system. 3:‘19!091
TT 94-98, The combination of Effexor and alcohol could have caused amdety,
confusien and anger. 3/19/09 TT 95-88. Whitmarsh also had Hepatitis C and advanced
Cirthosis of the liver, which is known to cause bruising with only slight pressure to
body. 3/18/08 TT 93-87. Whitmarsh's body displayed multiple bruises at the time Dr
Benjamin examined her and the bruises were different colors, but she could not say th
they were associated with Whitmarsh's death or atherwise say how lang ago Whitma
sustained the bruises. 3/18/08 TT 115. DNA befonging to O'Keefe and to Whitma
was found on g knife at the scene. 3/18/09 TT 62-87.

O'Keefe testified. 3/18/09 TT 177. He acknowledged his problems with aleohol
and described his history with Whitmarsh. Jd. at 177-83. He disputed Morris's claim
that he said he wanted to kill Whitmarsh, but he acknowledged being angry with her, |d.
at 190. It was Whitmarsh who called O'Keefe and initigted their renewsd relationship|

]
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Id. at 181. He was aware that Whitmersh had Hepatitis C when ghe moved into hig
apartment. | at 197-98. In November, 2008, Whitmarsh was stressed because of hen
financial condition. 3/20/02 TT 17. A couple of days before the incident at issue here,
Whitmarsh confronted O’'Keefe with a knife. |d, 8t 18-15. She had been drinking and
was on medication. ld. O'Keefe had not been drinking that night and was able 1o
diffuse the situation. Id. st 1. On November 5, 2008, O'Keefe learned that he would
be hired for a new jcb and had two glasses of wine to calebrate. Jd. at 21-24. ('Kaefa
and Whitmarsh went to the Paris Casino where they both had drinks. Id at 24-25.
They retumed home, and she was upset and went upstairs while he reclined in the
passenger seat of the car for a period of time. |d, at 26-28. He went upstairs and then
smokaed outside on a belcony while she was in the bathroom. Id. at 28-30. He then
went in the bedroom and saw Whitmarsh coming at him with a knife. Ig, at 33. Ha
swung his jacket at her and toid her to get back. ld. He knew that she was mad at hir
about a lot of things, id. He grabbed the knife, she yanked & and cut his hand. 1d.
33. They struggled for a pericd of time. Id. et 33-36. During the struggle, she held t
knife and fell down, he fall on top of her and than he realized that she was bleading.
at 35-37. He was still drunk at this point and was trying to figure out what happened.
Id. at 37. He tried to stop the bleeding and panicked. Id. at 39, He tried taking cara
Whitmarsh and asked hia neighbor to call someone after the neighbor cams inta hi
room. Id. at 40. He became agitated when the neighbor brought another neighbor up
to look at Whitmarsh, who was partially undressed, rather than calling the paramedics;
id. at 41. O'Keefe denied hitting or slamming Whitmarsh, Id. gt 42. He testified that het
did not intentionally kill Whitmarsh, but feit responsible because he drank that night and
he should not have done so, Id, at 49

During trial, the State objected to the admission of any testimony concemin
Whitmarsh's suicide attempts and to admission of documents concering Whitmarsh’
medical history. 3/19/09 TT 81. O'Keefe's counsal submitted points and authorities &
ta the admigsibility of evidence showing that Whitmarsh had a history of suicid
afternpts by overdose and cutting hersslf, depression, panic disorder, anger cutbursts)

7
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and incidents with self-mutilation by cutting. See Defense Proposed Exhibit B (on fi
with this Court); 2 ROA 265. The Court found that Whitmarsh'’s attempted suicid
were not acts of viclence and found that the testimony and evidence from the medica
records wera not admissible. 3/20/09 TT 7-8. The Court also prohibited admission
evidence conceming her anger management classes. 1d.

ARGUMENT
’Kesfe has 3 fundamental federal and state constitutiona daht 1o press
gence hig defenge pertalning to the alleged victim W ikmarsh's menta
neaith condition and history and its man pptations through conduct inciuding
er pattern of sulcidal behavic and anger control oroblgms. in supoo rt of hig
ums regarding the seguence of svents gnd his innoce ictions durine :
Ingident ing to rsh’ th.

O'Keefe renews his request 1o present evidence in his defenss, by way of expe
testimony summarizing Whitmarsh's mental heaith history and condition and its
manifastations through conduct, by admission of portions from medical records
documenting the same,' and by way of his own testimony regarding his knowledge o
Whitmarsh’s mental health condilion and its manifestations.

Having been Whitmarsh's pariner on and off since 2001, O'Keefe was well aware
&t the time of the incident of her mental hegith history, which included multipde suicide
attempts, both by overdose and cutting herself with knives or scissors, was aware
she salf-mutilated, was aware that she had uncontrollabls anger cutbursts and
preblems when strassed over relationship issues and whan abusing drugs or alcohol
and that she was attending anger management counseling.

This evidence supports O'Keefe's lestimony regarding the events leading up to
Whitmarsh's death and his innocent response lo her aggression, and as such i iy
relevant and highly probative on the issues of wh_ether Whitmarsh was alone in thew

'The State has previously stipulated to the authenticity of these records, which are on
fite with the Court as Defendant's Proposed Exhibit B from the prior trial.
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apartment and having a fit of anger when the neighbors heard banging noises (as
O'Kesfe contends that she must have been and which would explain the lack of fresh
bruising as would be consistent with the State's prolonged-abuse theory of the case);
whether she had taken tha kitchen knife into the bathroam of the master bedroom whan
she was alone in the apanment {as O'Keefe contends she may have been preparing to
harm him, salf-mutilate, or commit suicide by overdosa and cufting, which is consisten
with the facts that she had three times her prescription dose of Effexor in her syste
and had an apparent injury on her hand): whether she was holding the knife whe
O'Kaefe entered the bedroom (O'Keefe contands that sha was holding the knifa an
surprised him), and whether she charged at O'Keefe in anger (as she has
documented history of anger control problerms, which may have bsen exacerbated b
the mixture of Effexor and akeohol in her systern).

The evidence related to Whitmarsh's mental health history is also corroborativel
avidence of O'Keefe's state of mind and whether he believed Whitmarsh was geing td
harm him when ghe came at him with the knife — he knew she was unstable and
dangerous when upset, especially when undar the influence of alcohal and drugs.

The madical records from which O'Keefe seeks to admit excerpts and upon
which his expert will rely show as follows:

October 2001 Admission to Montavista Hospital (when Whitmarsh and 8rian met}

Whitmarsh was admitted October 31, 2001 after she cut both wrists
with a knife in what she reported was her fourth suicida attempt. She
was on the medications Celexs, Xanax and Vistaril. She was diagnosed
with Major Depressive Episode, Panic Disorder with Agoraphobia.

May 2002 Admission to Montevista Hospital

Whitmarsh was admitted on May 21, 2002 because she'd been using
Xanax, Lortab, Oxycotin; she was biacking out and unable to function at
wark; withdrawal was severs; consequences of use included severs
dysfunction in her refationship with hushand from whom sha is separaied;
psychiatric history was reported as follows: “She has sevems anxisly and
dapression; she was suicidal and hospitalized st Montevista Hospital in
Qctober of 2001 for an overdose and culting her wrist. She also

4

n01107




10

11

12

13

14

is

1&

i7?

18

1%

20

21

2

23

24

2%

26

.

2B

September 2006 Admission Montevista Hospital (this sdmission was
Brian’s incarceration)

overdosed in 1983 and was hospitakized.” Her diagnosis was opiate
dependence, continuous, xanax dependence continuous, major
depression, recurmrent,

Whitmarsh was admitted September 26, 2008. She was diagnosed as
Bipolar, Dep; Polysub dep; liver cimhosis wiescites; Hep C: underweight,
gerd; social, marital. The Report of Dr, Allgower states “fook lethal doso
of Xanax requiring intubsation’'mechanical vantilation h/c aapression, also
has seif-inflicted wrist fac.” Form by Dr. Siagle states: “Ms Whitmarsh has
made at leas! 3 suicide atternpts. Receni sitempt could have been falal”
Report by Dr. Ajayi states that Whitmarsh's suicide atternpt resulted in
admission to ICU. She had been transferred from St Rose where she'
had been in ICU from 9/24/06 - 8/28/08, she overdosad on Xanax and
friend’'s morphine sfter an argument with her aestranged husband.
Diagnosis at 5t. Rose was Bipolar Disorder type 1, depressed vs recurrent
major depression and borderline personality traits. She raporfed 2
previous suicide alterrpls {1983 OD on pain meds after flght with
husband} end (QD on pills and cutting wrists in 2001). “She has been
saif-mutilating for the pasis 15 years and stated tha! she cuts herself
when sha is angry and the last tima she cut her left wrist was with a
pair of scissors on September 22, 2008. She complained of irritabiiity,
mood swings, difficully sleeping at night beceuse of recing thoughts, poor
appelile, anxiety, . . . She siso reports episodic euphoria, anger outbursts
and decreased need for sleep. She raporis ongoing conflict with her
estranged husband and her sister and her 21 year ofd daughter* Dr
Slagle documented poor impuise control, and that her 2001 admission to
Montevista was because “she was angry, screaming and “went
barserk™ after an argument with her husband and overdosed on piils
and cut hor wrist.” Drug end alcohol abuse hisfory: She has a history of
abusing Xanax back to at least 2001, history of dependence on Lortab,
Percocet, and Oxycotin dating back to 2002. Inpatient Detox at
Montevista in May 2002 followed by inpalient rehab through June 2002.
Most recently admifted for detox from Percocet and Lorab at Valley
Hospital in August 2006, Her diagnosis was: Biopalar disorder, type I,
depressed, benzodiazepine dependencs, opiale dependence, hx of
alcohel dependence in sustained full remission; bordarline perzanality
traits.... Hep C, Liver Cirrhosis,... Her trealment plan includsd anger
managemant.

She had racing thoughts and substantial mood swings since 2000: 2 prior
suicide atternpis in the 1980s both since she mamied her husbend: history
of high moods and anger problems; past history of very heavy alcohol use.
Hx of pain medication sbuse.
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Chert notes further show that Whitmarsh “‘sdmits to & history of self-
mutiiation. Most recently, she stabbed herself on her hands, August 22,
2006, “bacause | am not happy [with] myself.”

And “pt denies wanling to kil seif but does state when angry she will self-
mulifate and lake pills to cope fwith] emational pain. Admits to “taking
the pills because | was med [with] my hushand.”

Southern Navada Adult Mental Health October 2007 Admission (This admissiorA
was efter Brian's release from incarceration but while the couple was sepearated)

Whitmarsh took an overdose of pilig in an apparent suicide attempt.

(Emphasis added).

Whitmarsh's records demonstrate a patiern of self-mutilation by cutting and
guicide attempts by overdosing and cutting during ngry or berserk reactions to fights
with her husband and when she was not even in a relationship with O'Keefe. Thy
evidence supports O'Keefe's explanation for why it was Whitmarsh, and net he, wha
Brought the knife into the bedroom. However, a jury deprived of this evidence, andg
knowing of O'Keefe's prior falony domestic battery conviction involving Whitmarsh, i
likely to unfaidy assume that O'Keefe refrieved the knife from the kitchen to harm
Whittnarsh or that if Whitmarsh did bring the knife into the bedroom, she was doing sd
to protect herself.

O'Kesfe must be allowed 1o present this crucial evidence, as it comoborates hi
claim of seif-defense/accident, ie., that Whitmarsh was out of control and he
defending himselif, and during the struggle for the knife, the accident cccurred leading to
Whitmarsh's death. This Court has already ruleg, pursuant to the State’s bad
motion, that the State may introduce evidence that O'Keefe was convicted of felon
domestic battery involving Whitmarsh as rejevant to his motive and intent.

The State also presented svidence at the previous trial to show that Whitmars
was "very meek’ and submissive. 3/17/09 TT 15, 40, The State was also guick {0 poin
out during the previous trial that Whitmarzh had a wound on her hand, when a defens

11
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expert opined that she had no defensive wounds. 3/18/08 TT 156, O’Keefe must be
sliowed to rebut that evidence with evidence that Whitmarsh had a history of cutting
hersetf and suffered from uncontroliable anger and suicids! tendencies.

The Fifth, Sixth and Fourteenth Amendments to the United States Constitution,
a3 well as the Nevada Constitution, article 1, section 8, protect a criminal defandant’s]
right to a fair trial, at which he may confront and cross-examine withesses and present
evidence in his defense. Praclusion of this evidence violates O'Keafe's rights. Pointer
¥. Texas, 380 U.8, 400 (1965) {recognizing that the right of canfrontation requires that
¢riminal defendapt be given an opporunity to cross-examine the witnasses againsj

him); Chambers v. Migsissippi, 410 U.S. 284 204 (1973} (stating that ‘the rights to
confront and cross-examine witnessas and to call withesses in one's own behalf h

long been recognized as essential to due process®).

it is unclear in Nevada whether evidence of an alleged victim's prior mentz
heatih history including suicide attempts and anger control issues comes under the
for character avidence or whether it is simply subject ta a probative-value-versus-unfair-
preiudice test.

Other states’ oourts considering the edmissibility of evidence pertaining to
alleged victims’ mental health conditions have determined that the avidence is n
restricted by the rules peraining to chamcter evidence. Instead, the evidence i
deemad to be admissible $0 lung as relevant to a material issue. Ses State v. Stanley,
37 P.3d 85, 90 (N.M. 2001) (collecting cases and noting that a clear majority of co
held that evidence of suicide attempts by & victim in & homicide case is admissible t
show the victim's stete of mind); People v. Salcido, 246 CalApp.2d 450, 458-8
{Cal.App. 5th Dist. 1986) (same); Stala v. Jasger, 873 P.2d 404, 407-08 (Utah 1899
(medical records, containing statements that the victim had previously attempte
suicide, were admissible when introduced in a case where defendant claimed the victi
commitied suicide).

In Stagley, The New Mexico Suprame Courl concluded that it is net appropr
to consider such evidence as "character evidence® subject to the ruls preventin

1z

101110




id

11

12

13

14

15

1%

17

15

i3

20

21

2d

23

24

23

26

21

28

evidence of a person's characler or a trait of character from being admitted for the
purpese of proving canformity. That court reascned that the avidence is related to
mental iliness and its specific manifestations and not character. 37 P.3d at 375
Further, since the main purpose of the evidence rules is to search for the truth, a findin
of relevancy and the careful application of the probative-value-versus-unfair-prejudi

balancing test is sufficient to prevent the misuse of this evidence. d. et 375-76. Whe
& deceased person has a pattern of suicidal or violent behavior prior to the inciden
leading to his death, that evidence is relevant to the alleged victim's state of mind a
causation in 8 murder trial. 37 P.3¢ at 372-73. In Staniey, the court concluded that
alleged victim's pattam of suicic?a attempts and viclent or suicidal behavior dating back
to 1887, i.e., 11 years prior to the death in question, should have been admitted at trial
Id. at 374, The courl determined thet evidence that a deceased person suffered from
mentai iilness and had attempied suicide in the past "is not the type of evidence thal
has the unusual propensity to prejudice, confuse, inflams or mislead the fact finder. Id)
Finally, the court recognized that a defendant has a “fundamental right to present
evidence negating the State's evidence on causation and the fact finder should [be]
given the opportunity to consider such evidence and determine what weight, if any, tg
give to it in light of the cther evidence.” Id. at 374,

Similarly, in Sqicido, the California Court of Appeals determined that hospital
records showing the victim of an alleged murder had been treated for a suicide attemp'
are relavant to whether death was brought about by crimina agency. 246 CalApp.2da
458. The court stated that "in a murder case it is the victim's inclination or propensity to
commit suicide under emational stress that is relevant and any compelart eviden
which logically and reasonably tends to show this is admissible unless objectionabl
under some other rule of exclusion.” Id, at 458-60. The Court further recognized th
even a remote suicide attempt, when considered in light of several similar attempts, ha
evidentiary value. Id.

NRS 48.015 defines "relevan{ evidence" as "evidence having any tendency to
make the existence of any fact thet is of consequenca to the determination of the action
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more or less probabie than it would be without the evidence.” Pursuant to that statute
relevant evidence is admissible, however, it may be excluded its probalive value i
substantially outweighed by the danger of unfair prejudice, of confusion of the issues,
miskeading the jury, or by considerations of undue delay, waste of time or need
presentation of cumulative avidence. NRS 48.035. Here the evidence sought to
introduced is relevant on all of the issues set forth above, i.e., Whitmarsh's state
mind, Q'Keefe's state of mind, whether thera is an innocent explanation far the bangin
noises the neighbors heard, whether O'Keafe's claim that Whitmarsh had the knife i
likely to be true, and whether O'Keefe's claim that Whitmarsh was in an uncontrolled
of anger so thet he was defending himself from her when an acciden? caused her
is likely to ba true. Indeed, the probative value here is even greater because the ju
will be aware of O'Keefa's prior canviction for felony domastic battery and will likely tan
to disbelieve his claim that Whitmarsh brought the knife into the bedroom and was th
aggressor. There is no unfair prejudice to the State by allowing the jury to hear this
evidenca and determine for itself the weight to give it.

On the other hand. even if the evidence in question constitutes "character

evidence,” it is admissible as it tends to show that Whitmarsh was the iikely Aggressor in
the conflict leading to her death,

NRS 48.045(1)(b) provides that "[e]vidence of a person's character or g trait
his character is not admissible for the purpase of proving that he acted in mnfnrmi:j
therewith on a particular occasion, except: . . . [@)vidence of the characler or g trait of
character of the victim of the crime offered by an accused . . . and similar evids
offered by the prosscution to rebut such evidence.” Additionally, NRS 48.065(1) states,
“In gl cases in which evidence of characier or a trait of character of a person i
admissible, proofl may be made by testimony as to reputation or in the form of an
opinion.  On cross-examination, inquiry may be made into specific instances of
conduct.”

The Nevada Supreme Court has interpreted these statutes to require that an
accused, who claims he acted in self-defense, be permitied to present evidence of thel

14
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character of an alleged victim regardiass of the accussd's knowledye of the vicim'
charactar when it fends to prove the victim was the Iikely aggressor. Petty v. State, 11
Nev. 321, 326-27, 997 P.2d 800, 802-03 (2000). Proof may be established
testimony as to reputation or in the form of an opinicn. ld. An opinioh a5 o violent
character may even be based on knowledge of only one incident of violence. Fof
instance, in Petty, the Court held that the district court erred by axcluding testimony
from a prebation officer and police officar regarding their opinions as to the violent
character of the victim, even though the police officer's opinion was based upon only
one violent incident. 1d. Basec upon the foregoing authorties, Brian O'Keefa is ent
to present evidence in the form of his s opinion or reputation teslimony as
Whitmarsh's erratic character and probiems with anger control which caused her to
irationally and dangerously and tc ovardose and cut harself with knives and scissors.
Furthermore, at the time of the incident in question, Brian O'Keafe was awars
Whitmarsh's aggressive and erratic character and uncontroilable anger wherein sh
tumed to pills and cutting instruments. The Nevada Supreme Court has held that if th
accused, who is claiming he acted in self-defenss, is aware of specific acts of violen
by an alleged victim, then evidence as 1o those specific acts is admissible to show thel
accused’s state of mind at the time of the allege crime. |d. at 326-27, 957 P.2d at 803;
§2@ algo Burgeon v, State. 102 Nev. 43, 45-46, 714 P.2d 576, 578 (1986); Sanbom v,
State, 107 Nev. 399, 812 P.2d 1279 (1891). In Danig| v. State, 118 Mev. 458, 78 P.ad
890 (2003), the Nevada Supreme Court explained as follows:

[A] defendant shoutd be allowed to producs supporting evidence to prove
the particular acts of which the accused claims knowledge, thereby
proving the reascnableness of the accused's knowledge and
apprehension of the victim and the credibility of his assertions about his
state of mind. . . . The self-serving nature of an accused’s testimony about
prior violert acts of the victim makes corrobovating evidence of those acts
particudarly important for an accused's claim of self-dsfanse,

Id. at 516, 78 P.3d at 32 {citing State v _Daniels, 465 N.W.2d 633, 638 {(Wis. 1991)).
The admission of evidence of a victim's specific violent acts, regardiess of is
source, is within the sound and reasonable discretion of the trial court and is limited to

15
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the purposs of establishing what the defendant believed about the character of
victim. Daniel, 119 Nev. at 516, 78 P.3d at 32. In sum, not only may a defendan
present svidence regarding specific acts by victims where the accused is aware of
acts, but the defendant may aiso present comoborating evidence to prove the particula
acts of which the accused daims knowledge, "[Wihen a defendant claims salf-defen
and knew of refevant specific acts by a viclim, evidence of the acts can be prassn
through the defendant's cwn testimony, thraugh cross-examination of a surviving victim,
end through exirinsic proof.” Id. at 516, 78 P.3d at 32-33. Therefore, because Bria
O'Keefe was aware of Whitmarsh's prior acts of viclence, incliding violence to herse
by cutting/overdosing, and her anger controf problems, he is entitied to present not oni
his own testimony but any additional cormoborating evidence to establish those prio
acts.

Additionally, to the extent that the State may again seek to admit evidence
Whitmarsh's character of peacefulness, as it did during the previous trial by introducin
evidence that Whitmarsh was meek and submissive, O'Keefe has g right to confro
and crogs-examine the State's witnesses as to their knowledge of Whitmarsh's ang
fits wherein she screamed, went berserk, jost control, overdosed, and used cutti
instruments to do violence upon herself. See State v. Selig, 41 Nav. 113, 188 P. 2:3
(1817). U.5. Const. Amend VI; Nev. Const. arl. 1, sec. 8. Indeed, NRS 48.055(1)
specifically provides that when proof by testimony as to reputation or in the form of an
opinion has been given, “on cross-examination, inquify may be made into specifid
instances of conduct.”

CONCLUSION
Basad on the foregoing, Brian O'Keefe moves this Court for a ruling permitting

him fo present expert testimony summarizing Whitmarsh’s mental heaith history and
condition and its manifastations, evidence from the medical record documentatio
discussed herein, and his own testimony showing that she had a pattern of prior suicidj
sttempts through overdose of pills and cutting, and a history of anger outbursts, angen
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managemant therapy, seff-mutilaton, and ématic behawvior. All of this evi
carroborates and supports his'ciaim that he reasonably believed Whitmarsh's state o
mind was such that she attemnpting to cause him sericus injury at the time of th
incident, his cfaim that she was the aggresscr, and his explanation of the circumstances]
ieading to Whitmarsh's accidental death.
DATED this 20th day of July, 2010

PALM LAW FIRM, LTD.

Patricia Palm, Bar No. 6009
1212 Casino Center Blvd.
Las Vegas, NV 89104
Phone: {702) 386-9113

Fax: (702) 386-0114
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RECEIPT OF COPY
|, the undersigned, acknowledge that on the day of
2010, | received a true copy of the foregeing NOTICE OF MOTION AND MOTION BY
DEFENDANT O'KEEFE TO ADMIT EVIDENCE PERTAINING TO THE ALLEGEj
VICTIM'S MENTAL HEALTH CONDITION AND HISTORY, INCLUDING PRIO
SUICIOE ATTEMPTS, ANGER OUTBURSTS, ANGER MANAGEMENT THERAPY,
SELF-MUTILATION AND ERRATIC BEHAVIOR.

CLARK COUNTY DISTRICT ATTORNEY

By:
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NOTC

PALM LAW FIRM, LTD. '
PATRICIA PALM L 29 /
STATE BAR NQ. 6009 2 Pl g
1212 CASINO CENTER BLVD.

LAS VEGAS, NV 89104 o T i
FAX: 702-386.9114 T oy
EMALL: patricia. palmiaw@gmail.com

GISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
Case No.: C250630
Dept. No.: XVH

r mzm
Yalea of Expit Withuitin

BRIAN K. O'KEEFE, area }
e | RIS

STATE OF NEVADA,
Plaintiff,

va.

SUPPLEMENTAL NOTICE OF DEFENDANT'S EXPERT WITNESSES
[NRS 174.234(2)]
DATE:

TIME:
TO: THE STATE OF NEVADA, PLAINTIFF, and
TQ: DAVID ROGER, DISTRICT ATTORNEY, Attorney for Plaintiff,

YOU, AND EACH OF YOU, WILL PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that Defendant, Brian

K. O'Keafa, by and through his attorney, PATRICIA PALM of PALM LAW FIRM, LTD.|

imends to call the following experts in his case in chief, in addition to those experts wha
have besn previously noticed and whose reports have previously been provided:

1. GEORGE SCHIRQO, 5004 W. Admiral Doyle Dr,, New Iberia, LA 70580, an expe .

in forensic science. Should this witness testify, ha will testify in the area of crimj

scene analysis, crime scene investigation, processing of crime scanes, collection

and preservaticn of evidence, latent print comparison, footwear examination,

RECEIVED
JUL 29 200 5

2 %1’7
CLERK OF THE COURT P
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. TODD CAMERON GREY, M.D., Medicai Examiner's Office, State of Utah, 48 N,

. LOUIS F. MORTILLARO, PHD, 501 S. Rancho Drive, Ste. F-37, Las Vagas, NV

. TAWNI CHRISTENSEN, M.D,, 540 Summer Mesa Dr., Las Vegas, NV 89144, an

DNA evaluations, and defansive and accidental wounds, and will give hig
opinions rated thereto.

{The scope of expected testimony listed above and the raport previously given
have been supplemented; an updated CV and supplemental report arj
attached. ).

Medical Drive, Salt Lake City, UT 84113, an exper in general pathotogy and
cause and manner of death. Should he testify he will testify in the area

general pathology, cause and manner of death, and specific issues related to thi
casa, including but not imited to the autopsy report, the extent/nature of waun
and injuries in this case and the physical condition of the deceased's body. Dr
Grey will also testify regarding aspects of the case that may assist the jury i
reaching a verdict including but not limited to physical evidence
interpretation of the autopsy report, protocol, and photographs, including ¢ri
scene photographs, {CV is attached.)

89108, an expert in clinical psychology, Should he testify, he will tastify in
area of the mental health history and conditicn and diagneses of the alleged
victim as documented in her medical records, including but not limited to her
history of suicide attempta by overdose and cutting, major recurment depression)
amaety disorder as comorbidity, panic attacks, polysubstanca abuse, se-
mutilation, anger outbursts and anger control problems, bipolar disorder. and
borgerline personality traits, and explain how the wictim's mental health
conditionrs might have affected her at the time of the incident. (CVis attached).

expert in the area of emergency medicine and medical scienca. Should ahg
testify, she will testify in the area of the effects of glcohol and

WN1118
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Effexar/Venlafaxine, the levels of these detected in the autopsy toxicology repcvrj
in this case, and the alleged victim's medical condition and targel dosage o
Effexor as documented in her medical records.

(CV and report previously provided),
Dated this 28™ day of July, 2010.

RECEIPT of & copy of the Suppiemental Notice of Defendant's Expert Wmmwﬂ

is hereby acknowledged.

PALM LAW FiRM, LTD.

A

Patricia A. Palm, Bar Ne. 6009
1212 Casina Center Bivd.

Las Vegas, NV 89104

{702) 386-8113

Attomey for Defendant O'Keefe

RECEIPT OF COPY

, 2010,

pateD: _ Syl 49
W

DISTRICT ATTORNEY'S OFFICE

200 Lawis Ave., ég Floor

Las Vegas, NV 69155
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HOME PA

GEORGE SCHIRO, MS, F-ABC
CONSULTING FORENSIC SCIENTIST

FORENSIC SCIENCE RESOURCES®
P.O. Box 188
CADE, LA 70519 USA
CELL: (337) 322-2714
E-MAIL,: i €S.C

EDUCATION

Master of Science, Industrial Chemistry - Forensic Science

Including five hours of credit in Forensic DNA Analysis of Biological Materials and accompanying lab
course, three hours of credit in Quality Assurance and Bioinformatics, three hours of credit in
Biachemistry, two hours of credit in Forensic Analysis of DNA Data, and three hours of credit in
Experimental Statistics

Univessity of Central Flonida, Orlande, FE.

Bachelor of Science, Microblology
Including three hours of credit in Genetics

Louisiana State University, Baton Rouge, La.

PROFESSIONAL CERTIFICATION

Certificate of Professional Competency in Criminatistics, Fellow of the American Board of
Criminalistics, Specialty Area: Molecular Biology

PROFESSIONAL TRAINING ATTENDED

March 2010 #2010 Forensic Symposijum — Advanced Death Investigation” — Instructors; Dr,
Karen Sullivan, Dennis McGowan, George Schiro, Rae Wooten, Dr. Richard
Weems, and Dr. Mark Guilbean, North Georgia Callege & State University,

Dablonega, GA :

February 2010 “IS0O 17023 and Audit Preparation” - Instructor: David Epstein, Forensic
Quality Services, New Thenia, LA

August 2009 “Actual Innocence: Establishing Innocence or Guilt, Forensic Science Friend or

Foe to the Cniminal Justice System™ — Instructars; various, The Center for
American and Injerpational Law, Plano, TX

June 2009 “Digital Photography for Law Enforcement” — Instructors: Donnie Barker and Joe
Russo, Insntute of Police Technology and Managemem, Lafayette, LA

hitp:/iwww forensicacienceresources.com/GeorgeC'V. him "ﬁ@)ﬁa{a 20




+ . George Schiro Curricutum Vimb

March 2008

February 2008

October 2007

Febmary 2007

Februgry 2006

December 2004

June 2003

May 2003
Aprit 2003

January 2002

March 2001

February 2000

MNovember 199G
March 1998
November 1997

Cctober 1997

http://www. forensicseienceresources.com/GeorgeCV.htm
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“Forensic Sympasium 2008 — The Investigation of Sex Crimes and Deviant.
Behavior” — Instructors: Roy Hazelwood, George Schiro, Dr. Brent Paterline, Jeff
D. Branyon, Tim Relph, and Dr. Danicl J. Sheridan, North Georgia College &
State University, Dahlonega, GA

“Conference on Crimes Against Women™ — Instructors: various, Dallas, TX

“Integrity, Character, and Ethics in Forensic Science™ — Instructor: Dan B,
Gunnell, Louisiana Association of Forensic Scientists (LAFS) Fail 2007 Meeting,
Baton Rouge, LA

“Anatomy of a Wrongful Conviction: A Multidisciplinary Examination of the
Ray Krone Case™ — Co-chairmen: George Schiro and Dr, Thomas Streed
American Academy of Forensic Sciences Meeting, San Antonio, TX

“Solving the South Louisiana Serial Killer Case — New Approaches Blended
With Older Trusted Techniques” Co-chairmen: George Schiro and Ray

Wickenheiser, American Academy of Forensic Sciences (AAFS) Meeting,
Seattle, WA

“National Forensic Scignce Technology Center (NFSTC) Auditor Workshop™ —
Instructors: Mark Nelson, John Wegel, Richard A. Guerreri, and Heather Subert

“CODIS v5.6 Software Training™ — Instructor: Carla Heron, Baton Rouge, LA

"DNA Auditor Training" - Instructors: Richard A. Guerreni and Anja Einseln,
Austin, TX

*“Statistical Analysis of Forensic DNA Evidence” - Instructor Br. George
Carmody, Barvey, LA

“Association of Forengic DNA Anajysts and Administrazors (AFDAA)
Workshops™ - Instructors: S. Cribari, Dr. T. Wang, and R. Wickenheiser, Austin,

TX

"Basic Forensic DNA Analysis™ - Instructor: Dr. Pat Wojtkiewicz, Baton Rouge,
LA

DNA Workshop, AAFS Meeting, Reno, NV

“Advanced AmpFl STR™ & ABI Prism ™ 310 Genetic Analyzer Training” -
Instructor: Catherine Caballero, PE Bicsystems, Bator Rouge, LA

“DNA Typing with STRs - Silver Stain Detection Workshop” - Instructors: Dr.
Brent Spoth and Kimberly Huston, Promega Corp., Madison, W1

“Laboratory Auditing” - Instructors: Dr. William Tilstone, Richard Lester, and
Tony Longhetti, NFSTC Workshop, Baton Rouge, LA

“Forensic Microscopy”™ - Instructor: Gary Laughlin, McCrope Research Institute,
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La State Police Traiming Academy, Baton Rouge, LA

“Presenting DNA Statistics in Court” - Instructors: Dr. Bryce Weic and Dir.
George Carmady, Promega Symposium, Scottsdale, AZ

“Forensic DNA Analysis” - Instructors: Pat Wojtkiewicz and Michelle Gaires,
North La. Crime Lab, Shreveport, LA

DNA Workshop, AAFS Meeting, New York, NY

“Forensic DNA Testing™ - Instructors: Dr. Jim Karam and Dr. Sudhir Sinhg,
Tulane University Medical Center, New Orleans, LA

“Bloodstain Pattern Analysis and Crime Scene Docurnentation™ - Instnuctors:
Paulette Sutton, Steven Symes, and Lisg Elrod North La, Crime Lab, Shreveport,
LA

“Introduction to Forensic Fiber Microscopy™ - Instructor: Skip Palenik, Acadiana
Crime Lab, New Ibena, LA

DNA Workshop, AAFS Meeting, Nashvilie, TN

“Personality Profiling and Crime Scene Assessment” - Instructors: Rey
Hazelwood and Robert Ressler, Lovola University, New Orleans, LA

“Basic Forensic Serology,” FBI Academy, Quantico, VA

DNA Workshep - Instructor: Anne Montgomery, GenTest Laboratories,
Southern Association of Forensic Scientists {SAFS) Spring Meeting, Savannah,
GA

Attended the Second International Symposium on the Forensic Aspects of DNA
Analysis, FBI Academy, Quantico, VA

“Introduction to Human Immunoglobulin Allotyping” - Instructor;
Rr. Moses Schanfield, AGTC, La State Police Crimpe L.ab, Baton Rouge, LA

Bone Grouping Yechniques Workshop - Instructor: Dr. Robert Gaensslen and
Dr. Henry Lee, University of New Haven, New Haven, CT

Attended the International Symposium on the Forensic Aspects of DNA Analysis,
FBI Academy, Cuentico, VA

DNA Workshop, SAFS Fall Mesting, Clearwater, FL

“Non-Isctopic Detection of DINA Polymotphisms” - Instructor: Dale Diykes,
AGTC, North Le. Crime Lab, Shreveport, LA

“Microscopy of Hairs™ - Insiructor: Skip Palenik, North La. Crime Lab,
Shreveport, LA

N01122
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April 1988 “Analysis of Footwear and Tire Evidence” - Instructors: Max Courtney and Ed
Hueske, North La. Crimg Lab, Shreveport, LA

September 1987 Introduction o Forensic Genetics Waorkshop - Instructor; Dr, Moses Schanfield,
SAFS Fall Meeting, Atlanta, GA

March 1957 Ispelectric Focusing Workshop, SAFS/ SWAFS/ SAT Combined Spring Meeting,
Baton Rouge, LA

June 1986 Atiended the International Symposium on Forensic Immunology, FBI Academy,
Quantico, VA

February 1996 “Collection and Preservation of Physical Evidence™ - Instructor: Dale Morsau,

' FBI School, Meatairie, LA

August 1585 “Atomic Absorption in Determining Gunshot Residues,” FBI Academy,
Quantice, VA !

April 1985 “Arson Accelerant Detection Course™ - Instructors: Rick Tontarski, Mary Lou
Fultz, and Rick Stroebel, Bureau of Alcohel, Tobacco, and Firearms (BATF) Lab,
Rockville, MD

July 1984 “"Questioned Documents for the Investigator” - Instructor: Dale Morean, FEI

School, Baton Rouge, LA

FROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

2002 - present Acadiana Criminalistics Laberatory — New Iberia, LA
An ASCLD-L AB accredited laboratory

Employed as a Forensic Chemist - DNA Technical Leader, Duties include incorporating the
DNA Advisory Board (DAB) standards, accountability for the technical operations of the lab's
biclogy section, conducting DNA analysis using the 13 STR core loci and Y STR in casework,
DNA research, forensic science training, and crime scene investigation. Qualified as an expent
over 145 times n 29 Louisiana parish courts, Pepe County Arkansas, San Bernardino County
California, Lee County Florida, Washington County Mississippi, St. Louis County Missouri,
Clark County Nevada, Bronx County New York, Cabell County West Virginia, federal court,
and two Louisianz city courts. Has qualified as an expert in the following areas: latent fingerprint
development; serology, crime scene investigation; forensic science; rajectory reconstruction;
shgeprint identification, crime scene reconstruction; bloodstain pattern analysis; DNA analysis;
fracture maich analysis, and hair comparison Has also consulted on cases in 23 states, for the
United States Army and Air Force, and in the United Kingdom Worked over 2900 cases,
Indepeendently contracted DNA technical auditor with NFSTC and Forensic Quality Services -
[nternatipnal, Contracted DNA Technical Leader to the Southwest La. Crime Lab in Lake
Charles, LA from 2005-2008. {s a member of the Lafayette Parish Sexual Assault Response

Team (SART). Is also & member of the La, Foundation Against Sexual Assault (LAFASA)
Training Team. '

htip://wnww. forensicscienceresources, com/GeorgeCV. hitm ?ﬂglﬂgl 19 3
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1988 - 2001 Louisiana State Police Crime Lab - Baton Rouge, LA
An ASCLD-LAB accredited laboratory

Employed as 8 Forensic Scientist 2, Duties included incorporating the DNA A dvisory Board
(DAB) standards and conducting DINA analysis using the 13 STR core loci in casework. Duties
have also included setting up and developing methads for the analysis of blood and body fluids
using biological, chemical, microscopic, immunclogical, biochemical, ¢lectrophoretic, and
1scelectric focusing technigues; applying these metheds to criminal investigations; and testifying
1 the results in courl. Additional duties included crime scane investigation/reconstruction; latent
print development; fracture match comparison; projectile tajectory determination; shoeprint
comparison, hair examination; bloed spater interpretation; and training personnel in various
aspects of forensic science.

1984 — 1988 Jefferson Farish Sherifl"s Office Crime Lab ~ Metainie, LA

Employed as Crirninalist (I). From 11/85 to 4/88 duties included collection and analysis of
bleod, body fluids, hairs, and fibers using microscopic, immunological, biochemical, and
chemical techniques. Also testified to the results of these analyses in court. Trained wnder Senior
Forensic Biologist Joseph Warren. From 6/84 to 10/85 duties included marijuans analysis, arson
analysis, gunshot residue detection, hit and run paint analysis, and development of latent
fingerprints. Trained under Lab Director Ron Singer.

PROFESSIONAL PAPERS

“A Cold Hit...Relatively Speaking” presented at the International Association of Forensic Sciences 18%
Triennial Meeting in New Orleans, LA, July 25, 2008. Also presented as “We Arc Family...the Key to
Solving a Series of Rapes™ at the 2008 Southern Association of Forensic Scientists Meeting in
Shreveport, LA,

“Criminatistics Errors, Omissions, Problems, and Ethical Issues” presented as part of the “Anatomy of a
Wrangful Conviction: A Multidisciplinary Examination of the Ray Krone Case” workshop at the 2007
AAFS Meeting in San Antonio, TX; as pant of the LAFS Fall 2007 Meeting in Baton Rouge, LA; and as
part of “Actual Innocence: Establishing Innocence or Guilt, Forensic Science Friend or Foe to the
Crminal Justice System™ at The Center for American and Internatienal Law in Plano, TX.

“Using the Quelity Assurance Standards fior Forensic DNA Testing Laboratories to Distinguish the
Unqualified Forensic DNA Experts From the Qualified Forensic DNA Experts” presented at the 2007
AAFS Meeting in S8an Antonio, TX and at the AFDAA 2007 Winter Meeting in Aystin, TX.

“Investigative Uscs of DNA Databases” prosemted as part of the “Solving the South Lowisiana Serial
Kiiler Case — New Approaches Blended With Older Trusted Techniques™ warkshop at the 2006 AAFS
Meetmg in Seattls, WA

“Trace DNA Analysis: Casework Experience” presented es a poster at the 2004 AAFS Meeting in
Dalilas, TX and as a talk at the July 2003 AFDAA Meeting in Austin, TX. Also presented as “Inferesting
Casework Using AmpFISTR® Profiler Plus® and COftler® Kits™ at Applied Biosystems' “Future
Trends in Forensic DNA Technology,” September, 2003 in New Orleans, LA.

“Extraction and Quantification of Human Deoxyribonucleic Acid, and the Amptification of Human

hitgsfwww forensicscienceresources.com/GeorgeCV him ?IZQQ(‘Q}.I- j 2 4
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Short Tandem Repeats and a Sex [dentification Marker from Fly Larvae Found on Decomposing
Tissue” 2 thesis to fulfill one of the Master of Science requirements. Sweeessfully defended on July 13,
2001 at the University of Central Florida, Orlando, Florida, Presented af the 2004 AAFS Meeting in
Dalies, TX, the Spring 2002 La. Association of Forensic Scientists (LAFS) Meeting, and the January
2003 AFDAA Meeting in Austin, TX. '

“Admimistrative Policies Dealing with Crime Scene Operations”™ published in the Spring 1999 issue of
Sotthern Lawman Mogazine.

"Shooting Reconstruction - When the Bullet Hits the Bone” presented at the 10th Armjversary
Convention of the La, Private Investigators Association (LPIAY National Association of Legal
Investipators (NALI} Region IV Seminar, September 13, 1997, New Crieans, LA, Licensed as
continying education for Texas Private Investigators by the Texas Board of Private Investigators and
Private Security Agencies. Published in the Fall 1998 issue of Scurhern Lawman Magazine.

“Using Videotape to Document Physical Evidence™ presented at the Seventh Arnual Convention of the
LPIA/NALI Region [V Seminar, August 16, 1996, New Orleans, LA. Licensed as continuing education
for Texas Privats Investigators by the Texas Board of Private Investigators and Private Security
Agencies. Published in April 1997 issue of Fhe LPIA Journol. An edited varsion was published in the
Winter 1998 issue of Southern Lawman Magazine.

“Collection and Preservation of Blood Evidence from Crime Scenes” disuibuted as part of a blood
wllection workshop heid at the Jefferson Parish Coroner’s Eighth Annual Death Investigation
Conference, November 17, 1995, Harshan, LA. Presented as continving legal education by the La. Bar
Asgociation. Electrenically published on the Word Wide Web at the Crime Scene Investigation Web .
Page (http-//police2.ucr.edu/csi ktm). Published in the September/October 1997 issue of the Journal of
Forensic ldentificarion. Referenced in the 7™ edition of Technigues of Crime Sgene Investipation by
Barry A J, Fisher.

“Collectzon and Preservation of Evidence” presented at La Foundation Against Sexual Assault/ La.
Digtrict Attomeys Agsociation sponsored conference, “Meeting the Challenge: Investigation and
Prosecution of Sex Crimes,” March 3, 1994, Lafayette, LA Presented as continuing kegal education by
the La, Bar Association. Published in the Forensic Medicine Sourcebook. Electronically published on
the World Wide Web at the Crime Scene Investigation Web Page (hitp://police2. ucr.edw/csi hitm). Also
published in Nanogram, the official pubtication of LAFS. A modified version of the paper was
presenied at the Sixth Annual Convention of the LPTA, August 18, 1995, New Orleans, LA the NALI
Region [V Continuing Education Seminar, March 9, 1956, Biloxi, M5; and the Texas Assaciatipn of

i vesti {TALI) Winter Seminar, February 15, 1997, Addison, TX Published in the
July/August 1996 issue and the September/Ociober 1996 issue of The Texas Investigator. Electronically
publisised on the World Wide Web at TALI’s Web Page (http://pimall.com/tali/evidence htmt).

Published in the May 2001 issue of The fnformant, the official publication of the Professional Povate
1 jatio 0. An updated version was presented at La Foundation Against

L
Sexual Assault/La. District Atiorneys Association sponsored conference, “Collaborating to STOP
Violkence Against Women Conference,™ March 12, 2003, Lafayette, LA

“The Effects of Fecal Contamination on Phosphoglucomutase Subtyping” presented at the 1989 AAFS
Meeting heid in Las Vegas, Nevada and at the Fall, 1987 SAFS Meeting held in Atlanta, Georgia,

"A Report on Gamma Marker (Gm) Antigen Typing” presented at the Fall, 1986 SAFS Meeting heid in
Auburmn, Alabama and at the Summer, 1986 LAFS Mecting,

o
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“An Improved Method of Glyoxylase [ Analysis™ co-presented with Joseph Warren et the Summer,
1986 LAFS Meeting.

ARTICLES PUBLISHED

“Forensic Science and Crime Scene Investigation: Past, Present, and Future” published in the Wittes
2000 issue of American Lawman Magazine,

“New Crime Scenes — Same Old Problems™ published in the Winter 1999 issug of Southern Lawiman
Maguzine,

“Shoeprint Evidence: Trampled Underfoot” published in the Fall 1999 issuc of Southern Lawmarn
Magazine.

“LASCL: A Model Organization” published in the Surmmer 1999 issue of Southern Lawmarn Magazine.

“Applications of Forensic Science Analysis to Private Investigation” published in the July 1999 issue of
The LPIA Journal,

TRAINING CONDUCTED

Have conducted training at the following seminars and have mained the following orgenizations and
agencies in crime scene investigation, forensic science, and/or the collection and preservation of
evidence: Fourth and Seventh International Conferences of Legal Medicine held in Panama City,
Panama;, U.S. Smte Depariment’s Anti-Terrorism Assistance Program Police Executive Seminar;
Intellencs 27" Annual Conference; AAFS; American Chemical Society; AFDAA,; Forensic Science
Education Conference; SAFS; Southern Institute of Forensic Science; University of Nevada Las Vegas
Biotechnology Center, Professional Private Investigators Associstion of Colorado; Indiana Coroner’s
Training Board; DNA Security, Ine. Open House; South Carolina Coroners Association; Forensic
Symposia 2008 and 2010, North Georgia College & State University, Dahlonegn, GA; Palm Bay Police
Dept,, Palm Bay, Florida, CGEN 5200, Expernt Testimony in Forensic Science, University of Nopth
Texas Health Sciepce Center, Ft. Worth, TX: Mississippi Society for Medical Technology: Forepsic
Investipation Research & Juvestigation; La. State Coroners® Association; Jefferson Parish Coromer’s
Office Eighth Annual Death Investigation Conference; Southern Unjversity Law Center; La State
University Chemisiry Department Seminar; Chemistry 105, Southeastem Louisiana University;
University of Louisiana at 1afayette Biology Club; Louisiana Homicide Investigators Association;
Louisiana Division In ipnal Assgciation for Identification; U.S. Department of Justice La.
Middle District Law Enforcement Coordinating Committee Crime Scene Investigation Workshop: La
State University’s Law Enforcement Training Program Scientific Crime Investigator’s Institute; La.
State University’s Centinuing Law Enforcement Education School; La. State Police Traitting
Academy’s Advanced Forensic Investigation School: La, District Attorneys Assoctation; La. Southeast
Chiefs of Police Association; Acadiana Lew Enforcement Training Academy: Caddo Parish SherifF's
Office; Mystery Writers of America - Florida Chapter; NALI Continuing Education Seminars; TALT;
Lafayetic Parish Shenff’s Office; Iberia Pacish Sheriff's Office; Jefferson Parish Sheriff's Office
Training Academy; Kenner Police Dept.: §t. Charles Parish 1{T"s Office; Terrebonne Parish
. - Bast Felici ish Sherift

Sheriff’s Qffice; 1fi"s Office; Tennessee Association of Investipators; East
N01126
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Baton Rouge Parish Sheriff*s Office; West Baton Rouge Pari rift's Office; Vermilion Parish
Sheriff's Office, Washington Parisk Rape Crisis Cemter Volunteers; Mississippt Professional
Investigators Association; Enst Baton Rouge Stop Rape Crisis Center Volunteer Physicians; Stuller
Place 3exual Assault Response Center Volunteers; Evangeline and St Landry Parish Rape Crisis
Volunteers; Tri-Parish Rape Crisés Volunteer Escorts; LPIA; La. Foundation Against Sexual Assauit,
Loussiana Society for Medical Technology; Baton Rouge Society for Medical Technolegy; Baton Rouge
Police Dept, Sex Crimes Unit, Crime Scene Unit, and Traffic Homecide Unit, Violence Against Women
Conference, Family Focus Regiona! Conference; Qur Lady of the Lake Hospital Emergency Room
Personmel; Sexual Assault: Effective Law Enforcerent Response Seminaz: La, State Police Training
Academy; La. Association of Scientific Crime Investigators (LASCI); LAES; and the Basic Police
Agademy (La. Probation and Parole, La. Dept. of Public Safety, La Motar Vehicle Police, and La. Dept
of Wildlife and Fisheries).

PROFESSIONAL ORGANIZATIONS

International Society for Forepsic Genetics

i ssociation oodstain Analysts (Full Member)
AAFS (Fellow)
Asmenican Board of Criminalistics (Molecular Biology Fellow)

American Society for Testing and Materials Commities E-30 on Forensic Sciences
AFDAA (Chatrperson 2004-2005, Fellow

Associatjion for Crime Scene Reconstruction
SAFS

LAFS ( Editor of Nenogram, the official publication of LAFS - July 1994 to May 1998, President -
1990, Vice President - [989) :
LASC]

OTHER ACCOMPLISHMENTS

Analyzed evidence and issued a report in the 1991 La. State Police mvestigation of the assassination of
U. 5. Senator Huey P. Long,

Contributing author o the Forensic Medicine Sourcebook, edited by Annemarie S. Muth,

One of several technical advisers to the non-fiction books Blvod and DNA Evidence, Crime-Solving
Jcience Experiments by Kenneth G. Rainis, ./ {/nmasked_The Trial The Trih, and the Media by
ML Rantala and Pockes Partner by Dennis Evers, Mary Miller, and Thomas Glover.

One of severa! technical advisers 1o the fictional books Crusader 't Cross by James Lee Burke,

Company Mon by Juseph Finder, Sgvgge Are by Danielle Girard, and Bones jn the Buckyard by Florence
Clowes and Lois J. Blackbumn.

Featured on the “Without a Trace” and "Throygh the Camera's Eve" episodes of The New Derectives
television show that first aired on the Discovery Channel, May 27, 1997 and June 11, 2002

Featured on the “No Safe Place” episode of Forensic Sifes that first aired on Couwrt TV, January 3, 2007

http:ffm, forensicseienceresources. com/GeorgeCV . htm " ﬂ&lg} ] 2 T
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Featured on the “Hung Up” episode of Exreme Forensics that first aired on the [nvestigation Discovery
Channel, October 13, 2008,

Featured on the “Knock, Knock, You're Dead” episode of Forensic Fuctor that first aired on the
Discovery Channel Canada, April 16, 2009.

Recipient of the second Young Forensic Scientist Award given by Scientific Sleuthing Review.
Formerly a columnist for Sourhern Lawman Magazine.

Authored and managed two federal grants that awarded the La. State Police Crime Lab $147,000 and
$237,000 to set up and develop a DNA laboratory,

A member of the La. State Police Crime Lab’s ASCLD-LAB accreditarion preparation committee,

Featured in the books The Bune Lady: Life as ¢ Forensic Anthropologin by Mary Manhein, Rope Burns
by Robert Scott, Smfin Acres: The Angrv Vigiim by Chester Pritchert, An {nvisible Man by Stephanic A.
Stantey, Soff Targets, A Woman s Guide to Survival Yy Detective Michael L. Yamado, Kirstin laise
Lobato's Unregsonable Canviction by Hans Sherrer, Zombie CSU,_The Eorensics af the Living Degd by
Jonathan Maberry, and Science Fuir Winners: Crime Scene Science by Karen Romano Young and

David Geldin.
* Featured o an episode of Split Screen that first aired on the Inrdependent Film Channel, May 31, 1995,

Featured as a character on the “Kirstin Lobato Casg™ episode of Guilty or Innocent? that first aired on
the Discovery Channel, April 1, 2005,

http: fwww. forensicscienceresources. com/GeorgeC V. itm TQQQQJ‘ 1 28
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ForeRic SCIENCE RESOURCES®

P.0. Box 188, Cade, LA 70519 USA&(337) 322-27244Gjschiro@xs com
Tuly 27, 2010

This is & supplemental report to the FSR 3-09 report issued 3/15/09 by George Schiro.

Case No.; FSR 3-09

Client: Palm Law Firm, Ltd., 1212 Casino Center Bivd., Las Yegas, NV 85104

Client Case No.: C250630, Brian O'Keefe

Dates Case Accepted: 1/26/09 and 7/14/10

Case Documentation Received snd Examined By: George Schiro

Dates of Analysis: 1/31/08 to 3/15/09 and 7/18/10 to 7/27/10

Type of Exzmination Requested: Review case documentation, particularly the parts related to
collection and preservation of evidence and any information that might aid in scene analysis and
reconstruction. ;

Specimens Examined: Case documentation, photographs, and a DVD
Analytical Proeedures: Reviewed and analyzed case documcntation, photographs, and DVD,

Resuits;

1. Thete is no docwmentation txlicating that blood and urine specimens for toxicological

+ andlysis were collected from Mr. O’Keefe in the hours immediately after the death of
Ms. Whitmarsh.

2. The documentation indicates thet the penilc swabs collected from Mr, O’ Keefe vwere
collected improperly. '

3. The decumeniation indicates that Mr. ’Keefe had wounds 1o his right thumb and right

4. Although & full crime scene reconstruction is not possible based on the case ' _
documemtation, certein aspects of the scene following Ms. Whitmarsh's injury can be
{mterpreted. T

5. The possibility of an accidents] stabbing cannot be mled out.

CONCLUSIQNS:

1. Toxicology o
Blood and urine specimens should have been collected from M. O’Keefe in the hours
immediately afier the death of Ms. Whitmarsh, In potential homicide cases in which a
suspect is arrested shortly after the killing, it is 2 useful practice to obtain blood and urine
specimensﬁomthesuspmtobescmemdfurthepresemufdmgsandalmhollThese-
blood and wrine specimens could have been subjected ta toxicological analysis and would
have provided a quantitative estimate of the amount of slcohal and drugs in Mz, O*Keofe's

' Fisher, Barty A J., Techriques of Crime Scens Imvestiganion, CRC Press, Boca Raton, FL, 2004, p. 325, -

FSR 3-09 Report uly 27, 2010: Pags § of 4
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system. The presence or absence of drugs or alcohol in a person’s bady and the issus of
whether the : :

subject was under the influence of a drug is important in the legal defense of diminjshed
tapacity cases.” In addition to elcahol quantification, Mr. O"Keefe’s bloed and urine could
have also beeq tested for the presence of any ballucinogens or other mind altering - .
substances. One of the specific objectives of the applied science of forensic toxicology as
stated by the Society of Forensic Toxicologists, Inc, is interpreting, when experiencs allows,
the results of an analysis in terms of the effect of the substance(s) found on the behavior angd

2. Improper Evidence Collection - =

The penile swabs collected from Mr, O'Keefe were collected improperly. This improper
collection technique could have directly impacted the DNA results of the penile swabg
through cress contamination of samples. Cross contamination is defined as the unwanted
transfer of material between two or more sources of physical evidence* When the swahs
were collected, Mr, O'Keefe was handed the swahs by & Crime Scene Analyst {C5A) who
Wwas wearing gloves, Mr. O"Keefe was not wearing any gloves, his right hand was blceding,
&nd he also had blood, most likely belonging to Ms. Whitmarsh, on his hands, My. O'Keefe
then swabbed his own penis using both hands., The swabs were then collected by the CSA.
The proper technique would have been for the CSA 1o collect the swabs while wearing
gloves. This would have preveated the possible transfer of blood and Ms. Whitmarsh’s DNA
from Mr. O'Keefe's hands to the penile swabs.

An alternate method of collection would have been for Mr, O°Kesfe to clean his hands-
andwumdsaﬂatheyhadbeenducmentedmdmpommeﬁdmhadbemnqﬂmw
from his hands. His wounds should have then been bandaged. He could have ther been
provided with glaves and at this point he could have swabbed himself ander supervision.
Contamination control is essential to mainiaining the integrity of evidence.” The policy of
contamination control requires gl personnel 1o follow procedures to ensure evidence, .
integrity,® Contamination contrs! procedures require that personal protective equipment,
mhuﬂmmumdhmntmﬁmmﬁmafpemmt.’ S

The LYMPD Forensic Laboratory Report of Examination Biology/DNA Detail statés that
Mr, O'Keefe's penile swabs were negative for sermen, but positive for blood. Because of the

® hid., pp.323-124.

* hnp-fforerwsoft-tox org/Coment/Introduction/Bgure . hiwn -

* Crime Scone Trvestipation: A Guide for Law Enforcement, Tockmical Working Group oo Crime Scene
Investigation, U.S Dept. of fustice, Office of Justice Programs, Nationa] Institute of Tustice, Rockville, MD,p. 42
;ﬁ? p 4. _ :

? Ibidl
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mixture of DNA was obtained from the penile swabs and Mr. ("Keefe and Ms. Whitmarsh
canfot be excluded as contributors to this mixture. Because of the improper collection
technique, it is unknown if Ms. Whitmarsh’s DNA was present on his penis prior to the
swabbing or if Ms. Whitinarsh's DNA was introduced to the penile swabs during the . -
swabbing. Evidence contamination is misleading to 2a investigation and it results inan
insbility on the part of the crime laboratory to evaluate the true meaning of forensic results ®

3. Mr. O’Keefe's wounds

Based on the photographs examined, Mr. O'Keefe appeared to have two Injuries on his
night hand, Tt appears as though he has a cut on the top joint of his right thumb and & cut
between the first and second joints of the right index finger. The exact mechanism by which
he received these injuries is unknown; however, given the presence of his blood on the light
swilch in the bedroom, his blood on one side of the knife blade and on the handle of the
kmife, end his blood on the pants found in the bathroom, then it is most likely that he
received these injuries around the same timve that Ms, Whitmarsh received her injury. He
could have received his injuries just prior to her injury; at the same time as her injury, or
shortly after her injury, - g : ; -

One possibility is that these injuries were obtained after her injury. Other than being self-
inflicted or accidental, there appears to be no other mechanism as to how he would have .
received these injuries if they ocourred after she received her injury.

Another possibility is that he received his injuries at the same time Ms. Whitmarsh
received ber injury. This scenario is fess likely than the other two scenarios given the
location of Mr. O'Keefe’s injuries, the angle of Ms, Whitmarsh's wound, the lack of Blood
that would have been on the knife prior to her injury, and the fact that, according to the
autopsy report, no bones were struck. Injuries received by an assailant while stabbing
someone can be caused by 4 sudden cessation of motion due to unexpectedly hittinig a bone
or other hard surface causing the hand to slide down on the blade and be cut.? Injury to the
assailant’s hand can also occur if the hand or handle of the knife becomes bloody and the
hand slides down the knife blade.'® Finally, the assailant could inadvertently stab himsaif
while stabbing the victim.'' If Mr. O*Keefe received his injuries at the same time that Ms.
Whitmarsh received her injury, then it would require that the knife have an umusya) position
iz his hand Based on this scenario, then the injuries to both perties could have been the
result of an accident.

Another possibility is that Mr. O’Kesfe received his injuries prior to Ms. Whitmarsh
receiving her injury. Defense wounds are wounds of the extremities incurred when an
individual sttempts to ward-off & pointed or sharp-edged weapon, ? Defense wounds are

' Marean, Dale M., “Concepts of Physical Evidence in Sexual Assasly Investigations,” in Practical Agpecty of Rape
frvestiguion: A Multidiscipiinary Approach, Robert B Husrlwood end Amn Wolbert Burgeas, ods, CRC Press,
Boca Raton, FL, 1993, p. 73. v _

? James, Stuart H,, Kish, Paul E., and Sitton, T. Paulette, Principles of Bloodwain Patern Analysis, CRC Taylor &
Eﬂ;ﬁ}s‘ Boca Raten, FL, 2004, p344. ; ; E

 Pbid,
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Fore®ic Science ResotRegs®
P.0. Box 188, Cade, LA 70519 USA#(337) 322-27244Gjschiro@es.com

commonly found on the palms of the hands, dus to atiempts 0 grasp ar ward-off the knife, "
M. O'Keefe could have received his injuries as a result of trying te grasp or ward-off the
knife prior to when Ms. Whitmarsh reccived her injury. He could have received these injuries
while defending himseif from a knife attack This scenario is more likely than the scenario in
which he received his injuries at the same time that Me. Whitmarsh received ber Injury,

4. Chher notes of interess

The photographs do not indicate that My, O'Keefe was dripping blood around the erime
scene outside of the immediate ares of the bad despite the fact that he had sctively bleeding
cuuunhishand.Hemayhaveusudsummhjngmsluwduwnorwmpomn]ympthe
bleeding, :

The following events cannot be sequenced. They all happened at some point, but not
necessarily in the order listed. ) A

The pillowcase was removed, Possibly held together or bunched up, and then came in
contact with Ms. Whitmarsh's blood. -

Ms. Whitmarsh received her injury, My, O'Keefe’s biood next camme in contact with one
side of the knife blade, and then the Pillowcase was placed or landed on the knife.

Ms, Whitmersh's pants were removed after they were saturated with blocd and thep

Shoeprints were deposited after stepping in blood.
3. The possibility of an accidental stabbing . ]
The possibility of an accidental stabbing cannot be ruled out. One scenario that supports
alt accidental stabbing is outlined in the third paragraph of “3. Mr, O'Kesfe's wounds,”
Other evidence supporting an accidental stabbing is the lack of defense wounds on Ms.
Whitmarsh's extremities and the presence of a single stab wound, .

These results and conclusions are subject to alteration if any new or previcusly undisclosad

information s provided,

Geotge Schiro, MS, F-ABC
Forensic Scisntist

13 !M
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® o
Todd Cameran Grey, M.D.

éQdEE!' ;
Work: Medicat Examiner=g Office Home: 652 N, Little Tree Circle
State of Utah Salt Lake City, Ur 84108
48 N. Medical Drive :
Salt Lake City, Ut. 84113
(801)-584-8410

Fax: (801)-584.8435

re-medical Education:
S Yale University - B.A. 197§ Anthropology

Medical Fducation:
¥ Dartmouth Medical School - MD. June, 1980
Hospita ! Traiging:

$ Intern Anatomic Pathology - U.CS.D. 1980-198]
5 Resident Anatomic Pathology - U.C.5.D, 108 1-1982

Pagt Employment:
¥ Staff Anatomic Pathologist
Rehoboth McKinley Christian Hospital 19821585
% Designated Pathologist

Dade County M.E =g Office 1985-1986
§ Clinical Assistant Professor

University of Miami School of Medicine 1985.1985
XAssistant Medicg] Exanziner and Deputy Director

¥rrept Em t:
$ChiefMedim!Emﬂmr
DfﬁmofmcMadji:alExmninﬂ-StateufUtah

% Adjunct Associate Professor of Pathaipgy
University of 1Jtah School of Medicine

Lertification:

Updated July 9. 2010
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Curriculun: Vitae - Todd C rey, M D, N 'Fage 2

$ National Board of Medical Examingrs, Diplomate, August 1, 1987 #238440. '
5 Board Certified, Anstomic end Forensic Pathology, June 20,198 3

Liceagurg;
% State of Uteh No. 86-17491-1205
% Previously licensed in California and New Mexico

Honors aagd Awards;
$B.A cum laude with Honors in the miajor
§ M. Dean=¢ Honor Roll
§A.0.A Honor Society

i Memberships:

$ National Association of Medical Examiners
3 American Academy of Forensic Sciences

$ Utah Society of Pathologists

0 and Cansol ips:
% Sudden Infaet Death Syndrome Advisory Committee
Utah Department of Heath, 1986 to 2005
$ Vital Statistics Task Force-Death Certificate Revision Committes
Utah Department of Health, August-December 1987
$ Department Improvement Committee
Utah Department of Health, April-August 1988 s
% Architect Selection Board for Medical Examiger Facility ¢
Division of Facility and Construction Management, State of Utah, April-May 1988
$ Information Technology Task Force
Assigned 10 review Dept. of Health data Processing sysiems and make
recommendations  for improvement, July to December 1902 _
% Child Fatality Review Committee . .
Multi-Agency Board to review deaths of children in Utah, November 199] to present
$quaniahdFet&1D=athT¢chniualReﬁewCummm .
Utah Department of Health, Division of Family Health Services, August 1992 15
Septemnber 1995 = =
% Residency Committes -
Department of Pathology, University of Utah School of Medicine, Itme 1990 1o present S Healtl
Tasked to rewrite various starues concerning the coliection and use of dats by the seate
health department, August-September 1995 -
$ Suicide Prevention Task Foroe
reduce the number of suicides that occur in Utah. July - November 1999
$ Intermountain Tissue Center Scientific Advisory Board

Provides advice and expertise on issues related to tissue harvesting. Ovtober 2000 to
2006

Updated tuly 8. 2010
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Curricutun Vitge « Todd €. Grey, M D, ' A Page g

5 Electronic Death Registration Advisory Committee N
Provide advice and cxpertise for the development of a web based electronic death
registration system November 2004 w0 August 2006
§ National Violent Death Registration System Advisory Committes o
Provide advice and expertise in the Process of dats collection and analysis of viglens
deaths in Utah July 2005 to present -

tati .
$ Grey, T.C. AKeamns Mid-Air Collision-The Roie of the Medica Examiner in Aircraft
Disasters@ Airgraft Diisaster Seminar, fackson Hole, WY., October 1987

% Grey, T.C. APreserving the Scene@ and AMechanisms of Enjury@
Eighth Anmual Life Flight Conference, SLC, UT., March 1989

$ Pemny, I.A., Grey, T.C., and Sweeney, ES. ACause of Dieath: Venomous Snake Bite,
Manner of Death: Homicide® Presented by Grey, T.C. a2 the 40 Annual Meeting of
American Academy of Forensic Sciences, Philadelphia, Pa., February 1988

5 Grey, T.C. and Schnittker, $.1. AA Fow! Deed at the Aviarya :
National Association of Madica] Examiners 1989 Annual Mesting, Sanibel
Island, 1., October 1989

% Grey, T.C. AEquivecal Deaths: >What=s the Manner With You?=@ .
5" Aanual National Conferencs on Serial Murders, Unidentified Bodies and
Missing Persons, Nashville, Tn., March 1993

$ Grey, T.C. AMechanisms of Injury ind Their Medicolegal Significanceg
1993 Clinical Care Conference: Transport and Care of the Critically Injuréd,
Soowbird, Ut,, May 1993 :

X Grey, T.C. AHighway Accident Deaths: The Role of the Medical Examiner and a
Plea to Change UHiah Law@ '
Nosrthwest Associgtion of Forensic Sciences-Fall Mecting, SO, Ui, Ociober
1996

XGrey, T.C., ASudden Infant Death Syndromeg .
Family Practice Grand Rounds, Salt Lake Regioral Medical Center, SLC
June 1597
Pediatric Grang Rounds, Primary Childreg=g Medical Center, SLC, Ui,
September 1997

L,

§Grey, T.C. AThe Pediatric Autopsy: Role of the Medical Examinerg
Panel Discussion-Pediatrie Grand Rounds. Primacy Children=s Medical Center,

Updated July 9. 2070
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Curvicubum Vitae - Todd Ggey, MD,  Page 4
SLC, UT., October 1997

% Grey, T.C. AForensic Issues for First Responders®, AGunshot Wounds@, ASharp Force
Imjuries@ and ABlunt Force Injuries@ '
26® Annual Intermountain E.M.S Conference, SLC, UT., November 14 - 15, 2002

§ Grey, T.C. ACSI Utah - The Investigation and Interpretation of Equivocal Deaths@
Intermeuntain Critical Care Conference. Salt Lake City, UT. October 23, 2005

% Grey, T.C. AForensic Pathology€ Idaho Council on Domestic Violence and Victim
Assistance, Boise ID, hune 7, 2006 : :

Publicatiogs: _
S Sweency, ES. and Grey, T.C. ALetter to the Editor-SIDSE New England Journa] of
Medicine Vol. 313, No. 26, Dec. 25, 1986, '

$ Grey, 7.C. and Sweeney, E.§. APhysicians and the Death Penglty (letter)@
West. J. Med. 1987, July 147:207.

$ Sweeney, E.S. and Grey, T.C. ACause of Death-Proper Completion of the Dicath
Certificate (letter)@ JAMA Vol 258, No. 22, Dec. 11, 1987 g EE

# Grey, T, Mintleman, R, and Wetli, C.: AAortoesophageal Fistulac and Sudden Dty

A Report of Twa Cases and Literature Review@ Am. . of Forensic Medicine and
Pathology Vol. 9, No. 1, March 1988 pp 19-22. o

$ Andrews, I M., Sweeney, E.5, and Grey, T.C. AHelp, I=m Freezing to Death@ ASCP
Forensic Pathology Check Sample. F.P. 90-5 (Accepted April 8, 1988), :

< Grey, T.C. and Sweeney, E.S. APatient Controlled Analgesia (Tetter)e JAMA Vol. 259,
No. 15, April 15, 1988,

¥ Andrews, LM, Sweeney, ES., Grey, T.C. and Wetzel, T. AThe Biohazard Potential of
Cyanide Poisoning During Pastmorter Fxamination@ J of Forensie Sciences Vol 34,
No. 5, September 1989 pp 1280-1284, : ;

3 Grey, T.C. ADefibrillator Injury Suggesting Bite Marke Am. J, of Forensic Medicin
and Pethology Val. 10, No, 2, Iyne 1989 pp 144-145. i

§ Grey, T.C. ABook Review; Salamander: The story of the Mormon Furgcry‘Murdcrs, .
(Stiltoe and Roberts)@ J. of Forensic Scignces Vol. 34, No, 4, July 1939 pp 1044,

$ Grey, T.C. AThe Incredible Bouncing Bullet: Projectile Exit Through the Etm‘ance

Elpdaied July 9, 2610
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Curriculum Vitae - Todd C, Grev. M.D. .*';’t:ge 5
Wound@ J. of Forensic Sciences Vol. 28, No. §, September 1993, pp 1222,

$ Grey, T.C. AShaken Baby Syndrome: Medical Controversies and Their Role in
Establishing AReasonable Doubt@ Child abuse Prevention Council Newsletter, May
1998, - A

$CDC (Grey, T.C. - contributor) AFatal Car Trunk Entrapment Involving Children
United States, 1997-1998" MMWR Vol. 47, No, 47, 1998 pp 101522

$ Grey, T.C. AUnintentional and Intentionat Injuries@ in ing P
{Second Fdition), McCance, K. L. and Huether, 8. E, Mosby, 5t Louvis: 2060,

5 CDC {Grey, T.C. - contributor) AHypothermia Related Desths - Utah, 2600 and United
States, 1979 -1998" MMWR Vol, 51, No. 4, 2001 pp 76-78

§ Bennett, P..J., McMahon, W.M., Watabe J., Achilles J., Bacon M., Coon H.,
Grey T., Keller T, Tate D. Tcaciuc |, Workman J. and Gray D. ATryptophan
Hydroxylase Pclyrmarphisms in Suicide Victims&, Psychiatr Ganet. 2000
Mar; 10{1):13-7. v

$ Boyer, R. S, Rodin, E. A. & Gray, T.C. AThe Skull and Cervical Spine . .
Radiographs of Tutankahem: A Criticai Appraisale Am. J. of Neuraradiol.. 24
1142-1147, Junelduly 2003 LI

$ Caravati, E.M,, Grey, T.C., Nangle, B., Rolfs, R,T. & Peterson-Porucznii, C. A,
Alncrease in Poisoning Deaths Caused by Non-Ticit Drugs C Utah, 1991B2003",
Morbidity & Mortality Weekly Report. January 21, 2005/ Val. 54 / No, 2.

$ Callor, W. B., Petersen, E., Gray, D., Grey, T. C., Lameroux, T & Bennet, P.
APreliminary Findings of Noncompliance with Faycholropic Medication and
Prevalence of Methamphetarine Intoxication Associsted with SuicideB. Crisis
2005; Vol 26 (2): 78 - 84, R

rs afd oth ining a :

ADetermination of the Cause and Manner of Death® Presented July 1988 it Utah
Peace Officers Association Annual Conference, Wendover, Nevada, '

§  Alnjuries duc to Gunfire, Sharp and Blunt Forces@ Eight hour preseetation to
Wyoming Coroner=s Basic Cerification Course. Wyoming Law E::fnrqemmt
Academy, Douglas, Wyoming, February 26, 1991, March 23, 1593 and June 17,
1996

Ubdated July 9, 2010




Curriculum Vitae - Todd C .grey. MD. Page 6

8

ADeath Investigation? Eight hour course for law enforcement prufessmnn!s on
investigative techniques and pathologic findings. .

Cedar City, Utah, April 5, 1991,

St. George, Utah, April 10, 1992,

Vernal, Utah, Juze 5, 1992,

APathological Techniques for Discovering Non-Accidental Causes of Dtath in
Children@. Prosecution Council Training Seminar on Child Sexual Abuse and
Child Fatalities, Snowbird, Utah, June 18, 1991

AShaken Baby Syndrome-The Role of the Medical Examizer®. Child Abuse
Prevention Council of Ogden, Weber State Umversity, Ogden, Utah, August 6,
1992,

AMechanism, Cause and Manney of Death: The Proper Completion of the Death
Certificate@ Pediatric Grand Rounds, University of Utah Medical Cemer Salt
Lake City, Utah, February 22, 1993.

AS1D.5. and The Office of the Medical Examiner@ Uthcparhnmtuf'Hnahh
Symposium on $.1.D.8. for Public Health Nurses, Salt Lake City, Utah,Mn:rchSﬂ
1993,

APatterns of Injury: Investigative Challengesd Federal Buresu of Investigation-
Coliege of American Pathologists Course AMedicolegal Investipation of Death &
Injury in Child Abuss and S.ID.S.2 Salt Lake City, Utah. August 14, 1995,

AFire Related Deaths® Salt Lake City Fire Department, September 12, 1995,
Also presented to Idaho Chapter, International Arson Inmsuga.tors, November 7,
1996,

AForensic Medicing: The Vil Link in Organ/Tissue Donation@ Intelmmmmm
Organ Recovery Systems Educational Symposium, Salt Lake City, Utah, May 6,
1997. . '
AWhat Your Pathologist Can and Can=t Do For You#

Utah Prosecution Couneil Prosecutor Training Course, Layton, UT, Septcmber
18, 2003

AProsecutors end the Offive of the Medical Examiner? Utah Prosecution Caunc:l
Homicide Conference. St. George, UT. November, 2008,

Updated July 9, 2010 ey i
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Curricidum Vitae - Todd C. Grey, M.O. ' " Page 7

Other Activities;

g

Initial design development and participation in oversight of design and
construction of a new 18,000 sq. & facility for the Office of the Medical
Examiner, State of Utah, 1989-1991. i

Development, purchace and implementation of Maciniosh7 based comprter
system for the Office of the Medical Exartiner, State of Utah, 1989-1591.

Completion of Series I and T of Certified Public Manager=s Course. University
of Utah and Utah Department of Human Resource Management. November
1995,

Development, purchase and implementation of MS Windows7 based comphter
system for the Office of the Medical Examingr, State of Utah, .1996-199?_.

Development of web based Medical Examiner database and Case management
program, State of Utah, 2009 o

Updated July 9, 2010
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L@YIS F. MORTILLARO, P
501 South Rancho Drive, Suite F-37 '
Lag Vepss Nevads 89108
(702) 388-9403 FAX (702) 388-0643

LICENSURE:

- Psychologist, State of Nevada, 1987, license number PY(1569
* Mamiege & Family Therapist, State of Nevada, 1985, licanse number 310

AREAS OF SFECIALIZATION:

 Clinical - Counsseling Psychology

» Clinical Neuropsychology

* Climical Health and Rehabiiitation Psychology
* Family Psychojogy

1984: National Certified Counselor, Nationa! Bogrd for Certified Counselors,
certificate number 447
1988; Diplomste, American Acedemy of Pain Management, certificate number ]44
1996; Diplomate, American Board of Forensic Examiners, certificate number 2118
1996: Diplomate, American Board of Forensic Medicine, certifieate pmber 1393
- 19%6; Fellow and Diplomate, American Board of Medijcal Psychotherapists,
certificate number 2096 '
1996: Disability Analyst and Fellow, Americas Board of Disability Analysts,
certifiente momber 3556
1997: Diplomate of the American Board of Psychological Specialtics
- Forepsic Neuropsychology, certificate number 6112
. Famiinﬁmﬁ}ommﬁc Relations Psychology, centificate number 6112

R ON

- California Life Credential in Pupil Personnel Services with Specializations jn : o
P , Covnseling, Social Work and Attendance, 1971, certificete number 104682
* California Life Credential in Adult Education Subjects (Basic Education, Bioiogy, Chemmisiry,
General Sciences, French and Social Sciences), 1969, cemificate number 293258

EDUCATIONAL HISTORY;
Poat Graduste Certificate of ialization in Clindeal Newropaychology
The Fielding Institute, Santa B Californis
Dates Attended: February, 1996 - fenuary, 1998
Major: Clinical Neuropsychology £
Course Work: 40) semester units

2000 hour practictim

200 hours of clinical case supervision

Date Certificate Conferred: January 24, 1998

Ph.D., United States International University, San Diego, California
Major: Professional Psychology :

Minor: Clinical Psychodiagnostics

Dates Atended: 1976 - 1978

Date Degree Conferred: June i1, 1978

== —= ="=-=I=l==—=______
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MP.A., University of Southera Caiifornia, Los Angeles, Californija
Major: Public Administration

Minor: Criminal Justice Adminisiration

Dates Attended; 1974 - 1975

Date Degree Conferred: January 29, 1975

M.SEd,, University of Southem California, Los Angeles, Califorgia
Major; Counseling Psychology

Minor: Sehool Psychotogy

Dates Attended: 1967 - 1971

Date Degree Conferred; August 30, 1968

B.S. Loyola Unjversity of Los Angeles, California
Major: Biology

Minor: Chemistry/Philosophy

Dates Attended: 1962 - 19656

Date Degree Confenred: June 3, 1966

Predoctoral Interaship (2500 hours)

76 .1978

- Clark County Juvenile Court
Las Vegas, Nevada

Supervisars: Patrick Maloney, Ph.D.
Verdun Trione, E4.D.

Supervised forty hour per week practice of conducting psychological evaluations and performing
N;‘cbothm? for Juvenile delinquents, statug offenders, and abandoned, neglected, apd abused
children and their family members in g juvenile court setdng.  Also, provided cass
consultation/conferencing and training for a staff of institutional youth counselors and probation and
parole officers, as well as provided expert court testimony 23 requasted, '

- CareUnit Prozram

Lake Mead Hospita!

North Las Vegas, Nevada
Supervised six hour per week praetice of conducting psychological evaluations, a3 wel] as
performing individusl, group and family psychotherapy and consultation/confarencing services in
an inpatient hospital setting for substance abusess. - :
Postdoctoral Internship (2500 hours)

- Jean Hanna Clark Rehebilitation Center
Las Vegas, Nevada

Supervisor: Yerdun Trione, Ed.D.

Supervised forty hour per week practice of conducting psychological, nevropsychological,
presurgical and vocational evalmstions; provided biofeedback therapy and individualfgmup__ -

Curricyum Vitae
Louis F. Mortiliaro, 2h.D.
. Page2
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pSychotherapy to help clients cope with pain and psychosocial issues relatad to physical disability:
ormed case coasultation/conferencing within a multidisciplinary evaluation and treatrnent team
selting in e rehabilitation center for industrially infured workers . .

Schoal Psyehology Internship {700 heurs)

127]

+ Pasadena Unified School Distriet
Pasadens, California

Supervisor:  Allen Webb, Ph.DD.
('Neal Vamer, M.A. (350 supervised hours}

Conducted psychoeducational evaluetions for school-aged students to identify levels of learning
disability, emotional disturbance, and attention deficits, Communicated test results and developed
remedial recommendations through use of 2 written ml;pon #nd verbal pressntation during
participation in case conferences with teachers, parents, and schoot administrators.

* Clark County Juvenile Court
Las Vegas, Nevada

Supervisar: Allen Webb, Ph.[, (350 supervised hours)

Conducted psychological evaluations for schocl-aged students involved with the Clark Coun
Juvenile Court as an adiudicated d:lim.]éa;nt, child in need of supervision, or & child sbandone R
i bntmn ts. ]rittr.n test results wer;msubmzht;d to the é:vm:;ia_

2, ing master, probat; mdpm-uenfﬁms,parmts.an Clark County School District
for use in developing preseriptive remedsal educational and behaviara) changing treatment programa.

Private Peychology Practics

As part of & diversified outpatient and hospital practice, the following psychological services are
provided not anly for seifsrefarred clients, but also upon referra) from physicians, chiropractors,
insursnce claims adjustors, nurse case managers, psychological colleagues, attormneys, the courts,
private industry, and the public sector. _

Clinice] Assessments: Fgrmsic Assezszments:

* Neuropsychological . m?:cm

# Ps?ucmngiul - Dea Peuafry Mitigation

* Presurgical + Dangerousiess

- Vocational - Fitness For Duty

* Bubstance Use - Child Custody

* Pain Management * Public Safety Officer Post Job Cffer Screening
Curriculum Vitae

Louis F. Monillaro, Ph.D.

Page 3
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Clinical Treatment: Clinical Congultation/Conferensing With:

- Individual Psychotherapy - Physicians
' Counseling * Psychological eolleaguss '
+ Fpmily Counsefing & an}rm':.djudges, and heanng officers
-Muﬁtnl&tinseling Ellzm ailastman nrnglursum -
' Biofeed Therapy * Physical and occupational therapists
* Psycho Education : Ch':fmu and client fanily members

: - Voeational rehabilitation counsalors

Peychological services provided are for clients referred from the following practics arsas and prﬁent
with a number of medica! and psychosocial problems: i =

- Hospital yractice
* Heahth South Rehabilitstion Hospitals
* Head trauma
* Pogt-surgical rehabilization
. * Spinal cord injuries
- Cerebrovascular accidents

Medical/Surgical Hospitals (UMC, Valley, Himgna Mowntain View, Descrt Springs, and
Stmmerin)
* Post-surgical recovery
- Trauma recovery
- Fountain Ridge Alcoholism Center
- Submtance abuse/dependence detoxification process
* Full renge of psychological disorders

Montevista Psychintric Hospital
+ Adult [npatient
Adult Outpatient

* Forensic Practice
* Clark County Public Defender
- Capital Murder
* Competency to stand tris] and assist counsel
* Sexunl dangernusness
- Clark County Special Public Deferdier
* Capital Murder .
* -+ Death ty mitigation
* Clark County District Attomey
- Sexual abuse
- Dornegtic violence
* Capital murder
* Defense and Plaintiff's Attomeys
* Traumatic brain injuries
* Motor vehicle accidents
- Slip and falls
« Toxic exposure '
* Competency to marage cne’s own affairs
- Clark County ¥amily Court
- Child custody
- Parentsl fitnzss
* Parent-child reunification
* Special Master/Coparenting Coordinator
Curricufum Vitae
Louis F. Mortillaro, Ph.D.
Page 4
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- L
Private Industry

Fitness For Duty Evaluations
Work pisce viclence potential

Public Agencies o
Fitness For evaluations for the Mm?uit:. Neveda, State of Nevada Departmernt of
Public Safety, Henderson, Neveda, State of Nevada Department of Risk Management and
City of Las Vegas Personnel Department

- 2003
Prychology Director
NovaCare Pain and Rehabilitation Center

Provide clinical health and rehabilitation psychological services for NovaCare's CARF accredited
Pain and Rehabilitation Center's Chronic Pain Mansgement Program including conducting

. psychological and neuropsychological evaluations: providing individual and group pain and stress
management counscling, biofeedback thmtgy and psychoeducational lectures: and performing
psychalogical consultation/conferencing with physicians, claims exXaminers, NUTsE case managers,
rehahili:tginnngnumlors, altorneys, hearing officers and appeals officers. Clinic was closed in
December 2003, -

1995 - present
Post Job Offar Psycholagical Evalustar

On wn ns-needed basis, provided pre-employment conditional job offer scresning and evaluation
services for public sefety 1 {police officers, comections officers and police officer cadets),
meeting the standards of the Americans With Dissbilities Act of 1990 and Civil Rights Actof 1991,

Served the following police departments;

* 1995 - 1998 - Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Departrent
2005 -~ present - Mesquite Police De
2006 - pressnt - City of Henderson Police Department

1920 - 1955
Co-Owner/Psychology Director

Injury Management Associates of Nevada, dba Nevada Pain and Rehebilitation Center, Las Vegas,
Nevada (sold to NovaCare Outpatient Rehabilitation Division - May, 1595) o

The Nevada Pain and Rehabilitation Center was Southern Nevada's first privately ovwned
mulﬁdiscipiinﬁ CARF accredited rehebilimtion center providing rvalmmn and ireatment
programs for chronic pain management, injury management, pain counseling, work hardening/wark
simulation, and sinﬁ:ar service medicai, psychological, physical and occupationa] - therapy
treatments primarily im:llusu'ially injured workers. B

Clinical services provided included, for industrizlly injured workers, conducting 'psychologicat,
presurgical and neuropsychological evaluations; providing individual and group pain and siress
menagemenl counseling, biofeedback therapy and pefient edueation lectures; performing
psychological consultation/conferencing with physicians, claims examiners, nurse case ManAgers,
rehabilitation counselors, judges, attorneys, hearing officers and appeals officers, '
Curriculum Vitee

Louis F. Martillaro, Ph.D.
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Administrative duties includéd, in association with partner, Chief Executive Officer and Chisf
Financial Officer, assisted in plenning, organizing and directing the medical, dical and
support steff of fifty employees; preparing and administrating the corpavaie b » &pproval of
purchase of capital items and supplies; recruiting, hiring and training of staff, specifically
psychologisis, test examiner, and biofesdhack therapist; setting work standards and evaluating
cmplayee performance; establishing policies and procedures; participating the senjor management
team and executive committ=e meetings: maintaining public contact with referring sources; and
coordinating the public relations and markeling efforis.

Owner/Consnltant
Children's Oasis Schools, Inc.
. Las Vepas, Nevada

Co-owner with spouse of two preschoo! and dny care centers located in ftpnng Valley and The
Lakes, Las Vepas, The Spring Valley School had acontinuous enrollmant of 100 children and The
Lakes School served an average of 220 children. As owner, facilitated the rucn:itmmtl and

1978 - 19

Chiefl Prychelogist
Jean Hanna Clerk Rehabilitation Center
Las Vegas Nevada

Performed the duties of Chief Psychologist in a multidisciplinary rehabilitation center owned and
operated by the State Industrial Insurance System {S1I8). E

Clinical duties included providing injured workers psychological, presurgical  and
neuropsychological evaluations; individual and Eroup pain and stress management counseling,
biofeedback therapy and psychoeducational Jectures: performing psychological consultation vwith
physicians, claims examiners, purse case managery, rehabifitation commselors, Jjudges, attorneys,
hearing officers and appesis officers. T

Administrative duties include: planning, organizing and directing services; recruiting, hiring and
training & staff of four psychologists, one test examiner, one hiofeedback therapist, and four
Secretanes; setting work standards end evaluating employee performance; establishing polices and
prucedures; serving on the senior management team ang EXecutive comnittee; mainteining public
contact with referming sources: and contributing to public relations and marketing effarts. o

1871 - 1578

Chiel Peychologist
Clark County Juvenile Court
Las Vegas, Nevada

Petformed the dutics of Chief Psychotogist for Clark County Nevada's Juvenile Court with Javenile
detinquents, children in need of supervision, and abandoned, neglected, and ebused children.

Curriculum Vitge
Lovuis F. Mortillaro, Ph.D.
Page 6
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Clinica] services inchded conducting psychological evaluations ysed incouri placement disposition:
provided iadividua], group and family counseling; performed psychological
consultation/conferencing with the probation, parole, institutiona] and judicial departments; coljected
and anslyzed data for research and evalustion designs of federally funded court pfo $;, and
provided continuing education seminars for staff and educational instruction for youthful offenders

administering the department budget; ordering supplies and equipment: facilitating the planning and
writing of Federal Grant proposals; wnrdjnaung work ncuv:qnu and maintaining extensive contact
with other court services and Community agencies; recrviting, hiring and training of psychological
services staff: setting work stendards and svaluating employes performance; im]mmmting employee
counsciing, disciplinary or termination procedures where appropriate; co

viilized data in administrative ang department accountability studies; serving on the Director's Senior
Management Team.

1969 - 197]

Work Incentive Program {partnership program between the Department of Employment and the
Department of Family Servives)
Los Angeles City Schools, Los Angeles. California

Teacher of basic education subjects, such as math, reading, English grammar and spelling towelfane
recipients in a federaily finded progmm located in Seuth Central Los Angeles (Watts area). Upagi
successful completion of this educational remediation program, recipients were teferred for
vocational rehabilitation training leading to re-entering the job market. ;

| 1968- 1969

Employment Counselor

Department of Employment
East Los Angeles, Califomig

Provided employment counrseimg and vocational testing with adults and teenagers far job

development and placement services in the predominantly Hispanic community in east Los Angeles,
Califomnia, Admgﬁﬂumd and interpreted the Genera) Aptitude Test Battery (GATB_].' - ;

Adminjstrative duties included planﬁing, orgenizing and directing Wﬂm, pmra.rmg and

High School Teacher/Cozch
Black-Foxe School, Los Angeles, California

Teacher of biclogy and peneral science subjects for students in grades 9-12. Also servedas varsitjf
track coech and cuunsef _

or/faculty advisor te junicr and senior ¢lasses.

Assuciate Producer - Azk Rita Televizion Show
Martin Bergman and Rita Rudner, Producers

Curricuivm Vitag
Lonig F. Mortitlaro, Fh.D. 5
Page 7 m
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Part-Time College Teaching:

1976 - 1984

Park College School for Community Education:
Parkville, Missouri

. gd_m professor of Psychology in the off campus program located at Nellis Air Force Base,

cvada. :

- Taught at least one undergraduate psychelogy clasa per semester from the following curricubum
offerings: Theories of Personality, Counseling Theory, Tests & Measurements, Special Topics
in Social Peychology and Independent Study.

* Served as the Resident Academic Director providing curriculum accountability, teacher
evaluations, and teacher recruitment services jn associntion with the resident program
sdministrator,

-19

Nove University
I._.as"u’e'gns, Nevada ' =

* Instructor in the off-campus graduate aducation curriculum taught in Las Vegas, Nevada.

* Taught classes in Smmagtmcn’t, Human Sexuality, Parental Counseling, Exceptional
Children, Educational Theory Into Practice and Adiministration and Supervigton.

- Performed mentor and advisor services for students campleting their master's project. -

1973 - 1976

Clark County Commmity College
Las Vegas, Nevada

* Part-time Instructor of undergraduate courses, -
* Taught courses in criminal justice sdministration, general psychology, and the psychology
of adjustment, .

127§ - 1979

New College/Staner Chiropractic Foundation
Las Vegas, Nevada

* Instructor

- Taught courses in behavioral science applications for chi it dogtors enrolled in 2
continuing education program co-sponsared by the Stoner hiropractic Foundation & New
Caolicge. :

1877

College of Great Falls, Montana
Great Fa]_Iis, Montana

* Instructor 6
- Taught 2 winter guarter class {intense format) titled “Using Community Resources (Including
Diversion)" for the State of Montang probation officers, youth institation supervisors, ang
workers. i

Curriculum Vitae
Louis F. Mortillsro, Ph.D.
Page 8
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University of Nevada, Las Vegas
Las Vegas, Nevada

* Taught undergraduate course in Stress Management and graduats courses in Family .
Dynamics, Counseling in Agencies, and Special Problems in Family Dysfunction. -

1986 - 1990

Golden Gate University
San Francisen, California

- Pari-time Instructor

* Taught graduate level cowses in research design and statistics in the MBA/MPA -
pru?'lm located off mﬁpus a Fort Irwin, Caltfornia; Edwards Air Force Base, Califomia;
Nellis Air Force Base, Nevada; and George Air Force Base, Victorville, Californiz.

Training and Conitiltition Services:
Pravided sducational seminars and organizational consulting for the following clients: -

+ llincis Probation Council, 1976 - 1978 .

* National Council of Juvenile & Family Court Judges, 1576 - 1978
* Tropicans Hotel, 1986 - 1988

-EGE&G, 1981 - 1086

* Sands Hote), 1988

* Mardi Gras Best Western Hotel, 1981 - 198%

* Clark County School District, 1974 - 1978

* Home of the Good Shepherd, 1976

- Fumnace Creek lnn (Death Valley), 1989 - 1996

* Nevada Industrial Commission, 1979 - 987

* Mamber - American Psychological Associstion
Daviszing memberships:

int agy
Psychologists in Independent Practice
Family Pé‘;'chology ;

- Nevada State Psychology Association:
1991 - 1992: Treasurer and Executive Conmunittae Member,
2001 - 2002: President elect and Executive Committee mamber,
2002 - 2003: President and Executive Commiites member,
2003 - 2004 Past President and Executive Committze mernber,

* The Americen Pain Socisty

* International Association for the Study of Pain

* Society for l]':lahnwura! Mn;iin:in;

* International Neuropsychology aciety

* National Ac of Neuropsycholagy

* Coalition of Clinical Practitioners in Neurapsychology (Charter Member)

Curriculum Vitae
Louis F, Moxtillero, Ph.0.

Page 9
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* Reitan Society (Charter Mernber)

~ Association for Applied Physiology and Biofecdback

* The American Asscciation for Marriage & Family Therapy (Clinical Member)

* Phi Delta Kappa - University of Southern California Chagter

* Phi Kappa Phi - University of Southemn California Chapter ,

* The Americsn Academy of Pajn Management .

- Program Committes Member (term: 1997 - 2000) « Division of Counseling Psychology
of the American Psychological Assacintion

PUBLICATIONS:

Martillars, Louis F.

Trione, Verdun and
Meortiliaro, Lowis F.

Mortillaro, Louis F,
and Carmany, James P.

Mottillare, Louis F.
Moxtillerg, Louis F,

Mortillaro, Larms F.

Mortillaro, Lounis F,

Morilfaro, Louis F.
and Stoner, Fred L.

Fisher, Ronald, Mortillaro, Louis. F.,
and Johnson, Donald

Martillaro, Louis E,

Curricnlurmn Vitae '
Louis F. Moxtillarg, Ph.D.
Page 1G

-

SINE R0 Kemuoerner

iforma: Methods Regenrch

YIRSIEn 2idp A LS
Exercises, Santn
Assoviates. Inc. 1971,

"M:asuﬁng Professional Performance of Counselors by
Objectives” in Trione, i ¥
Xerox College Publishing, Lexdington, 1975,

Pp.278-285,

"Service Accountability Modal for the Juvenile Justics
%’sgn luvenile Justice, May 1975, Vol, 26, No. 2, pp.

"The Behoviom! Accountability Program,” | Juvegile
Iugtice, August, 1975, Vol. 26, No, 3, pp. 24-30. -

"Behavioral Negotiatian Process,” The Group Lesders
meﬁmn.mwmbumn pp. 56,

“The Use of Psychological Services in 2 Juveails Court

Selttzing," Juvenile Justice, May 1978, Vol 29, No. 2, pp.
7-12. : .

"An Analysis of California Psychological Inventory
Factors in Predicting and Differentigting betwseri Juvenile
Delinquents and Status Offenders, " Unpublished Doctoral
Drissertation, San Disge, California, June 1978,

-Fersonal Evaluation of Doctors of Chiropractic Enroljed

in a Continuing Education Program ™ The Digest of
i ic Ecopomics, NovemberDecember, 1978,
Volume 21, Number 3, pp. 24-25, e

"A Discussion on the Behavioral Medicine Apgroach 1o
the Treatment of Chronic Back Pain," Mevads Persennel
i November 1979, Vol. 1, pp. 15-23,

"A Coordinated Personsiel Syster for Hiring If:'lhu'n:]:sr.ml:ti-::
Assistants and Chirgpractic Technivians,”

i ¢, Jupe 1580, Vol. 17, No. 6, PD.
30-33, ' )
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1/ decided to rasume her relationship with O’Keete. The two of them appeafar.i tu be

Reversal and Remand (April 7, 2010). The Court further stated, “The drsmn:t court
&mor in giving this instruction was not harmiless because it is not- claar beymd
reasonsble doubt that & rational juror would have found O'Keefe gullty nf ssmnd

i

degree murder absent the emor.” id, at 2. fulir -.'_ :='-_:-;'£

After remand to this Court, trial was reset to begin on August 23, 2u1u

The prior trial testimony in this case showed that Brian O'Kesfe 'anq'-'_#"
Whitmarsh met in & treatrment faciity in 2001. /17109 TT 18, 3119109 TT 163-54."
dated and co-habitated off and on end hed what could be described a5 &
tumultuous relationship. - 3/19/08 TT 186-90, In 2004, O'Keefe was convicted o
burgiary for entering into the coupie's Joint dwelling with the intent to nnmmft a crfm
against Whitmarsh. O'Kesfe was sentenced fo probation, but his prebabon
revaked when he was convicted of a felony for a third offense domestic bal'tﬂi'}* agam
Whitmarsh, and he went to prison in 2006. 3/18/08 TT 138-40, 3!19!:)9 ‘I'I' 18?—&3
Whitmarsh testified against O'Keafe in the domestic battery case. 3/18/08 TI' 139

When O’Keefe was relsased from prison in 2007, he met and‘ bagan
relationship with Cheryl Momis. 3/17/09 TT 10, 3/19/08 TT 189, He wuuid nﬂan s,paa
to Morris about his previous relationship with Yvhitmarsh, and even exprassed tu he
that he still had strong feelings for Whitmarsh. 3/M47/08 TT 13-14, 37. Mon'ls dalmed
trial that O’Keefe said he was upset with Whitmarsh becausa she put hlm |m prisun a
he said he wanted to *kill the bitch.” 3/17/00 TT 14-17. Mormis testified that D Kaafa _
at ane point to be with Whitmarsh, and then telephored Morris, asking her tu rmve o
of their jointly shared apartment so Whitmarsh could move in. aﬂ?fus Tr 11, Mum
testified that Whitmarsh got on the phone with her during that call and tnld her sha h

loving couple and were open about their relationship, 3/16/09 TT 259, 3119!?9: T_T_ 18-

21, 30-36, '-'
Al sbout 10:00 p.m. on the evening of the incidert, in Nwembar 2&&& E |

neighibor who lived in the apartment below O'Keefe and ‘M\itmarsh heard vchat sh

—
Docket 69036 Document 2015-36443
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described as thumping and crying nolses coming from upstairs, 3;15.'139 Tr 155-85
The noise became so loud that it woke her husband Charles Toliver, whowas m ‘bed
next to her, |d. at 186-200, Tofiver went upstairs to inquire about the noise and found
the door to O’'Keefe's apartment open. |g. at 206-209. Hs yelled rnsrda tu gat th

occupants’ attention, at which time O'Kesfe came out of the badroom arn:l shnuted at

Toliver to ‘come get her!” id. at 209-10. When Toliver entered the bedroom he 8a
Whitmarsh lying on the floor next to the bed and saw blood on the bad mvers jg.
210. O'Kesfe was holding her and saying "baby, baby, waks up, don't do me hke this.
ld. at 210, 224. O'Keefe did not stop Toliver from goirg in the apartment or utherw
fight with him. Id, at 224, Toliver left the epartment Immediately and shq!._rted at
neighbor who was outside to call the police. K. at 213. He siso 'ﬁﬁﬁuﬁhi:'ﬁ
Armbruster, another neighbor, back upstairs. |d. at 214. O'Keefo ‘was stlil hnld:n
Whitmarsh and told Ambruster to get the hell out of there, Id. at 215, Armhn.lst
called 811, id. at 238, Hethuughtthatm(aehwasdmnk id. at 240, 245 _
By this time, shortly after 11:00 p.m., police had anived on the scene 3!15!0
TT 215, .3/17/08 TT 65. When they entered the bedrnom thay found Whltmarsh l}ﬂng
the fioor next io the bed and an unarmed O'Keefs cradling her in his arms and sirnkm
her head. 3/17/09 at 87, 96. The police believed Whitmarsh to be daad and ord'_ E
O'Keefe to let go of her, but he refused. K. at 51-52, 60-61, 87. . The*ufﬁca
eventually subdued him with a taser gun and carried him out of the badrmm J'i a8.
O'Keefe was acting agitated, id. at 73, the officers testified that ha had a stronu odnr
alcohol on him, and he appeared to be extremely intoxicated. Id. at 12?—25 3.-'1 Bfﬂﬂ TT
170-76.  Much of his spesech was incoherent, but ot cne point ha sa?d that Whﬂmamh
stabbed hersell and he also saigd-that she tried to stab him.: 3/17/00 i 56 35 -82.
They arrested him and brought him to the homicide offices. ~ 3/17/08 TT 1?‘.?
Subsequent o his an'est O'Keefe gave a rambiing statement indicating he was nod
aware of Whitmarsh's death or its cause, 3/18/09 TT 133. Police mtamawad th at
1:20 a.m., at which ime he was crying, raising his voice, talking to hirmerr and slurnng
Detective Wildemann stated that during the interview O’Kesfe smelled haawly

s
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& &
alcohol, and when polics took photographs of him at about 3:55 a.m., iney néﬂ' 'ib hoid
him upright to steady him. 3/18/09 TT 146-45. Wiidemann said rt was pratly ubvm
that O'Keefe had been drinking, however, law enforcement did not obtain o last for hi
breath or blood slcohol level sittier befars or after the imMerview, [d. e

Whitmarsh had aizo been drinking on the date of the incident, and at tha time
her death, her biood aleahol content was 0,24, 31B8/0% TT 84, 117, Sh& dled ufnn
stab wound to her side and had bruising on the back of her head ld at 53 103.
Medicai Examiner Dr. Benjamin testified that Whitmarsh's toxicology scman indicated
that she was taking Effexor ang that drug should not be taken with alcobiol. Id; at 108
Whitrnarsh had about three times the target dosage of Effexor in her systam 3!1
TT 84-86. The combination of Effexor and alcohol coukd have causad anmety
confusion and anger, 3/19/09 TT 55-96, Whitmarsh also had Hapatms Cc and adva
Cirrhosis of the liver, which is known to causa bruising with only slight pressure to th
body. 3/18/09 TT 83-97. Whitmarsh's body displayed multiple bruises at ma tme Dr.
Benjamin axamined her and the biuisas were diffarent colors, but she cmdd nnt sar the
they were associated with Whitmarsh's death or otherwise say how Iong agu Wi'um'larsh
sustained the bruises. 3/18/08 TT 115. DNA belonging to O’'Keele. and fo Whmﬂarsh
was found on g knife at the scane. 3/18/08 TT 82.67, - i

O'Keele testified, 3/19/09 TT 177. He acknowledged his prublems 'mth almhoi
and described his history with Whitmarsh. Ig, at 177-93. He disputed Mnrriss clarm
that he said he wanted to kill Whitmarsh, but he acknowledged being angry w:th her id)
at 180, it was Whitmarsh who cafled O'Keefe and initiated their renewad reiaumshrp
Id at 191. He was aware that Whitmarsh had Hepatitis C when she mnmad iritu hf%
apartment. Id. at 197-98. In November, 2008, Whitmarsh was stressed bauausa of her
fmancial condition. 3/20/08 TT 17. A couple of days before the incident at issua here,
Whitmarsh confronted O'Keefe with & knife. Id. at 18-18. She had been danin-g and
wasg on medication. id. O'Keefe had not been drinking that night and waa ahla i
diffuse the situation. Ig, st 18. On November 5, 2009, O'Keale laarnad that ha wuuld
be hired for a new job and had two glasses of wine to celebrate. ld. at 21-24 o' _

6 : fl 1n52




16

Il

12

13

14

15

14

17

18

19

2D

21

22

23

?4
25
26
21

g

v v - .

and Whitmarsh went to the Paris Casino where they both had drinks. 11 at 24-25
They returned home, and she was upset and went upstairs while -he reclmad fn th
passenger seat of the car for a period of time. Id. st 26-28. He went upstaira and th
smoked outside on a balcony while she was in the bathroom. K. et 29—_3@. Ha the
went in the bedroom end saw Whitmarsh coming at him with a knife. Ig, at.33. H
swung his jacket at her and told her to get back. [, He knew thet she was mad at h
about & lot of things. Id, He grabbed the krife, she yanked it and cut His-hand. |d. &
33. They struggled for a period of time. id, at 33-36. During the struggls, 'she""l"iiafd th
knife and fall down, he fall on top of her and then he reslized that she was h!aedmg
at 35-37. He was still drunk at this point and was frying to figure uut what happanad
ki. at 37. He fried fo stop the bieeding and panicked. ld. at 39, He tried- takmg care
Whitmarsh and asked his neighbor to call someone after the nmghbur cama mta hi
room. Id. at 40. He became agiteted when the neighbor brought another rmghbor H
t0 look at Whitmmarsh, who was partially undresssd. rather than calling t:he paramaﬁcs
Id, at 41, O'Keefe denied hiting or slamming Whitmarsh. Id. at 42, He taatlﬁad that he
did net intentionally kill Whitmarsh, but fett responsible because he drank thal‘ruﬁht and

ke shculd not have done 50, ld. at 49,

O'Keefe requests rulings from this Court prohibiting the Siate frnrh'intn:idbc:‘ng.
&nd requiring the State to instruct thalr-witnesses to refrain from Intmducing. unpmper
other act evidenca, other imelevant and overly prejudicial evidence, and evfdence which
would violate O'Keefe's constitutional rights. ' i

The Fifth, Sdh and Fourteents Amendments to the United States Cnnatlmﬂnn
a8 well s the Nevada Constitition, article 1, section 8, protect a mmlnal dafandant’
right to a falr trial, &t which he may confront and cross-examine withesses . and prasan

evidence in his defense. Pointer v. Taxas, 380 U.S, 400 (1985) (remgnmnn that th
nght of confrontafion requires that o criminal defendant be given an upponunrty t
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|trait of his character is not admissible for the purpose of proving that ha acte_-d in

L @

o H‘ ._‘-..

cross-examine the witnesses against him); M_Mm 410 U S 234 2941

(1973} (stating that *the rights to confront and Cross-axamine vntnassaa and to call
witnesses in one’s own behalf have fong been recognized as essential to due proceas"}.
NRS 48.015 provides that "refevart evidence® means eviqanca"hgﬁng any
tendency to make the existence of any fact that is of censequence 1o the datarmlnatlnn
of the action more or less probable than it would be withut the aﬁd&a}mé - Hﬂsi
48.025(2) recognizes that *[ejvidence which is not relevant is not admisalhie
Moreover, NRS 48.035 provides in part that: . :J' ', :

1. Althouﬁh relevant, evidence is not admissible if its pmbatwe varua is

substantially nutwmghed by the danger of unfair prejudice, of mnfusmn uf
the issues or of misleading the jury. e 2

2. Afthough relevant, avidence may be excluded If s probative vaiue i
substantially oubﬂenghed ofv considerations of undue ay, waste of time’
or needless presentation of cumulative evidencs, | A i

Additionally, *[albsent certain exceptions, evidence of a person’s chamctsr or J

conformity therewith on a particular occasion. Further, svidence of. uthar d'.imes
Wrongs or acts is rot admissible to prove the character of a parson in order to shaw
he ncted in conformity therawith,” Taylor v State, 109 Nev. 849, 853, Bﬁa qu 843
846 (19593). If the State wishes io prova that character or other act evidanoe
edmisgible under NRS 48,045(2), for the pupose of estahlmhlng pmcf nf molwa
opportunity, intent, preparation, plan, knowledge, identity, or absence cd’ mfstaka
accident, the State must prove how these exceptions fo the ganaral rule speclﬂcaﬂ
refate fo the facts of this case. A mere recitaion of the statute |snnts"__ j
justification for the admission of prior acts." |d. at 854, 858 P.2d ot 846 In addrticn th
Stata “may not present character evidama as rebuttal to a defensa whlm tha ac-:usad

has not yet presented.” Id. at 854, 858 P.2d at 847, Rpever v. State; 114 Hav 86?
871, 963 P.2d 503, 505 (1998) (*[T]he bad character testimony shoukd ne_vq{ ha_va been

- nnsg
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introduced because it was not in rebuttal to a defense made by the accuaeq!(cntmﬂ
NRE 48.045(1)(a)). S

“Before an issue can be said to be raised, which would permrt the"

imtroduction of such evidence so cbviously prejudicial to the' actusad, it

must have been raised In substance if not in so many words, and.- the.

is8ue 80 raised must be one o which the prejudicial evidence is relevant

The mere theory that a plea of ot guilty puts everything material in issue
is not ancugh for this purposs. The prusecution cannot credit the accused

with fancy defenses in order fo rebut them at the ocutset wﬂh suma .
damning piaca of prejudice.” f g Pl
Tavior, 114 Nev. at 854, 855 P.2d at 845 (quoting McCormick on Ewdence§ 19{] at 452

n, 54 (Edward W, Cleary, 2d ad 1972) (quoting Lord Summer in ]‘_mmn_‘[g_g_giﬂg

App. Cas. 221, 232 (1918))). Prier to admitting such evidence, the State must ﬁrst bri

a "Petroceii” motion and request a hearing to determine i (1) the incident | is raievantt
the crime charged; (2) the act is proven by clear and convincing awdanca and {3] th
probative value of the evidence Is not substantially cutweighed by the :iangar nf unfalr
prejudice.” Roever, 114 Nev. at 872, 963 P.2d at 505-06 (citing Tingh ”-‘- ate 113
Nev. 1170, 1178, 648 P.2d 1061, 1084-65 (1997): {Eﬂmu,_am, 101 Nav,ua 692
P.2d 503 (1985)). However, even if the other-act evidenca is relevant to a penmssibl
purpo&s and proven by clear and convineing evidence, a court should stli‘l axdude it j
its probative value is substantially outweighed by the danger of unfair pre;udlce Ji af
872, 863 P.2d at 505-06 (citing Yingh, 113 Nev. at 1178, 946 P.2d at 105;-55. e

The Nevada Supreme Court recognizes that the use of character evideﬁae to

convict & dafendant is extremely disfavored in our criminal Justice system Such
evidence is likely to be prejudicial and irrelevant and forces the acc:u‘s&d tu defend
8gainst vague and unsubstantiated charges. it may improperly inﬂuenca tha ,iury and
result in the accused's conviction becauss the Jury beligves he is a bad peraun Tha
of such evidence to show g propensity {0 commit the crime charged is cleaﬂy pmhrb;:j
by the law of this state and is commoniy regarded as sufficient ground fnr revarsal uq

T}5&_'1055
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appeal. See Tavior, 109 Nev. at 554 858 P.2d at 847 (citing M m Nev.
B85, B96-87, 765 P.2d 1144, 1145-46 (1888)), S

widamal T4

A. - The State should be prsciuded from introd M L-_'lu-'u. hia
C’Kasfe had claimad to Cheryl Morrs that he could kil anvene ‘a knife and

The State did not seek permission to introduce this avidence at’ {ha pmr
because the State did not believe it was bad act or character testlmnny When H\J
defensa raised the issus, the Court ruled that the evidenca did not show a bad ar;t and
that MorTis would be allowed to testify regarding the same. /16108 TT 1418, * |
Morris testified that O'Keefe made statements indicating he was pmﬁmnt Wwith
knives and that he was capabie of killing anyone with a knife. According tn Moms h
demonstrated how he would kill someone with a knife; "O'Ksefe wauld hold ma N on
shoulder and have a pretend sort of weapon in his hand. arnd he would stand thera &l
hold me as ... arm’s length and say he would come at me or could mma at a pa 80
and shove it thrnugh the cage - rib cage area and then just pull up p:euy munh

slicing someone open.” 3/17/09 TT 17. Mais demonstrated this sliﬁdng am:m un hel‘

sternum area. |d. at 17-18. i
Whether this evidence is treated as other bad act evidence or niui it 'ia Eﬁaiavé

and unfairly prejudicial. The alleged victim in this case was Killed by a pun-:tura ty
atab wound under her armpit that went directionally from front to back and dnwrrward '

1 9/18/08 TT 103, 118. Tharefore, nothing closs to the guiting or upward atemum a

slicing about which Mormis contended ('Keefe had bregged occurmad hara Tha 8
has shown no relevance, i.e., the evidence makes no fact of mnsaquanne mura nr las
probable. Mareover, the evidence tends fo show that O'Kesfe actad msﬁam wlth
character trait of being capable of killing with knives and that he is a iuller Thus, th
evidence is hignly inflammatory and unfairly prejudicia! and must ba axclud&d |nr undar to
protect O'Keefe's mns!rtuﬂonal right to a fair trial. L

i

1
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8. The State should ba ited to PrESENUNG p Judgment of 'u ri‘ut

B 00 g5 DETISE A e redaciio D 0 s feiaraiy ' a 5_41 u LY

During the pricr trigl, the partles agreed that when the State irirtmdﬁ&&_ in
caserin-chief the capy of a cartified Judgment of Conviction to show the felony domesti
battery in C207835, the referenca to a concurrent sentence would be redacted: 2/18/
TT 122. Because of the irrelevant and prejudicial nature of this evidence, ﬁhd nutnf |
abundance of caution, O'Keefe requests a ruling requiring the same redadlan for thi

During the prior trial, the State agreed that it wuuld rrat mtrcdu-::a any awdenu::a
related 1o the sexual assault allegation, of which O'Keefe was acquitted Irr 0202793
3/16/08 TT 10. Because of the imelevant and extreme prejudicial natura of th
evidence, O'Kesfe requests a ruling preciuding the State from mtmducmg t!:a saij

assault allegation during the refriai,

During the prior tnal, the State agreed that it weuld not introduce the term'sext:a!
assault kit' or make reference to any sexua! gssault in trial bacausa thare 8 no
evidence of 8 sexual assault here. 3/18/08 TT 115-16. Because afthe arrelmmt and
prejudicia) nature of term "sexual assauit’, O'Kesfe requests a ruﬁng prnlubit:ng
State from introducing or using such terms during the retrial, !
I
t
it
i
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During the prior tria, the State introduced numerous photographs of bruising o
Whitmarsh's body over defensa objection. 3/16/09 TT 267-68, 3/18/09 TT 95—94
{admitting exhibits 32-28, 40, 44-48, and 55-59), 126. However, the n'mdrcal examinar
Dr. Benjamin, admitied that none of the bruisas could be linked o the lncldant Iaadmu td
Whitmarsh's death. Further, Whitmarsh bruised easily upon normal cmlact because of
her advanced Cirrhosis and Hepatitis C.  3/18/08 TT 118-16. None ofthe l:rn.nsas wasg
fife threatening and each could have been inflicted by hhmnarsh haraelf or. annther
person, 3/18/09 TT 98-100. ! s

On appeal, O'Kesfe chailenged the district court's ruling pmmttlriq
introduction of thesa photographs. However, having reversed on iha jury mstmchnn
issue, the Supreme Court declined to address O'Keefe's remaining issues. ..

There is no foundation for any assertion that the bruises on Whitiwﬂ: s. bod
were caused by O'Kesfa and were not the result of other incidents ccrnbunad mth hia
Cirrhosls of the liver medical condition. Given the lack of foundation shnmng a nexu
batwean the bniises and the events at issus here, and their highty prajudlc:al and
mi'hamm»atorz,lr nature, this evidence should be excludsd during the rulml NRS 4& 035;
Towngend v. $tate, 103 Nev. 113, 117-18, 734 P.2d 705, 708 (1987). Admission ﬂ'thfj
evidence would wulate U’Keafe’s constitutional right to & fair rial. M 343
F.3d 1215, 1225-26 {1ﬂth Cir. 2003); Romano v. Oklahoma, §42 U.S, 1, 12 (1994]

During the previous kial, the State introduced tustlmuny from u'anspurtaﬁun
officer Hutcherson that O'Keefe told him to "turn that nigger music off" and saJd 'l don"
fisten to nigger music.” 3/17/09 TT 178, 251. This testimony came as a: aurpnse ‘to th :
defense, and was the basis for a motion for mistrial. The State nffared an adgﬁﬂona
reason as to why it beliaved the testimony to be relevant: DAL
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The intent and state of mind of the defendant before, during and aftar the .

murder, the stabbing of Victoria, is very important to this case, The fact

that he's angry, mesn, violent, and is spewing racial slurs is in the Etates _

Spinion pro and raievant to the case. o
8/18/09 TT 2-8. R

O'Keefa raised the issua of the improper introduction of this eviderice on dppes!.
However, the Supreme Court did not address the issue after determmmg that revemaw
was warranted for the jury instruction esvor. PR

In order to protect his due process right fo a fair trial, O'Keefe requests: é:'i:ir-étrial
fuling prohibiting the State from introducing such prejudicial evidanne lmpmpaf
references to race can be so prejudicial 23 to result in a denial of dua pracass
¥. Morion, 255 F.3¢ 85, 114 (3rd Cir. 2001). Thers is no suggesunn here m:ﬁ
incident in any way involved racial animosity. Admissicn of the ewdenca wuuld render
the tral fundamentally unfalr, resudting in & denial of due process. Tha awit:j
constitutes evidence of bad charscter which would invite the jury to infer that o
committed the charged offense becauss of his bad character, and thus its: admlssmn
would be improper, NRS 48.045; Tavares v, State, 117 Nev. 725, 30 P.ad 1 12!} {zum}.
This evidence uniquely tends to evoke an emotional bias against EIKeefa anﬁ has nd
relevance to the issues of this case. Moreover, admission of this evidence wuuld woi‘ate*

O'Keefs’s First Amendment rights. Pawson v, Detewarg, 503 U.S. 159 [1992}

During the testimony of Joyce Tolliver, she was permitted to tasﬁfy uvar ﬂafensa
hearsay objection that her husband, Chares, retumed from Q'Keefe's apartment anq
sekl, "baby, he done led that git* 311609 TT 166-69.  The Court. scnitied the‘

staternent as an axcited utterance, ' : _— I
However, the excited utterance hearsay excaption is justified by tha mnnept that
@ witness, having just witnessed a startling avent, is ikety to truthfully. desvcnbe it whﬂew

stil under the stress of excitement. See Stals v. Riverg, 578 P. 2d 13?3 13?5

13
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1884) (the undariying rationaie for excited Literance excaption is thet a w'ﬂﬁe’s’i havi

Just witnessed a startling evert, is uniikaly to fabricate). Here, Charles Tolwar did nn
witness any kiling. His statement was clearly based on spaculatlun Th&refure to
admit such a statemant for the truth of the matier assarted violates D Heafe s ﬂghts to

confront and cross-examine withesses under the Siah and Fuurteanth Amandmants
the. United States Constitution, and undee Articla 1, Section 8 nf tha NEWBd

Canstitution.

During the prior trial, the court allowed a police detective to t&nﬂfy and oﬁer his]
opinion whether the wounds on Q’Keefe's hands were defensive munds whila also

denying O'Keefe the right o call his own expert to testify as fo whether or nut the mund
on the deceesed could have besn caused by an accident. Over an obgactlnn
U'Keefe's counsel, Detective Wildemann testified that in his expanenae as a ham:cl :
detective, it has frequently been the cass that & suspect in a stabblng has cuts un h
fingers on the same area et O’Kaefe had & cut on his hand. 3/18/09: TT 183-55
O'Keefe's counsel objected on the basis that the detective was not an expert and wh
happened in other cases is irelevant. 2/18/09 TT 184, 3/19/08 TT 3. - Tha diah'ict cou
overruled her objection, 3/18/08 TT 184, but later employed a different: standard wl'len
precluded a defense expert from testfying as to whether the crims scene suggaated
that the death rmght have been accidental. 3/19/09 TT 143-53. Migs g

The defense expert, George Schiro, has extensive experienca as a furensnc
scientist and crime scene reconstruction and he had previously testified as tn whetha
wounds were defensive or sccidental. The district court found that the’ quastmn wa
beyond Schiro's expertise and beyond what was identified in his raport:- _d,. 0 Ka
challengad the district court's rulings on appeal, however, the Supreme Cqurt daclln
to address tha issue having siready determined to reverse on ather gmuncfa B
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Whether other suspacts have cuts on their hands is imelevant without kiowin
how such cuts were received in each individual case. Moreover, tha evidence is urrair
prejudicial becausa it indicates guilt is common where there are cuts-on the hand simnila
lo O'Keefe's, regardiess of the circumstances under which the cuts were mweﬂ
Therefors, the State should be preciuded from introducing such ewdsnce D' -
further contends that the State's detective shouid not be allowed to tastlfy as ta hi
opinion on the defensive nature of wounds without first establishing that he s an axpe
qualified to make such an opinion, Hallmark y._Eldridge, 189 P.3d 648 {Nev EDDBJ. an
he has been propery noticed as expert. To allow this otherwise usurps tha jury'
function and viclates O'Keefe's constitutional rights to dus process and &' f&lr t':al Ta
empicy different standards for the State's experts than for the defensas alsu would
viclate O'Keefe’s rights of equal protection and due process. : :

Evidence relating 1o the prior trial for open murder, the prior conviction of sacond:
degree murder, and the subsequent reversal is imelevant and should be’ prohibitad)
Such evidence is ikely o cause jurors to shift the burden of proof 1o O'Kasfe, g8 e
already been onca convicted, and the jury may improperly rely upon. the' prevmus Jury
assessment of the case. Likewise, the jury may become prejudiced agamst G Kaafa for
&ppealing and not accepting the previous jury's determination. Fimallyr the kn
that C'Keefe appealed from his pravious conviction may lead th& fury t::ojgj
diminished sense of responsibiliiy sinoa the prior jury did not have the Iast ward on .
subject, Cf Gearvv. Siate 112 Nev. 1434, 830 P.2d 718 (1996) {condudlng that
constitutional violation occurred when a desth penalty jury was told that the dafanda
would not be executed until he completed his first santence of iifa in- pnson:‘a,s thi
created an intolerable danger that the jury minimized its role because it baﬂeved that th
ultimate determination of death rested with others, such as the defandant |f ha aoun
commutation, and the Parole Board, if it granted parols), [
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g, 114 Nev. 100, 952 P.2d 431 (1988). Here, O'Keefe should not be further
burdened by the viclation of his rights during the previous trial, and to allow the fact of
the previous trial, conviction, or appeaf into evidence would taint his right to 2 fair retrial.

CONCLUSION
Based on the foregoing, Brian O'Kssfe moves this Honorable Court for ruling

pracluding the State from introducing improper evidence and argument as set forth
above and requiring the State lo caution its withesses regarding the same.
DATED this 21st day of July, 2010.
PALM LAW FIRM, LTD.

—

Patricia Palm, Bar No. 6009
1212 Casino Center Bivd.
Las Vegas, NV 89104
Phone: {702) 386-9113
Feor, (702) 386-9114
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RECEI COPY

I. the undersigned, acknowledge that on this day of
2010, | received a true copy of the foregaing NOTICE OF MOTION AND MOTION BY
DEFENDANT O'KEEFE TO PRECLUDE THE STATE FROM INTRODUCING AT
TRIAL OTHER ACT OR CHARACTER EVIDENCE AND OTHER EVIDENCE WHIGI-‘
IS UNFAIRLY PREJUDGICIAL OR WOULD VIOLATE HIS CONSTITUTIONAL
RIGHTS.

CLARK COUNTY DISTRICT ATTORNEY

By:

17
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Honumern i
NEVhEABAR NO. au%s WL L

1212 CASINO CENTER BLVD. .
LAS VEGAS, NV BO104
Phone: (702) 386-3113 &%
Fax; (702) 386-8114
Email: Patﬁ%‘a,galm%?mgil.mm
Attorney for Brian
DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA,

STATE OF NEVADA, CASE NO: C250630

Plaintiff, DEPT. NO: XVt

V8,
DATE, oo —— -
BRIAN K. O'KEEFE, o
TIME: Nolics of MoNan

Defendant. b

" LNSGAN

28

NOTICE OF MOTION AND MOTION BY DEFENDANT O'KEEFE TO ADMIT
EVIDENCE PERTAINING TO THE ALLEGED VICTIM'S MENTAL HEALTH
CONDGITION AND HISTORY, INCLUDING PRIOR SUICIDE ATTEMPTS, ANGER
OUTBURSTS, ANGER MANAGEMENT THERAFY, SELF-MUTILATION
AND ERRATIC BEHAVICOR

COMES NOW Defendant Brian K. O'Keefe, by and through his attormey, Patricig
Palm cf Palm Law Firm, Ltd., and hereby moves this Honorable Court for an order
allgwing him to introduce evidence of the afleged victim's mental health condition and
history, including prior suicide attlempts. Bnger qutbursis, anger management therspy,
salf-mutilation, and eralic behavior.

This Mgotion is made and based upon the racord in this cass, including the pape
end pleadings on file herein, the Constitutions af the United States and the State
Nevads, the points and authorities set forth below, and any argument of counset at th
i

RECEIVED

t
JUL 21 200 1

CLERY 0 g coumy nopﬁﬁd
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time of tha hearing on this Motion.
Dated this 21st day of July, 2010.
PALM FIRM, LTD,

3

Patricia Palm, Bar Ne. §009
1212 Casing Center Blvd.

Las Vegas, NV 89104

Phone: (702) 386-9113

Fax: (702} 386-9114

Attorney for Defendant O’Keefe

NOTICE OF MOTION

TO:  STATE OF NEVADA, Pigintif: and

TO: DAVID ROGER, Disirict Attorney, Attorney for Plaintiff
YOU WILL PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the undersigned will bring on the abavel

and foregoing MOTION BY DEFENDANT O'KEEFE TO ADMIT EVIDENCE

PERTAINING TO THE ALLEGED VICTIM'S MENTAL HEALTH CONDITION AN

HISTORY, INCLUDING PRIOR SUICIDE ATTEMPTS, ANGER OUTBURSTS, ANGE

MANAGEMENT THERAPY, SELF-MUTILATION AND ERRATIC BEHAVIOR on
day , 2010, at the hour of aDLQm in Department Na. XVII of th

above-etitled Court, or 83 soon thereafler as

counsal may be heard,
DATED this 21st day of July, 2010.
FPALM LAW FIRM, LTD.

Nevada Bar No. 6009
1212 Casino Center Bivd.
Las Vegas, NV 89104
Et?azj 385-9113
may for Defendant O'Keesfe
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The State charged Defendant Brian K. O'Keafe with murder with use of 8 deadi
weapon. He entered a plea of not guilty and Invoked his right to a speedy trial, Th
State filed a motion to admit evidencs of other crimes, which O'Ksefe opposed. T
Court ruled that the State coukd introduce evidence of thraats to the alieged wvicti
Victoria Whitmarsh, which witness Cheryl Morris claims were made by O'Keefe, and hi
claim of proficiency at killing with knives, which Moris claims to have withessed. Th
Court further rulad that the State could introduce certified copies af the prior Judgme
of Conviction for felony domestic battery, which involved Whitmarsh. F urther, if O"
testified, then the State could inguire into his other prior felony convictions, Pursuant f
the Court's ruiing on his pricr Judgments of Conviction, the State is permitted t
introduce only the details of when O'Keefa was convicted, in which jurisdiction, and
name of the offenses, and with the felony domestic battery, the fect that Whitmarsh had
tastified against him in that case. 3M6/08 TT 2-10.

The instant case was tried before this Honorable Court beginning March 18,
2008, O'Keafe was prohibited from introducing evidence regarding Whitmarsh's mentzal
heaith condition which caused her lo be erratic. have uncontrolled anger, attermnpd
suicide by overdosing and cutting herself with knives and scissors when stressed, and
required anger management therapy. After five days of trial, on March 20, 2008, th
Jury returned a verdict finding O’Keefe guilty of second degree murder with use of
deadly wespon. On May 5, 2009, this Court sentenced O'Keefs io 10 to 25 years fo
second-degrea murder and a consecutive 96 to 240 months (8 to 20 years) on th
deadly weapon enhancament.

O’Keefe timely sppealed to the Nevada Supreme Court. After briefing, the Cou
reversed O'Keefe's conviclion, agreeing with him that the district court "emred by givi
the State’s proposed instruction on sacond-degree murder because it set forth g
allernative theory of second-degree murder, the charging decumant did not allege thi
altemate theory, and no avidence supported this theory.” The Court explained, *t

3
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State's charging document did not allege thet O'Keafe killed the victim while he
committing an unlawfu! act and the evidence presented at trial did not support th
theory of second-degres murder.* Q'Keafe v,_State. NSC Docket No. 53858, Order
Reversal and Remand {April 7, 2010). The Court further stated, “The district court’
BfTor in giving this instruction was not harmiess because it is not clear beyond
reasonable doubt that a rational juror would have found O'Keefe guity of second-
degree murder absent the error” Id. et 2, Having reversed on this ground, the Courl
declined to address O'Keefe’s remaining contentions, which included a contention tha
the district court erred by refusing O'Keefe's request to present evidence of Whihnarsh’e]

arratic behavior.
After ramand to this Court, trial was reset to Begin on August 23, 2010,
' AT FFACT

prior suicide attempts, anger outbursts, anger management therapy, self-mutilation, and -

The prier trial testimony in this case showed that Brian O'Keefe and Victori
Whitmarsh met in a treatment facility in 2001. 3/17/08 TT 18, 3M18/08 TT 183-84. The
dated and co-habitated off and on and had what could be described as a |
tumuituous refationship.  3/19/09 TT 186-80. In 2004, O'Keafo WES convicted
burglary for entering into the couple's jeint dwelling with the intent to commit a cri
against Whitmarsh. O’Keefe was sentenced to probation, but his pmhaiinn wa
revoked when he was convicted of a third offense of domestic battery agan
Whrtmamh and he went to prison in 2008. 318/090 TT 139-40 31808 TT 187-88,
Whitmarsh testified against O’Keefe in the domestic battery case. 3/18/08 TT 139.

When Q'Keefe was released from prison in 2007, he met and bagan 4
relationship with Cheryl Morris, 3/17/09 TT 10, 3/18/08 TT 189. He would often speak

to Morris about his previous relationship with Whitmarsh, and even exprassed o her
that he still had strong feelings for Whitmarsh. 3/17/08 TT 13-14, 37. Momis daimad a

trial that O'Keefe said he was upset with Whitmarsh because she put him in prison &
he sald he wanted to "kill the bitch." 3/17/09 TT 14-17. Morris testified that O'Keafe
at one point to be with Whitmarsh, and then telephoned Morrs, asking her to move o

1

01067




10

11

12

13

14

15

ig

17

1B

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

28

27

28

af their jointly shared apartment so Whitmarsh could move in, 3/17/09 TT 11. Mo
testified that Whitmarsh got on the phone with her during that call and told her sha h
decided to resume her relationship with Q'Keefe. The two of them appeared to be
loving couple and wers open about their relatiotship. 3/16/08 TT 259, 3/19/08 TT 1
21, 30-36,

At about 10:00 p.m. on tha evening of the incidenl, in November 2008,
neighbor who lived in the apartment below O'Keefa and Whitmarsh heard what
described as thumping and crying noises coming from upstairs. 3/18/09 TT 185-88)
The nolse became so loud that it woke her husband, Charles Toliver, who was in bed
next to her. Id. at 188-200. Toliver went upstairs o inquire about the noise and found
the deoor to O'Kesfe's apariment open. Jd. at 206-208, He yelled inside to get
occupants’ attention, at which time O'Keefe came out of the bedroom and shouted
Toliver to "come get herl” Igd, at 209-10. When Toliver enterad the badroom, he
Whitmarsh lying on the floor next ta the bed and saw blood on tha bed covers. [d.
210. O'Keefe was holding her and saying *baby, baby, wake up, don't do me like this.
Ig. at 210, 224. O'Kesefa did not stop Toliver from going in the apartment or othe
fight with him. |g. at 224. Toliver left the apartment immediately and shouted st
neighbor who was outside fo call the police. Id, at 213. He atso brought Tod
Armbruster, another neighbor, back upstairs. |d at 214. O'Keefe was still hoidi
Whitmarsh and told Armbruster io get the hell out of there. Id. at 215, Armbrust
called 911. Id, at 238, He thought that O'Keefe was drunk. Id. at 240, 245.

TT 215, 3/17/09 TT 85. When they antered the bedroom, they found Whitmarsh lying o
the ficor next to tha bed and an unarmed O'Keefe cradling her in his anms and strokin
her head, 3/17/09 at 87, 96. The poiice believed Whitmarsh to be dead and orde
O'Keefe 1o let go of her, but he refusad. id. at 51-52, 80-61, 87. The
evantuaily subdued him with a taser gun and caried him out of the bedroom. Id. 88,
O'Kesfe was acting agitated, Iq. st 73, the officars testified that he had a strong odor of
alcohal on him, and he appeared to be extramely intoxicated. id. at 127-28, 311609 TT

5
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170-76.  Much of his spsech was incoherent, but at oneg point he said that Whitmarsh
slabbed herself and he also said that she tried to stab him, 3/47/08 TT 56, 85, 92
Thay amested him and brought him to the homicide offices. 1709 TT 177
Subsequent to his amest, O'Keefe gave a rambling statement indicating he was n
eware of Whitmarsh's death or its cause. 3/18/00 TT 133. Palice interviewad him
1:20 a.m., at which time he was crying, raising his voice, talking to himsetf, and Blurring.
Dstactive Wildemann stated that during the interview O'Keefe smelied heavily
alcohol, and when police {ook photographs of him at about 3:55 am., they had to hoi
him wpright to steady him. 3M8/09 TT 146-49. Wildemann said it was pretty obvio
that O'Keefa had been drinking, however, law enforcsment did not obtain a test for hi
breath or blood alcohal leve! either before or after the inferview. Jd.

Whitmarsh had alse been drinking on the date of the incident, and at the time of
her death, her biood akohof contant was 0.24. 3/18/09 TT 84, 117, She died of ong
stab wound to her side and had bruising on the back of her head. Id. at 93, 103,
Medical Examiner Dr. Benjamin testified that Whitmarsh's toxicology screen indicated
that she was taking Effexor and that drug should not be taken with alcohol, Iq, at 1&9
Whitmarsh had about thres times the target dosage of Effexor in her system. 3715/09
TT 94-96. The combination of Effexer and aleohol eould have caused anxisty,
confusion and anger. 3/19/0% TT 95-86. Whitmarsh also had Hepatitis C and advanced
Cirrhosis of the fiver, which is known to causa bruising with only slight prassure 16 the
body. 3/18/09 TT 83-97. Whitmersh's body displayed muitiple bruises at the time Dr.
Benjamin examined her and the bruises were different Colors, but she could not say th
they weare associated with Whitmarsh's death or otherwise say how fong ago Whitmarsh
sustained the bruises. 3/18/08 TT 115, DNA belonging to O'Keefe and ta Whitmarsh
was found on a knife at the scens. 3/18/08 TT 62-87.

C'Keefe testified. 3/18/09 TT 177. He acknowledged his problems with alcoho
and described his history with Whitmarsh, Id. at 177-93. He disputed Momis's ciaim
that he said he wanted to kill Whitmarsh, but he acknewledged baing angry with her. Id|
at 190. It was Whitmarsh who called O'Keefe and iniiated their renewed relationship.
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Id. at 191. He was aware that Whitmarsh had Hepatitis C when she moved into hi
apartment. [d, at 197-98. In November, 2008, Whitmarsh was strassed because of he
financial condition. 3/20/08 TT 17. A couple of days before the incident at issue here
Whitmarsh confronted O'Keefe with a knife. id. at 18-13, She had been drinking an
was on medication. I, O'Keefe had not been drinking that night and was able to
diffuse the situation. [d. at 19, On November 5, 2009, O'Keefs ieamed that he would
be hired for a new job and had two glasses of wine to calebrate. id, at 21-24. O'Keefn
and Whitmarsh went to the Paris Casino where they both had drinks. id. at 24-25,
They retumed home, and she was upset and went upstairs while he raclined In
passenger seat of the car for a period of time. |, at 26-28. He went upstairs and th
smoked ouiside on a balcony while she was in the bathroom. id. at 29-30. He the
went in the bedroom and saw Whitmarsh coming at him with a knife, id, at 33. H
swung his jacket at her and toid her to get back. |d. Ha knew that she was. mad at hi
about a lot of things. (d. He grabbed the knife, she yanked it and cut his hand. id.
33. They siruggied for a period of time. Id. at 33-36. During the struggle, she heid th
knife and fell down, he fall ont top of her and then he reslized Lhat she was bleeding.
at 35-37. He was still drunk at this point and was trying to figure out what happened
Id, at-37. He trid to stop the biseding and panicked. Id. at 38. He tried taking care
Whitmarsh and asked his neighbor to call someane after the neighbor came Into hi
rcom. Id. at 40. He became agitated when the neighbor brought ancther neighbor u
to look at Whitmarsh, who was partially undressad, rather than calling the paramedics.
Id, at 41. O'Kesefe denied hitting or slamming Whitmarsh, Id, at 42. He festified that
did pot intentionally kilf Whitmarsh, but felt responsibie because he drank that night an
he should not have done so. |d. at 49. _

During frial, the State objected to the admission of any festimony concemi
Whitmarsh's suicide attempis and to admission of documents concerning Whitmarsh'
medical history. 3/19/08 TT 81. O'Keefe's counssl submitted points and authorities a

to the admissibility of evidence showing that Whitmarsh hed s histery of suicid
attempts by overdose and cutting herself, depression, panic disorder, angsr outbursts

7
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and incidents with self-mutilation by cutting. See Defanse Praposed Exhibit B (on fl
with this Court); 2 ROA 265. The Court found that Whitmarsh's attempted suici
were not acis of violence and found that the testimony and evidenca from the medica
records were not admissible. 3/20/09 TT 7-8. The Court also prohibited admission
evidence concerning her anger management classes. id.

ARGUMENT
U Reefe has a fundamental fode and gtate constitutional right to prese
ivideace in his defense perisining 0 the dlleged victi fhitmarsh's menta
Nealth_condition and history and it anifegtations through conduct including
her pattern of suicidal behavior and anger control proble s, in support of his
dims regarding_the sequence of gvents and his Innocent ittions during
nti 0 ’

D'ﬁaah renews his request to present evidence in his defense, by way of expert
testimony summarizing Whitmarsh's mental heaith history and condition and . its
marifestations through conduct, by admission of portions from medicai records
ducumanﬁng the same,’ and by way of his own tesimony regarding his krrnvdadge
Whitmarsh's mental health condition and its manifestations.

Having been Whitmarsh's partner on and off sinca 2001, O'Keefe was well awa
at the time of the incident of her mental heaith history, which Included muliiple suici
attempts, both by overdose and cutting herself with knives or $Ciss0rs, was aware tha
she self-mutilated, was aware that she had uncontrollable anger outbursts and
problems when stressed over refationship issues and whan abusing drugs or alcohpl)
and that she was attending anger management counseling. i

This evidence supports O'Kesfs's testimony regarding the events leading up tg
Whitmarsh's deeth end his innacent response o her aggression, and as such it |
relevant and highly probative on the issuss of whether Whitmarsh was alone in th

'The State has previously stipulated to the authenticity of these records, which afe on
file with the Court as Defendant's Proposed Exhibit B from the prior trial.
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apariment and having & fit of anger when the neighbors heand panging noises (as
C'Keafe contends that she must have been and which would explain the lack of fresh
brising as would be consistent with the Stata's prolonged-abuse theory of the case):
whether she had taken the kitchen knife inta the bathreom of the master bedroom when
sha was alone in the apartment {as O’Ksefe contends she may have been preparing to
harm him, self-mutitate, or commit suicide by overdose and cutting, which is consistent]
with the facts that she had three times her prescription dose of Effexor in her system
and had an apparent injury on her hand); whether she was holding the knife when
O'Keste entered the bedroom {Q'Kesfe contonds that she was holding the knife and
surpnsed him), and whether she charged at O'Keefe in anger (as she has 51
decumented history of anger control problems, which may have been exacerbated by
the mixture of Effaxor and ekeohot in her system).

The evidence related to Whitmarsh's mental health history is also eomoborativel
evidence of Q'Keefe's atate of mind and whether he believed Whitmarsh was going ta
harm him when she came at him with the knife — he knew she was unstable and
dangerous when upset, aspecially when under the influenca of slcohol and drugs.

The medical records from which O'Keefa seeks fo admit excelpts and upon
which his expert will raly show as foliows:

October 2001 Admission to Montevista Hospital (when Whitmarsh and Brian met)

Whitmarsh was admilted Octobar 31, 2001 after she cut both wrists
with a knife in what she reported was her fourth sulcide sttempt. She
was on the medications Celexa, Xanax and Vistarl. She was diagnosad
with Major Depressive Episode, Panic Disorder with Agorgphobia '

May 2002 Admission to Montevista Hospital

Whitmarsh wes admitted on May 21, 2002 because she'd been using
Xanax, Lortab, Oxycotin; she was biacking out and unable to function at
work, withdrawal was severe; consequences of use included severe
dysfunction in her relationship with husband from whom she is saparated;

psychiatric history was reported as follows: "She has ssvers anxiety and
depression; she was suicidal and hospitalized at Montevists Hospital in
Oclober of 2001 for an overdose and culting her wrist. She aisc

9
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overdosed in 1983 and was hospitalized.” Har diagnosis was opiate
dependence, confinucus, xanax dependence continuous, major
depression, recurrant.

September 2006 Admission Montevista Hospital (this admission was during
Brian's incarcaration)

Whitmarsh was admitted September 26, 2006. She was dlagnosed as
Bipclar, Dep; Polysub dep; liver cirrhosia wiascites; Hep C; underweight;
gerd; social; marital. The Report of Dr, Allgower etates “fook lethal doss
of Xanex requiring intubstior/mechanicel ventilation h/o depression, also
has self-inficted wrist lac." Form by Dr. Slagle states: *Ms Whitmarsh has
made 8! least 3 suicide atternpts. Recent aftempt could have been fetal.”
Report by Dr. Ajay! states that Whitmarsh's suicide attempt resulted in
admission (o ICU. She had been transferred from St Rose where she
had been in ICU from B/24/08 ~ B/26/06, she overdosed on Xanax and
friend’s morphine after an argument with her estranged husband,
Diagnosis &t Si. Rose was Bipolar Disorder type |l, depressed vs mcument
major depression and borderine personaiity traits. She reported 2
previous suicide attempts (1983 OD on paln meds after fight with
husband) and (D on pills end culting wrists in 2001). "She has baen
self-mutilating for the pasts 15 yoars and ststed that she cuts frarself
when she is angry and the last time she cut her left wrist wag with a
pair of scissors on Saptember 22, 2008. She complained of imitabifity,
mood swings, difficully sleeping at night because of racing thoughts, poor
appelite, anxiely, . .. She aiso reporis episodic euphoria, anger outbursts
and decroased need for sleep. She reports ongoing confiict with her
estranged hushand and her sister end her 21 year oid daughter.”" Dr.
Slaghe documented poor impulse contred, and that her 2001 admission fo
Montevista was because “she was angry, screaming and “went
berserk” after an argument with her husband and overdosed on plils
and cut her wrist.” i . She hag a history of
abusing Xanax back to at laast 2001: history of dependence on Lorab,
Percocet, and Oxycotin dating beck o 2002. Inpatient Detox et
-Mantevista in May 2002 foliowed by inpatient rehab through June 2002.
Most recently admitted for detox from Pereocet and Lodab at Valley
Hospital in August 2006, Her diagnosis was: biopolar disorder, type I,
depressed, benzodiazepine dependence, opiate dependence, hx of .
aloohol dependence in sustained full remission; borderline personality
traits.... Hep C, Liver Cimrhesis.... Her treatment plan included anger
managemant.

She had recing thoughts snd substantiel mood Swings since 2000; 2 prior
suicide aftempts in the 19805 both since she married her husband, history
of high moods and anger problemns; past history of very heavy aicohol use.
Hx of pain medication abise,

11
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Chart notes further show that Whitmarsh “admits to a history of seff-
mutilation. Most recently, she stabbed herseif on har hands, August 22,
2006, "becauss | am not happy [with] mysel.”

And ‘pt denies wanting fo kifl self but doss stale when angry she will self-
mutilate and take pills to cope [with] emotional pain. Admits to “taking
the pilis because | was mad [with] my husband*

Southem Nevada Adult Mental Health Octobar 2007 Admission (This admission
was after Brian’s release from incarceration but while the ¢ouple was separated)

Whitrarsh took an overdose of pills in an apparent suicide attempt.

{(Emphasis added).

Whitmargh's records demonstrate a pattern of self-mutilation by culting and
suicide attempts by overdosing and cutting during angry or bersark reactions to fig
with her husband and when she was not even in a ralationship with O'Keefa. Th
evidence supports O'Keefe's explanation for why it was Whitmarsh, and not he, wh
brought the knife into the bedroom. However, a Jury daeprived of this evidence, a
knowing of O'Keefe’s prior felony domestic battery conviction involving Whitmarsh,
likely to unfairly assume that O'Keefs retrieved the knife from the kitchen to harm
Whitmarsh or that if Whitmarsh did bring the knife into the bedroom, she was deoing so
to protest herself.

O'Keefe must be allowed to present this crucial evidence, as it cormoborates hi
claim of seif-defensefaccident, i.e., that Whitmarsh was out of contral and he wa
defending himself, and during the struggle for the knife, the accident occurred leading
Whilmarsh's death, This Court has already ruled, pursuant to the State's bad act
motion, that the Stete may introduce evidence that O'Keefe was canvicted of falony
domestic battary invoiving Whitmarsh as relsvant to his motive and intent.

The State also presented evidence at the previous trial to show that Whitmarsh
was “very meek” and submissive. 3H47/09 TT 15, 40. The State was also quick to poi
ot during the previcus trial that Whitmarsh had a wound on her hand, when a defen
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expert opined that she had no defensive wounds. 3/15/09 TT 156. O'Keefe must
sllowed to rebut that evidence with evidence that Whitmarsh had 3 history of cutti:j
herself and suffered from uncontroliable anger and suicidal tendencies.

Tha Fifth, Sixth and Fourteenth Amendments to the United States Constitution,
as well es the Nevada Constitution, article 1, section 8, protect & criminal defendant'
night to a fair trial, at which he may confront and cross-examine withesses and p
avidence in his defense. Preclusion of this evidence viclates O'Keefe's rights,
v. Tgxas, 380 U.S. 400 (1965) (recognizing that the right of confrontation requires that
criminal defendar_'st be given an opportunity to cross-examing the witnesses agains
him); Chambers v. Mississippi, 410 U.S. 284, 294 (1973) (stating that “the rights
confront and cross-examine witnesses and to call withesses in one’s own behaif ha
long been recognized es essantial to due process’).

it is unciear in Nevada whether evidence of an alleged victim's prior men
health history including suicide attempts and anger control issuss comes under the tes
for character evidence or whather it is simply subject to a probative-value-versus-unfair-

prejudice test.

Other states’ courts considering the admissibility of evidence pertaining td
gllsged victims' mental health conditions have determined that the evidence is n
restricted by the rules pertaining to charscter evidence. Instead, the avidence ‘IJJ
desmed to ba admissible 50 long as relevant to a material issue. £ee State v. Staniey,
37 P.3d 85, 20 (N.M. 2001) {collecting cases and noting that a clear majortty of courts
hold thet evidence of suiciie aftempts by & victim in a homicide case is admissible to
show the victim's state of mind); People v Salcido, 2468 CalApp.2d 450, 458-80
(Cal App. Sth Dist. 1966) (same); State v, Jseger, 573 P.2d 404, 407-08 (Utah 1999)
(medical records, containing statements that the victim had previuusly'aﬂmted
suicide, were admissible when introduced in a case where daferdant claimed the victim
comntitied suicide).

In Stanley, The New Maxico Supreme Court concluded that it is not appropri
to consider such evidence as "characier evidence” subject to the nule preventin

12
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@vidence of @ person's character or a trait of character from being admitled for th
purpose of proving conformity. That court reasaoned that the evidance is related |
mental fliness and its specific manifestations and not character, 37 P.3d at 375,
Further, since the main purpose of the evidence rules is 1o search for the tnih, a fingi
of refevancy and the careful appiication of the probative-value-versus-unfair-prejudi
balancing test is sufficient to prevent the misuse of this evidence. Id, at 375-78. Wh

a deceased person has a pattern of suicidal or vickent bahavior prior to the incide
leading to his death, that evidence is relevant to the alleged victim's siate of mind an
causation in a murder trial, 37 P.3d at 372-73. In Stanley, the court concluded that th
allegad victim's pattem of suicide attempts and violent or suicidal behavior dating ba
to 1987, i.e, 11 years prior to the death in question, should have been admitted at trial,
Id, at 374. The court determined that evidence that & deceased person suffered from
mental iliness and had attemnpted suicide in the past “is not the type of svidence that
has tha unusual propensity to prejudice, confuse, inflame or mistead the fact finder.” i)
Finally, the court recognized that & defandant has a “undamertal right fo present
avidence negating the State's evidencs on causation and the fact finder should [be]
given the opportunity ta consider such evidence and determine what weight, if any, to
give to it in light of the other evidence.” ki, at 374.

Simitarly, in Saicido, the California Court of Appeals determined that hospita
records showing the victim of an alleged murder l'-aad been treated for a suicide altem
re relevent to whether death was brought about by criminal agency. 246 CalApp.2d
438. The cowt stated that "in a murder case it is the victim's inclination or propensity
commit suicide under emctional stress that is relevant and any competent avi
which logically and reasonably tends to show this is admissible unless objectiona
under some cther rule of exclusion.” Id. at 458-60, The Court further recognized tha
aven a remote suicide attempt, when considered in light of several similar attempts, ha
evidentiary value. Ig,

NRS 48.015 defines "refevant evidence® as “‘evidence having any tendancy tq
make the existence of any fact that is of consequence to the determination of the action

13
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more or iess probable than it would be without the evidence.® Pursuant to that statuts |
relevant evidence is admissibla, however, it may be exciuded ils probative value |
substantially outweighad by the danger of unfair prajudice, of confusion of the issues,
misteading the jury, or by considerations of undus delay, waste of ime or peed!
presentation of cumulative evidence. NRS 48.035. Here the evidence sought fo
introduced is reievant on all of the issues set forth above, i.e., Whitmarsh's state
mind, O'Keefe's state of mind, whether there is an innocant explanation for the bangi
noises the neighbors heard, whether O'Keefe's claim that Whitmarsh had the knife i
likely to be true, and whether O'Keefe's claim that Whitmarsh was in an uncontrofied fi
of anger so that he was defending himse!f from her when an accident caused her deat
is Ixely to be true. Indesd, the probative value here is even greater becausa the ju
will be aware of O'Kesfe's prior conviction for felony domestic battery and will likely ta
to disbelieve his claim that Whitmarsh brought the knife into the bedroom and was
aggressar. There is ne unfair prejudica fo the State by allowing the jury to hear thi
evidence and determine for itsalf the weight to give it.

Cn the other hand, even if the evidence in Question constitutes “characten
avidence,” it is admissible as it ends to show that Whitmarsh was the likely aggressar in
the conflict leading to her death. '

NRS 48.045(1)(b) provides that *[eJvidence of a persan’s character or a trait nq
his character is not admissible for the purpose of proving that he acted in conformity
therewith on a particular occasion, except: . . . [ajvidence of the character or a trait of
character of the victim of the crime offerad by an accused . . . end similar evidence]
offered by the prosecution to rebut such evidence.” Adadttionally, NRS 48.055(1) states,
“In all cases in which evidence of character or a trait of character of & person i
admissible, proof may be made by testimony as to réputation or in the form of a
opinion.  On cross-examinstion, inquiry may be made into specific instances
conduct.”

The Nevada Suprems Court has interpreted these siatutes to require that an
accused, who claims he acted in seif-defense, be parmitted to present evidenca of tha|
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character of an alieged victim regerdiess of the accused's knowladge of the victim'
character when it tends {o prova the victim was the likely aggressor. Patty v. State. 14
Nev. 321, 326-27, 997 P.2d 800, 802-03 {2000). Proof may be established
testimony as to reputation or in the form of an apinion. Id. An opinion as to violen
character may even be based on knowiedge of only onae incident of violence. Fo
instance, in Pefty, the Court held that the district court erred by excluding testimony
from a probation officer and police officer regarding their opinions as to the violent
character of the victim, even though the police officer's opirion was based upon anly
one violent incldent. |d. Based upon the foregoing authorities, Brian O'Keefe is entited
to present evidence in the form of his is opinion or reputation lestimony as to
Whitmarsh’s erratic character and problems with anger control which caused her to
irreticnally end dangerously and {o overdose and cut herself with knives and scissors.
Furthermore, at the time of the incident in guestion, Brign O'Keefe was aware of
Whitmarsh’s aggressive and ematic character and unconirollable arger wherein sh
tumed to pills and cutting instruments. The Nevada Supreme Court has haid that if th
accused, who ig claiming he acted in selt-defense, is aware of specific acls of v
by an alleged victim, then evidence as to those specific acts is admissible 1o show th
accused's state of mind at the time of the allege crime. Id, at 326-27, 997 P.2d at 803
§28 also Burggon v. Sigte, 102 Nev. 43, 4546, 714 P.2d 576, 578 (1986); Sanbom v
State, 107 Nev. 399, 812 P.2d 1279 {1991). In Daniel v. Stgte. 119 Nev. 498, 78 P.ad
880 (2003}, the Nevada Supreme Court axplained as follows:

[A] defandant should be allowsd to produce Supporting evidence to prove
the particular acts of which the accused claime knowledge, thereby
proving the reasonablensss of the accused's knowledge and
apprehansion of the victim and the credibility of his assertions about hig
state of mind. . . . The ssif-serving nature of an accused's testimony about
prior vicient acts of the victim makes corroborating evidence of thosa acts
particularly fmpartant for an accused's claim of self-defense.

Id. &t 516, 78 P.3d at 32 (citing State v. Daniels, 465 N.W.2d 633, 636 (Wis. 1991)).
The admission of evidenca of a vicim's spacific violent acts, regardiess of i
S0uiCe, is within the sound and reasonable discretion of the triaf court and is limited
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the purpose of establishing what the defendant believed about the character of t
vicim. Dapisl, 119 Nav. at 518, 78 P.3d at 32 In sum, nct only may a defendan
present evidence regarding épaciﬁc acts by victims whers the accused is aware of
acts, but the defendant may aiso present corroborating evidence to prove the parficula
acts of which the eccused claims knowiedge. "Wihen s defendant claims self-dsfen
and knew of relevant specific acts by & viclim, avidence of the acts can be presanted
through the defendant's awn testimeny, through cross-examination of & surviving victim,
and through extrinsic proof” |d. &t 518, 78 P.3d at 32-33. Therefore, because Brian
O'Keefe was aware of Whitmarsh's prior acts of violence, including violence to herse
by cutting/overdosing, and her anger cantrol problems, he is entitled to prasent not antJ
his own testimony but any edditional corroborating evidence to establish those prior
acts.

Additionally, to the extent that the State may again seek o admit evidence of
Whitmarsh's character of peacefulness, as it did during the previous trial by introduci
evidence that Whitmarsh was meek and submissive, ('Keefe has 3 right to confron
and cross-examine the State's witnesses as to their knowledge of Whitmarsh's ang
fita wherein she screamed, went berserk, lost controi, ovevdosed, and used cuttin
instruments to do violence upon herself. See State v. Selle, 41 Nev, 113, 168 P. 27
(1917); U.8. Const. Amend VI; Nev. Const art. 1, sec. 8. Indeed, NRS 48.055(1)
specifically provides that when proof by testimony as to reputation or in the form of an
opinion has been given, "on cross-examination, inquiry may ba made into spacifig
instances of conduct.”

c us :

Basad on the foregoing, Brian O'Kesfe moves this Court for a ruling permltlmd

him to present xpert testimony summarizing Whitmarsh's mantal health history and
condition and its manifeststions, evidence from the medical record documantation
discussed herein, and his own testimony showing that she had a nattemn of pricr suicida
aitemnpts through overdose of pills and cutting, and a history of anger outbursts, anger
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management therapy, self-mutilation, and erratic behavior.

All of this eviden

cormeborates and supports his claim that he reasonably believed Whitmarsh's state o
mind was such that she attempting 1o csuse him ssrious injury at the time of t

incident, his claim that she was the aggressor. and his expianation of the circumsta

lkeading to Whitmarsh's accidental degth.
.DATED this 21st day of July, 2010.

PALM LAW FIRM, LTD.

e it

atricia Palrmn, Bar No. 800%
1212 Casino Canter Blvd.
Las Vegas, NV 85104
Phone: {702) 3868-9113
Fax: {702) 386-9114
Aftorney for Defendant O'Keefe
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RECEIPT OF COPY
l, the undersigned, acknowledge that on this day of
2010, | received a true copy of the foregaing NOTICE OF MOTION AND MOTION BY
DEFENDANT O'KEEFE TOQ ADMIT EVIDENCE PERTAINING TO THE ALLEGED
VICTIM'S MENTAL HEALTH CONDITION AND BISTORY, INCLUDING PRIO
SUICIDE ATTEMPTS, ANGER OUTBURSTS, ANGER MANAGEMENT THERAP‘j
SELF-MUTILATION AND ERRATIC BEHAVIOR.

CLARK COUNTY DISTRICT ATTORNEY
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® ORIGIAL ® e

004 JUL 21 20
PALM LAW FIRM, LTD. :
PATRICIA PALM, ESQ. c% .
NEVADA BAR NO. 6009 #&n
1212 CASING CENTER BLYD.
Ehone: G03) 208 o113
one:
Fax; J?é?] 3&6—91 14
Email: ici rail
Attomey nan L
DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

ETATE OF NEVADA, CASE NO.: C250830

Plaintiff, PATE: .

i
Vg,
TlME.’ NoBcas al Molen

BRIAN K. O'KEEFE, ajl!'iﬂ‘iﬂ mlil ” I

Defondant IR

NOTICE OF MOTION AND MOTION BY DEFENDANT O'KEEFE TO PRECLUDE THE

STATE FROM INTRODUCING AT TRIAL OTHER ACT OR CHARACTER EVIDENCE

AND OTHER EVIDENCE WHICH 1S UNFAIRLY PREJUDICIAL OR WOULD VIOLATE
HIS CONSTITUTIONAL RIGHTS

TO:  THE STATE OF NEVADA, Plaintiff and
TO:  DISTRICT ATTORNEY'S OFFICE, its counsel:

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that on the ebove date and time, or as soon thereafter
85 counsed can be heard, Defendant Brian K. O'Keefe, by and through his attorney,
Patricia Palm of Palm Law Firm, Ltd., will move the Court for an order precluding
State from intreducing other aet or character evidence and other evidence which
unfairly prejudicial or would violate his constitutional rights.

This Motion is made and based upon the record in this cass, including the papers
and pleadings on file harein, the Constitutions of the United States and the State of
i
b

o

.
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Nevada, the points and authorities set forth below, and any argument of counsel at the‘
tima of the hearing on this Motion.

Dated this 20th day of July, 2010,

Patricia Paim, Bar No. 6009
1212 Casinc Canter Blvd.
Las Vegas, NV 85104
Phone; (702) 386-8113
Fax; (702) 386-9114
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The State charged Deferdant Brian K. O'Keefe with murder with Use of a deadly
weapon. He entered a plea of not guilly and invoked his right to a speedy trial. Th
State filed a motion to admit evidence of other crimes, which O'Keefe opposed.
Court ruled that the State could introduce evidence of threats to the alleged vict
Victoria Whitmarsh that wilness Cheryl Moris claims were mads by O'Keefe, and hi
demonstration of proficiency at killing with knives, which Mormris claims o ha
witnessed. The Court further ruled that the State could introdiuce certifiad copies
O'Keefe's prior Judgmenrt of Conviction for falony domestic battery, involvi
Whitmarsh. Further, if O'Kesfe testified, then the State could inquire into his other priorn
felony convictions, Pursuant to the Court's ruling on his prior Judgments of Conviction,
the State is permitted fo introduce only the details of whan Q'Keefe was convicted, in
which jurisdiction, and the name of the offensas, and with the felony domaestic battery,
the fact that Whitmarsh had testified against him in that case. 3/1609 TT 2-10.

The instant case was tried before this Honorable Court beginning March 16,
2009. ARar five days of trial, on March 20, 2009, the jury retumed a verdict findi
O'Keefe guitty of second degree murder with use of & deadly weapan, On May 5, 2009
this Court santenced O'Kesfe to 10 to 25 years for second-degree murder and
consecutive 96 to 240 months (8 to 20 years) on the deadly weapon enhancement.

O’Keefo timely appealed to the Nevada Supreme Court. After briefing, the Cou
reversed O'Keefe's conviction, agresing with him that the district court “smed by givi
the State's proposed instruction on second-degree murder because it set forth |
altemnative theory of second-degree murder, the charging document did rot allege thi
gitemnate theory, and no evidence supported this theory.” The Court explained, “th
State's charging document did not allege that O'Keefa kilied the victim while he wa
committing an unlawful act and the evidence presented at trial did not support thi
iheory of second-degree murder.” (YKeefs v. State, NSC Docket No. 53859, Order
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j{decided to resurne her relationship with O'Kesfe. The two of them appeared to be g

Reversal and Remand {April 7, 2010). The Gourt further stated. “The district court’
emor in giving this instruction was not harmless because it is not clear beyond
reasonable doubt that a rational juror would have found O'Keefe guilty of second-
degree murder absent the emor” |d. at 2,

After remand to this Coun, trial was reset to begin on August 23, 2010.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

The prior trial testimony in this case showed that Brian O'Keefe and Victorial
Whitmarsh met in & treatment facility in 2001. 3/47/08 TT 18, 3/15/09 TT 183-84. They
cated and co-habitated off and on and had what could be described as a veny
tumuttuous relationship. 3/19/08 TT 188-80. In 2004, O'Keefe was convicted of
burglary for entering into the couple’s joint dwelling wilh the intent to commit & crime
against Whitmarsh. O'Keefe was sentenced to probation, but his probation wa
revoked when he was convicted of a felony for a third offense domestic battery agajnsj
Whitmarsh, and he went to prison in 20068. 3/18/09 TT 139-4Q, 3/19/09 TT 187-88.
Whitmarsh testified against O'Keefe in the domestic battery case. 3/18/08 TT 139,

When O'Keefe was released from prison in 2007, he met and began J
ralationship with Cheryl Morris. 3/17/09 TT 10, 3M19/08 TT 189 He would often spaalﬁ

1o Mormis about his previous relationship with Whitmarsh, and even expressed 10 h
that he still had strang feelings for Whitmarsh, 3/17/09 TT 13-14, 37, Momis daimed &
trial that O'Keefe sad he was upset with Whitmarsh because she put him in prisen an
he said he wanted to "kill the bitch.” 3/17/09 TT 14-17. Morris testified that O'Keefe

at one point to be with Whitmarsh, and then telephoned Morris, asking her to move o
of their jointly shared apartment so Whitmarsh could move in. 1709 TT 11. Morrig
testified that Whitmarsh got on the phone with her during that cafl and told her she had

loving couple and were open about their relationship. 3/16/09 TT 259, 3119/09 TT 18-
21, 30-36.

At about 10:00 p.m. on the evening of the incident, in November 2008, a
neighbor who lived in the apartment below O'Kesfe and Whitmarsh heard what she
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daescribed as thumping and crying noises coming from upstairs. 3/18/09 TT 185-88.
The noise became so loud thai it woks her husband, Charles Toliver, who was in bed
next to her, Id. at 186-200. Tolivar went upstairs to inquire about the noise and found
the door to O'Keefe's apartment open. ld. at 206-209. He yelled inside to get th
occupants’ attention, at which time O'Keefa came out of the bedroom and shouted
Toliver to “come get herl” Id. at 205-10. 'When Toliver entered the bedroom, he
Whitmarsh lying on the floor next to the bed and saw hlaod on the bed covers. Id.
210. O'Keefe was haiding her and saying "baby, baby, wake up, don't do me like this.
Id. &t 210, 224. O'Kesfe did not stop Toliver from going in the apartment or otherwis
fight with him. |d. at 224. Toliver left the apariment imrnediately and shouted at
neighbor who was outside o call the police. |d. at 213. He aiso brought T
Armbrusier, another neighbior, back upstairs. |g. at 214, O'Keafe was stil holdin
Whitmarsh and told Armbruster to get the hell out of there. Id. at 215 Armbrust
called 911, |, at 238. He thought that O'Keefe was drunk. Jg. at 240, 245.

By Lhis lime, shorly afler 11:00 p.m., police had arrived on the scene. 3/18/0
TT 215, 3117/09 TT 65. When they entered the bedroom, they found Whitmarsh lying ©
the floor next ta the bed and an unarmed O’'Keefe cradling her in his arms and strokin
her head. 3/17/09 at 87, 96. The police believed Whitmarsh to be dead and orde
O'Keefa to let go of her, but he refused. ld. at 51-52 60-851, 87. The office
eventually subdued him with a taser gun and carried him out of the bedroom. |d, 88
O'Keefa was acting agitated, id. at 73, the officers testified that he had g strong odor of
alcchol on him, and he appeared to be exiremely infoxicated. Id. at 127-28, 3/18/09 TT]
t70-76. Much of his speech was incoherent, but at one paint he said that Whitmarsh
stabbad herseff and he aiso said that she tried to stab him. 3/17/08 TT 56, 85, 92|
They arrested him and brought him to the homicide offices. 3A17/08 TT 177
Subsequent to his amest, O'Keefe gave a rambling statement indicating he was n
aware of Whitmarsh's death or its cause. 3/18/09 TT 133. Police interviewed him at
1:20 a.m., at which time he was crying, raising his voice, taking 10 himself. and shurTing |
Datective Wildemann stated that during the interview O'Keefe smellsd heavily of
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alcohol, and when police took photographs of him at about 3:55 a. m., they had to hoid
him upright to steady him. 3/18/09 TT 14849, Wildemann said it was pretty obviou
that O'Kesfe had been drinking, however, law enforcement did not otiain a test for hij
oreath or bloed alcohol level aither before or after the interview. Id.

Whitmarsh had aisc been drinking on the date of the incident, and at the time lj
her death, her blood alcohol content was 0.24, 3/18/09 TT 84, 117. She died of on
stab wound o her side and had bruising on the back of her head. id. at 93, 103]
Mexdical Exarniner Dr. Benjamin testified that Whitmarsh's toxicology screen indicated
that she was taking Effexer and that drug should not be taken with alcohol. [d. at 109)
Whitmarsh had about three times the target dosage of Effexor in her system. 3/19/08
TT 94.896. The combination of Effexor and alcohoi could have caused anxisty,
confusion and anger. 3/19/08 TT £5-96. Whitmarsh also had Hapatitis C and advanced
Cirrhosis of the liver, which is known 1o cause bruising with only siight pressure to th
body. 3/18/09 TT 93-97. Whitmarsh's body displayed multiple bruises at the time Dr)
Benjamin examined her and the bruises wers differant colors, but she could not say th
they were associated with Whitmarsh's death or otherwise say how long ago Whitmarsh
sustained the bruises. 3/16/09 TT 115. DNA belonging to O'Keefe and 1o Whitmarsh
was found on & knife at the scene. 3/18/08 TT 62-87.

O'Keofe testified. 3/19/09 TT 177. He acknowledged his probiems with alcoho
and described his history with Whitmarsh. |d. at 177-93. He disputed Mormris's clai
that ha szid he wanted to kill Whitmarsh, but he acknowledged being angry with her,
at 180. it was Whitmarsh who called O'Keefe and initisted their renewed ralationship
Id. at 191, He was aware that Whitmarsh had Hepatitis C when sha moved inta hi
apartment. K. at 197-94. In November, 2008, Whitmarsh was stressad because of her
financial condition. 3/20/09 TT 17. A coupie of days before the incident at issue hare
Whitmarsh confronted O'Kesfe with & knife. I, at 18-19. She had been drinking and
was on medication. Id, O'Keefe had not besn drinking that night and was able td
diffuse the situation. Id, at 1. On November 5, 2009, O'Keefe leamed that he would
be hired for & new job and had two glasses of wine to celebrate. |d at 21-24. O'Keefq
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and Whitmarsh went to the Paris Casino where they both had drinks. Id. at 24-25
They retumed home, and she was upssat and went upstairs while he reclined in thq
passenger saat of the car for a period of time. 1d. at 26-28. He went upstairs and then
smoked cutside on a balcony while sha was in the bathroom. Id, at 25-30. He then
want in the bedroom and saw Whitmarsh coming at him with 2 knife. Id at 33 He
swung his jacket at her and told her to get back. Id. He krew that she was mad at him
about a lot of things. K. He grabbed tha knife, she yanked it and cut his hand. Ig.
33. They struggled for a period of time. Id. at 33-36. During the struggle, she heid th
knife and fell down, he fell on top of her and then he realized that she was bleeding. Id,
at 35-37. He was still drunk at this point and was trying to figure cut what happened.
Id, at 37. He fried to stop the blesding and panicked. |d. at 39. He tried taking care
Whitmarsh and asked his neighbor to cal! somecne after the neighbor came into hj
room. |d. at 40. He became agitated when the neighbor brought another neighbor up
to look at Whitmarsh, who was partially undressed, rather than calling the paramedics.
id, at 41. O'Keefe denied hitting or slamming Whitmarsh. Jd. st 42. He testified that hel
did not intentionally kill Whitmarsh, but fet responsible because hs drank that night and
he should not have done so. Id. at 49,

ARGUMENT
O'Keafe requests rulings from this Court prohibiting the State from introducing,
and requiring the State to instruct their witnesses to refrain from ntroducing, impropen
other act evidence, other irelevant and overly prejudicial evidence, and evidence which
would viclate O'Keefe's constitutional rights.
The Fifth, Sixth and Fourlesnth Amendments to the United States Congtitution,

as well as the Nevada Constitution, article 1, section 8, protect a criminal deferdant’
right to a fair tria!, at which he may confront and croes-examine withesses and pre
@vidence in his defense. Pointer v_Texas, 380 U.S. 400 (1965) (recognizing that th
right of confrontation requires that a criminal defendant be given an opportunity td
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cross-examine the witnesses against him): Chambers v. Mississippi, 410 U.S. 284, 2
(1973) (stating that "the rights to confront and cross-examine witnesses and {0 cal
witnesses in cne's own behalf have long been recognized as essential to due process”).

NRS 48.016 provides that “relevant evidence’ means evidence having any
tendency to make the existence of any fact that is of consequenca to the determination
of the action mare or less probable than it would be without the evidence.” NRS
45.025(2) recognizes that “(elvidence which is not relevant is not admissible.”
Mareover, NRS 4B.035 provides in part that:

1. Although relevant, evidence is not admiasible if its probative value is

substantially outweighed by the danger of unfair prejudice, of confusion of
the issues or of misleading the jury.

2. Although relevant, evidence may be excluded if its efambaﬁve valua is

substantially outweighed by consigerations of undue d y, waste of tims

or needless presentation of cumulative evidence. . . |

Additionally, "[a]bsent certain exceptions, svidence of a person's character or g
trait of his character is not admissible for the purpose of proving that he acted in
conformity therswith on a particular occasion. Further, evidence of other crimes)
wrengs or acts is not admissibie to prove the charscter of a persan in order fo show thad
he acted in conformity therewith.” Tavior v. State, 109 Nev. 849, 853, 858 P.2d 843
846 (1993). If the State wishes to prove that character or cther act evidence ig
admissible under NRS 48 .045(2). for the purpose of establishing proof of motive,
opportunity, intent, preparation, plan, knowtedge, identity, or absence of mistake or
accident, the State must prove how these excaptions {o the general rule *specifically
relate to the facts of this case. A mere recitation of the statute is not sufficien
lustification for the admission of prior acts.” ld. at 854, 858 P.2d at 846. In additicn, thj
State “may not present character evidence as rebuttal {0 B defanse which the accused
has not yet presented.” |d. al 854, 858 P.2d at 847, Roaver v, State. 114 Nev. 867)
871, 963 P.2d 503, 505 (1958) (“[Tlhe bad character testimony should never have been
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introduced because it was not in rebuttal to a defense made by the accused.” {citing
NRS 48.045{1){(a}).

“Before an issue can be said to be reised, which would permit the
intreduction of such evidence so obviously prejudicial to the accused, it
must have been maised in substance if not in so0 many words, and the
issue so raised must be ona to which the prejudicial evidence is relevant.
The mere theory that a plea of not quilty puts everything material in issue
i8 not enough for this purpese. The prosecution cannot credit the accused
with fancy defenses in order to rebut them at the outset with some
damning piece of prejudice.”

Taylor, 114 Nev. at 854, 858 P.2d at 846 (quoting McCormick on Evidence § 190 at 452
n. 54 (Edward W. Cleary, 2d ed 1972} (quoting Lord Summer in Thompson v. The King,
App. Cas. 221, 232 {1918))). Prior to admitting such evidence, the State must first bringg
a "Petrocelli” motion and request a hearing to determine if "(1) tha incident is relevant ta
the crime charged; (2) the act Is proven by clear and convincing evidence; and {3) the
probative value of the evidence is not substantially outweighed by the danger of unfair
prejudice.” Rosver, 114 Nev. at 872, 963 P.2d at 505-06 {citing Tinch v. State. 11
Nev. 1170, 1176, 846 P.2d 1081, 1084-85 (1997); (Petrocellj v. Stgte. 101 Nev. 48, 55
P.2d 503 (1985)). However, even if the other-act evidence is relavant io a permissibl

purpase and proven by clear and convinging evidence, a court should still exciude it if
its probative value is substantially cutweighed by the danger of unfair prejudice. Id. &t
872, 963 P.2d at 505-06 (citing Tinch, 113 Nev. at 1176, 546 P.2d at 1064-85.

The Nevada Supreme Court recognizes that the use of character evidence il
convict 8 defendant is extremely disfavored in our criminal justice system. Such
evidence is likely fo be prejudicial and imelevant and forces the accused to dafend
ageinst vague and unsubstantiated charges. It may impropery influence the jury and
result in the accused's conviction because the jury believes he is a bad person. The use
of such evidence to show a propensity to commit the crime charged is clearly prohibited
by the law of this state and is commonly regarded as sufficient ground for reversal on
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1§ 3/18/09 7T 103, 118. Therefore, nothing close to the gutting or upward sternum a

appeal. See Taylor, 109 Nev. at 854 858 P.2d at B47 (citing Bemer v. Stale, 104 Nev)
685, 68€-87, 765 P.2d 1144, 1145-45 (1988)),

- ne _otgte SNOUD b8 prgciuded from introd 14 _avidence showing that

"Lu. hg clmm tOCH i l !t oyld kill anvone with a knlfe anc

The State did not seek permission to Introduce this evidence at the prigr trig
because the State did not balieve it was bad act or character testimony. When the
defense raised the issue, the Court ruled that the evidance did not show a bad act and
that Morris would be allowed to testify regarding the same. 3/16/09 TT 14-16,

Morris testified that O'Keefe made statements indicating he was proficient
knives and that he was capable of killing anyone with a knife. According to Morris, h
demonsirated how he wouid kill someona with a knife: "0'Kesfe would hold me on onal
shoulder and have a pretend sort of weapon in his band, and he would stand there and
hold me as ... arm's length and say he would come at me or could come at a person
and shove it through the cage - rib cage area and then just puli up pretty much _ . .
sficing someone open.* 3/17/09 TT 17. Morris demonstrated this slicing action on her
stemumn area. (d. at 17-18.

Whether this evidence is treated as other bad act evidence or not, it is irrsleva
and unfairty prejudicial. The alleged victim in this case was killed by a puncture lvplj
stab wound under her armpit that went directionally from front to back and downward |

slicing about which Momis contended ('Keefa had bragged occurred here. The 8
has shown no relevance, i.e., the evidence makes no fact of consequance more or |
probable.  Moreaver, the evidence tends to show that O'Keefa acted consistent with
character trait of being capable of killing with knives and that he is a killer. Thus,
avidence is highly inflammatory and unfairly prejudicial and must be excluded in order ta
protect O'Keefe’s constitutional right to a fair trial.
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B. Tha State shoulg Dg timited to present g g Judgment o DAVICHGN for
giony gomastic oattery with the redaction to it the reference o fl CONCLT
senfence.

Buring the prior trial, the parties agread that when the State introducad in IA
case-in-chief the copy of a cedified Juggment of Conviction to show the felony demestic
battery in C207835, the reference (o a concurrent sentence wouid be redacted. 3/18/0%
TT 122. Because of the irralevant and preiudicial nature of this evidance, and out of an

abundance of caution, O'Keefe requasts a ruiing requiring the same redaction for thig
trial.

During the prior trial, the State agreed that it would not introduce any evidence
reiated to the sexus! assault allegation, of which O'Keefe was acquitted in C202793
3/16/09 TT 10. Because of the imelevant and extreme prejudicial nature of thig
evidence, O'Keefe requests a ruling preciuding the State from intmdué.ing the sexua
assault allegation during the retrial.

. | e staie sho D DE D _-_ B f O T in 4_-L;_‘ O e tel ."_ I '.___.'...

During the prior trial, the State agreed that it would not introduce the term “sexual
assauit kit' or make reference fo any sexual assault in trial because thers is nol
avidence of @ sexual assault here. 3/18/09 TT 115-16. Because of the imrelevant and
prejudicial nature of term “sexual assault”, O'Keefe requests a ruling prohibiting the
State from introducing or using such terms during the retrial.
Hi
i
i
i

il
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During the prior trial, the State introduced numeraus photographs of bruising on
Whitmarsh's body over defense objection. 3/16/08 TT 267-68, 3H8f09 TT
(admitting exhibits 32-28, 40, 44-48, and 55-59), 126. However, the medical examiner
Dy. Benjamin, admitted that none of the bruises could be linked to the incident leading
Whitmarsh's desth. Further, Whitmarsh bruised easily upon norma! contact because
her advanced Cirhosis and Hepatitis C.  3/18/09 TT 415-16. None of the bruises
fife threatening and each could have been infiicted by Whitmarsh herself or anather
persan. 3718/08 TT 88-100Q.

On appeal, O'Keefe challenged the district courts ruiing permitting thel
introduction of these photographs, However, having reversed on the jury instruction
issue, the Supreme Court declined to address O'Keefe's remaining issues,

Thers is no foundation for any assertion that the bruises on Whitmarsh's bady
were caused by O'Keefe and were not the result of other incidents combined with her
Cirhosis of the liver medical condition. Given the lack of foundation showing & nexu
beiween the bruises and the events &t issue here, and their highly prejudicial an
inflammatory nature, this evidence should be excluded during the retrial. NRS 48.035:
Townsend v. State, 103 Nev. 113, 117-18, 734 P.2d 705, 708 (1887). Admission of thi
evidenca would viclate O'Keefe's constitutionai right to a fair trial, Spears v. Muilin, 34

F.3d 1215, 1225-26 (1Cth Cir. 2003); Romano y, Ckishoma, 512 U.S. 1, 12 {1984).
T te sho 2 luded in ing an farenge to
3l d ; ,

During the previous trial, the State introduced testimony frorn transportation
officer Hutcherson that O'Keefe toid him to “tumn that nigger music off and said *1 dos’
listen to nigger music. 3/17/09 TT 179, 251. This testimony came as a surprise to th
defense, and was the basis for a motion for mistrial. The State offered gn additiona

reason as to why it believed the testimony to be relevant:

12
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The intent and stats of mind of the defendant befors, during and after the

murder, the stabbing of Victoria, is very important to this case. The fact

that he's angry, mean, viclent, and is spewing racial slurs is in the State's

opinion probative and relevant to the casa.
JNG0STT 2-8.

O'Keefe raised the issue of the improper introduction of this evidence on appeal)
However, the Suprerne Court did not agdress the issue afier determining that reversal
was wamanted for the jury instruction error.

In order to protect his due process right ta a fair trial, O'Kesfe requests a pretﬁad
ruling prohibiting the State from introducing such prejudicial evidence. improper
references to race can be so prejudicial as to result in g denial of due process. m;j
¥. Modon, 265 F.3d 95, 114 (3rd Cir. 2001). There is no suggestion here that thi

incident in any way involved racial animosity. Admission of the evidencs would render

the trial fundamentally unfair, resulting in a denial of due pracass. The evide
constitutes evidence of bad charactar which would invite the jury to infer that ¢
committed the charged offense because of his bad character, and thus its admission
waould be improper. NRS 48.045; Tavares v. State, 117 Nav. 725, 30 P.3d 1128 {2001).
This evidence uniquely tends to evoke an emotional bias against O'Keefe and has ng
redevance to the issues of this case. Moreaver, admission of this eviderce would viciatel
O'Keefe's First Amandment rights. Dawson v. Delawarg, 503 U.S, 159 (1982).

During the testimony of Joyce Toliver, she was permitted to testify over defen
hearsay objection that her husband, Charles, retumed from O'Keefe’s apartment a
=8id, “baby, he done killed that gid." 3/16/09 TT 19898 The Court admitted
statement as an excited utterance.

However, the excited utterance hearsay exception s justified by the concept
8 wilness, having just witnessed a startling event, is likaly to truthfully describe it whil
still under the stress of excitement. See State v, Rivera, 578 P.2d 1373, 1375 (A:iz1
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00&094




1a

11

13

13

14

15

18

17

1%

15

20

21

22

23

24

25

2&

27

Faid

1984} (the underlying rationale for excitad ulterance @xception is that a witness having
just witnessed 8 startling event, s unlikety to fabricate). Hers, Charles Toliver did rof
witness any killing. His statement was clearly based on speculation. Therefore, o
admit such a statement for the truth of the matier asserted violates O'Keefa's fights to
confront and cross-examine withesses under the Sixth and Fourteenth Amendments of
the United States Constitution, and under Aricle 1, Section 8 of the Nevada
Constitution,

During the prior trial, the court allowed a police detective fo testify and offer his
epinion whether the wounds on O'Kesfe's hands were defensive wounds, while also
denying O'Keefe the right to call his own expert to testify as to whether or not the woLund
on the deceased could have bmen caused by an accident. Owver an cbjection b
O'Keefe's counsel, Detective Wildemann testified that in his experience as a homicide
detective, it has frequently been the case that a suspect in a stabbing has cuts on his
fingers on the same area that O'Keefe had a cut on his hand. 3/18/09 TT 183185
O'Keefe's counsel objected on the basis that the detactive was not an expert and whal
happened in other cases is irrelevant. 3/18/09 TT 184, 3/19/08 TT 3. The district court
overruled her objection, 3/168/09 TT 184, but later employed a different-standard whan it
precluded a defense experi from testifying as to whether the erime scene suggesied
that the death might have been acgidental. 3/19/09 TT 143.53.

The defense expert, George Schiro, has extensive experience as & forensic
scientist and crime scane reconstruction and he had previously testified as to whethe
wounds were defensive or accidental, The district court found that the gquestion was
beyond Schiro's expertise and beyond what was identified in his report. ld. OFKeefe
challenged the district court's rulings on appeai, however, the Suprame Court declined
to address the issue having already determined to reversa on other grounds.
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to O'Keefe's, regardless of the circumstances under which the cuts were recaived
Therefore, the State should be precluded from introducing such evidence. O

qualified to maks such an opinion, Hallmark v. Eldridge. 189 P.3d 646 (Nev. 2008), an
he has been propery noticed as expert. To allow this otherwise usurps the jury’
function and violates O'Kesfe's constitutional rights to dua process and a fair trial. To
employ differant standards for the State's experts than for the defense's also would
violete O'Keefe's rights of equal protection and due process.

Evidence relating to the prior triat for open murder. the prior conviction of second-

degree murder, and the subsequent reversal is irrslevant and should be prohibited.
Such evidence is likely to cause jurors to shift the burden of proof 1o O'Keefe, as ha ha
already bean once convicted, and the Jury may improperly rely upon the previous junfj
assessment of the case. Likewise, the jury may become prejudiced against O'Keefs for
appealing and nol accepting the previous jury’s determination, Finally, the knowl

that O'Keefe appealed from his previous conviction may ilead the jury to fee!
diminished sense of responsibility since the prior jury did not have the last word on th
subject. Cf. Geary v, State 112 Nev. 1434, 930 P.2d 719 (1998) (concluding that
constititional viclation occurred when a death penalty jury was told that the defendan
would not be executed until ha completed his first sertence of life in prison, as thi
created an intolerable danger that the jury minimized its role because it believed that th
ultimate detarmination of death rested with others, such as the defandant, if he sough

commutation, and the Parole Board, if it granted parole), clarified on other groynds on
15
n01Nas




reh'g, 114 Nev. 100, 952 P.2d 431 (1898). Here, O'Keefs shouid not be furthe;
burdened by the violation of his rights during the previous trial, and to allow the fact oi
the previcus trial, conviction, or appeal into evidence would taint his right to a fair retrial.

CONCLUSION
Based on the foregoing, Brian O'Keefs moves this Honorable Court for rulings
precluding the State from intmducing_ improper evidence and argument as set forth
above and requiring the State to caution its witnesses regarding the same.
DATED this 20™ day of July, 2010.
PALM LAW FIRM, LTD.

Patricia Palm, Bar No. 6009
1212 Casing Center Bivd.
Las Vegas, NV 88104
Phone: (702) 386-8113

Fax: (702) 386-9114
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CEl OPY

L, the undersigned, acknowledge thatonthe __ dayof
2010, } received a true copy of the foregoing NOTICE OF MOTION AND MOTION BY|
DEFENDANT O'KEEFE TO PRECLUDE THE STATE FROM INTRODUCING AT
TRIAL OTHER ACT OR CHARACTER EVIDENCE AND QTHER EVIDENCE ‘M-IICI-‘
IS UNFAIRLY PREJUDICIAL OR WOULD VIOLATE HIS CONSTITUTIONAL
RIGHTS.

CLARK COUNTY DISTRICT ATTORNEY
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PALM LAW FIRM_LTD.
PATRICIA PALM. ESQ.
NEVADA BAR NO. 6003
1212 CASINO CENTER BLVD.

LAS VEGAS, NV 83104 A,
Phone: (702) 386-9113

Fax: {702) 388-8114
Email: Patricia.paimia mail. com @“’! 0
Aﬂamey%anan G'RE% % ; %
DISTRICT COURT ﬁ
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

STATE OF NEVADA, CASE NO.: C250620

Plaintiff, DATE:
i —
Ve, OECEEDGEN
TIME: m al Motion
BRIAN K. O'KEEFE, EB4421

S R T

NOTICE OF MOTION AND MOTION BY DEFENDANT O'KEEFE TO ADMIT
EVIDENCE PERTAINING TO THE ALLEGED VICTIM'S MENTAL HEALTH
CONDITION AND HISTORY, INCLUDING PRIOR SUICIDE ATTEMPTS, ANGER
CUTBURSTS, ANGER MANAGEMENT THERAPY, SELF-MUTILATION
AND ERRATIC BEHAVIOR

TO: THE STATE OF NEVADA, Plaintif and

TO; DISTRICT ATTORNEY'S OFFICE., its counsel:
PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that on the sbove date and time, or as soon thereafter
as counsel can be heard, Defendant Brian K. Q'Keefe, by and through his atiorney,
Patricia Paim of Palm Law Firm, Ltd., wil! move the Court for an order allowing him to
introduce evidence of the alleged victim's mental health condition and history, includingl

prior suicide attempts, anger outbursts, anger management therapy, self-mutilation, and
erratic behavior.

This Maticn is made and based upon the record in this case, including the pape

and pleadings on file herein, the Constitutions of the United States and the State
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IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

BRIAN K. O'KEEFE,
Appellant,

¥a.

THE STATE OF NEVADA
Respondent,

APPELLANT’S APPENDIX —

MATTHEW D. CARLING
31 East 400 Nerth, Bldg. #1
Cedar City, Lltah 84720
(702) 419-7330 (Office)
Attorney for Appellant

VOLUME V1 - PAGES 1000-1199

Supreme Court No.:

Distrer Court Case- Nowt R0 Filed
Dec 01 2015 10:52 a.m
Tracie K. Lindeman
Clerk of Supreme Court

STEVEN B. WOLFSON
Clark County District Attorney
200 Lewis Avenue, 3™ Floor
Las Vegas, Nevada 85155
Counsel jor Respondent

CATHERINE CORTEZ MASTO
Attorney General

100 North Carson Street

Caryon City. Nevada 80701-4717
Counsel for Respondent

Docket 69036 Document 2015-36443
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INDEX

O’Keefe, Brian

Document Page No.
{Ex Parte) Motion to Appoint Counsel filed on 12/06/13 4698-4700
"Amended” Exhibits to **Amended Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus by
& True Pretrial Detaines filed on 10/03/14 3008-5036
“Evidentiary Hearing Request” (Amended Petition for Writ of Habeas
Corpus Pursuant to NRS 34.360 Exclusive 1 Based on Subject-Matter of
Amended Information Vested in Ninth Circuit by Natice of Appeal then
“COA” Granted on a Double Jeopardy Violation with No Remand [ssued
Since) tiled on 10/03/14 4965.5007
“Reply” to State’s Response and Motion to Dismiss to Defendant’s Pro
Per Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus Prsuant to NRS 34.360 filed on
10/27/14 5052-5061
“True Pretrial Detainee’s” Reply to State’s Opposition(s) Admitting the
State has a Jurisdictional Defect by the Aung of a Notice of Appeal
Which Diveste Jurisdiction of the Matter Appeaied: ie.. O"Keefe's
Pretrial Habeas Matter Appealed to the 9™ Circuit on the Subject Matter
of the Amended Information Already Named a Double leopardy
Violation filed on 10/01/14 4989-4594
Affidavit of Matthew D, Carling, Esq. filed on 06/29/15 54475453
Affidavit of the Honorable Michael P. Villani filed on 09/24/14 4981-4983
Amended Information filed on 02/10/09 0175-0177
Amended Notice of Appeal filed on 10729/15 3565-5568
Appendix of Exhibits for: Motion to Dismiss based Upon Vielation(s) of
the Fifth Amendment Component of the Double Jeepardy Clause,
Congtitutional Collateral Estoppel and, Alternatively, Claiming Res
Judicata, Enforceable by the Fourteenth Amendment Upon the States
Precluding State’s Theory of Prosecution by Unlawful Intentional
Stabbing with Knife, the Alleged Batiery Act Described in the Amended

| Information filed on 03/16/12 3225-3406
Case Appeal Statement filed on (33/14/14 4850-4851
Case Appeal Statement filed on 04/11/14 4862-4863
Case Appeal Statement filed on 05/21/09 0334-0336
Case Appeal Statement filed on 0R/04/15 5476-5477
Case Appeal Statement filed on (8/12/15 5484-3485
Case Appeal Statement filed on 09/02/14 4525-4926
Case Appeal Statement filed on 09/04/12 3536-3537
Case Appeal Statement filed on (9/24/12 4625-4628
Case Appeai Statement filed on [0/20/15 5547-5548
Case Appeal Statement filed on 10/21/15 3554-5356
Case Appeal Statement filed on 11/04/15 5572-5573
Case Appeal Staternent filed on 11/24/14 5070-5071

Certificate of Mailing filed on 05/03/11
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Certificate of Service filed on 06/29/15 5454
Cletks Certificate Judgment Reversed and Remanded filed on 05/06/10 1023-1027
Criminal Bindover filed on 12/26/08 0004-0020
Criminal Crder to Statistically Close Case filed on 07/31/13 4662
Defendant (’Keefe's Opposition te Motion in Limine to Admit Evidence

of Other Bad Acts Pursuant to NRS 48.045 and Evidence of Domestic

Violence Pursuant to 48.061 filed on 01/18/11 28772907
Defendant’s Brief on Admissibility of Evidence of Alleged Victim’s

History of Suicide Attempts, Anger Outbursts, Anger Management

Therapy. Self-Mutiiation {With Knives andn Scissors), and Erratic

Behavior filed on 03/20/09 0293-0301
Defendant’s Motion to Require Court to Advise the Prosepective Jurors as

to the Mandatory Sentences Required if the Defendant is Convicted of

Second Degree Murder filed on 03/04/09 0196-0218
Defendant’s Motion to Settle Record filed on 03/24/09 0317-0322
Defendant’s Proposed Jury Instructions filed on 03/20/09 0302-0316
Defendant’s Proposed Jury Instructions filed on 08/23/10 1335-1393
Defendant’s Submission to Clark County District Antorney’s Death

Review Commitiee filed on 12/31/08 0021-0027
Defendant’s Supplemental Proposed Jury Instructions filed on D3/20/00 (290-0292
Defendant's Supplemental Notice of Witnesses filed on O8/16/10 1294-1296
District Court Amended Jury List filed on 03/19/09 0245
District Court Jury List filed on 03/16/09 {239

Ex Parte and/or Notice of Motion and Motion to Chief J udge to Reassign

Case to Jurist of Reason Based on Pending Suit 3;14-CV-00385-RCJ-

WGC Against Judge Michael Villani for procesding in Clear “Want of

Jurisdiction™ Thereby Losing Immunity. Absolutely filed on 08/28/14 4903-4912
Ex Parte and/or Notice of Motion filed on 08/28/14 4913

Ex Parte Application for Order Requiring Material Witness to Posi Bail

filed on 03/10/09 0232-0236
Ex Parte Motion for an Order Shortening Time filed on 08/16/10 1292-1293
Ex Parte Motion for Appointment of Counsel Pursuant to NRS 34.750

filed on 09/15/14 4950-4952
Ex Parte Motion for Defense Costs filed on 06/30/10 1037-1043
Ex Parte Motion for Production of Documents (Specific) Papers,

Pleadings and Tangible Property of Defendant filed on 01/13/14 4714-4720
Ex Parte Motion for Reimbursement of Legal Cost of Faretta Canvassea

Defendant to Above Instant Case filed on 12/13/13 4701-4707
Ex Parte Motion for Release of Medical Records filed on 04/08/11 3041-3042
Ex Parte Motion to Extend Prison Copywork Limit filed on 06/24/1 5 5438-5441
Exhibits to Petition for Wtit of Habeas Corpus by a True Pretrial Detainee

filed on 09/15/14 4954-4980
Ex-Parte Motion for Reimbursement of Incidental Costs Subsequent the

Court Declaring Defendant Indigent and Granting Forma Paupenis filed

on 01/2i/i4 47224747
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Ex-Parte Motion to Extend Prison Copywork Limit filed on 01/28/14 4764-4767
Filing in Support of Motion to Seal Records as Ordered by Judge filed on
04/19/12 3438-3441
Findings of Fact, Conelusion of Law and Order filed on 10/02/15 5528-5536
Information filed on 12/19/08 0001 -0003
[nstructions to the Jury {Insiruction No. 1} fited on G9/02/1¢ 1399-1426
Instructions to the Jury filed on 03/20/09 0246-0288
Judgment of Conviction (Jury Tria}) filed on 09/05/12 4623-4624
Judgment of Conviction filed en 05/08/09 0327-G328
Judicial Notice Pursuant NRS 47.140(1)-NRS 47.1 30(2} Supporting Pro-
Se Petition Pursuant NRS 34.360 filed on 03/12/15 5082-3088
Jury List filed on 06/12/12 3456
Jury List filed on 08/25/10 1396
Letters in Aid of Sentencing filed on 05/04/09 0324-0326
Motion by Defendant O"Keefe filed on 08/15/10 1329-1334
Motion for Complete Rough Drafi Transcript filed on 04/03/12 3430
Motion for Judicial Notice the State’s Failure to File and Serve Response
in Opposition filed on 02/24/14 4800-4809
Motion for Judicial Ruling filed on 05/24/10 1028-1030
Motion for Leave to File Supplemental Petition Addressing All Claims in
the First Instance Required by Statute for Judicia Economy with
Affidavit filed on 06/15/15 5420-5422
Motion for Relief from Judgment Based on Lack of Jurisdiction for LS.
Court of Appeals has not Issued any Remand, Mandate, or Remittitur
filed on 07/23/14 4871-4889
Motion to Continue Trial filed on 06/01/12 3450-3455
Motion to Dismiss Counse] filed on 10/03/11 3164-3168
Motion to Modify and/or Carrect [llegal Sentence filed on 01/27/14 4749-4759
Motion to Place on Calendar filed on 10/26/11 3169-3182
Motion to Place on Calendar filed on 11/28/11 3184-3192
Motion to Withdraw as Counsel filed on 04/29/1 | 3044-3047
Motion to Withdraw Counsel filed on 11/28/11 3193-3198
Motion to Withdraw Counsel for Conflict and Failure to Present Claims
when LA.C. Claims Must be Raised Per Statute in the First Petition
Parsuant Chapter 34 filed on 06/08/15 5148-5153
Motion to Withdraw filed on 09/14/10 1454-1437
Wotice of Appeal filed on 03/13/14 4843-4849
Notice of Appeal filed on 04/11/14 4858-4861
Notice of Appeal filed on 05/21/09 0332-0333
Notice of Appeal filed on 07/31/15 5467-5472
| Notice of Appeal filed on D8/11/15 5478-5483
Notice of Appeal filed on 08/29/14 4923-4524
Notice of Appeal filed on 1021115 3552-5353
Notice of Appeal filed on 11/03/15 3569-5571
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Notice of Appeal filed on 11/21/14

3067-5069

Notice of Change of Address filed on 06/06/14

4864-4865

Notice of Defendant’s Expert Witness filed on 02/20/09

G180-0195

Notice of Defendant’s Witnesses filed on 03/06/09

02240227

Netice of Enry of Findings of Fact, Conclusion of Law and Order filed
on 16/66/15

3537-5546

Notice of Expert Witnesses filed on 03/05/09

0222-0223

Notice of Motion and Motion by Defendant O Keefe for a Reasonable
Bail filed on (09/24/10

1441-1451

Notice of Motion and Motion by Defendant O Keefe for Discovery filed
on 08/02/10

12111219

Notice of Motion and Motion by Defendant O’ Keele for Evidentiary
Hearing on Whether the State and CCDC have Complied with Their
Obligations with Respect 1o the Recording of a Jail Visit Between
O’Keefe and State Witness Cheryl Morris filed on 08/02/10

1220-1239

Notice of Motion and Motion by Defendant O"Keefe to Admit Evidence
Pertaiming to the Alieged Victim's Mental Health Condition and History,
Including Prior Suicide Anempts. Anger Quibursts, Anger Management

(_Therapy, Self-Mutilation and Errratic Behavior filed on 07/21/10

1064-1081

Natice of Motion and Motion by Defendant O Keefe to Admit Evidence
Pertaining to the Alleged Vietim’s Mental Health Condition and History,
Including Prior Suicide Attempts, Anger Outbursts, Anget Management

Therapy. Self-Mutilation and Erratic Behavier filed on 07/21/10

1099-1116

Notice of Mation and Motion by Defendant O*Keefe to Admit Evidence
Showing LYMPD Homicide Detectives Have Preserved Blood/Breath
Alcohol Evidence in Another Recent Case fited on 08/02/10

1198-1210

Notice of Mation and Motion by Defendant O'Keefe to Dismiss on
Grounds of Double Jeopardy Bar and Speedy Trial Violation and,
Alternatively, to Preclude State’s New Expert Witness. Evidence and
Argument Relating to the Dynamics or Effects of Domestic Violence and
Abuse filed on 01/07/11

2785-2811

Notice of Motion and Motion by Defendant O’ Keefe to Preclude Expert
Testimony filed on 08/16/10

1284-1291

Notice of Motion and Motion by Defendant O Keefe to Preclude the State
from Introducing at Trial Other Act or Character Evidence and Other
Evidence Which is Unfairly Prejudicial or Would Violate his
Constitutiona! Rights filed on 07/21/10

1047-1063

Notice of Motion and Motion by Defendant O'Keefe to Preclude the State
from Introducing at Trial Other Act or Character Evidence and Other
Evidence Which is Unfaitly Prejudicial or Would Violate his
Constitutional Rights filed on 07/21/10

1082-1098

Notice of Motion and Motion by defendant O'Keefe to Preclude the State
from Introducing at Trial Improper Evidence and Argument filed on
01/3/11

1682-2755

Notice of Motion and motion by Defendant Q*Keefe to Suppress his

_5.
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15
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17
18
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21
22
23
24
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26
27
28

Statements 1o Police, or, Alternatively, to Preclude the State from

Introducing Portions of his Interrogation filed on 08/62/10 1152-1198
Notice of Motion and Motion for Leave of Court te File Motion for
Rehearing - Pursuant 1o EDCR, Rule 2.24 filed on 08/29/14 4514-492]
Notice of Motion and Motion in Limine to Admit Evidence of Other Bad
Acts Pursuzant 1o NRS 48.045 and Evidence of Domestic Violence
Pursuant to 48.061 filed on 01/06/11 2762-2784
Notice of Mation and Motion to Admit Evidence of Other Crimes filed on
02/02/0% 0150-0165
Notice of Motion and Metion to Admit Evidence of Polygraph
Examination Results filed on 03/29/12 3412-3415
Notice of Motion and Motion to Dismiss based Upon Violation(s) of the
Fifth Amendment Compoenent of the Double Jeopardy Clause,
Constitutional Collateral Estoppel and, Alternatively, Claiming Res
Judicata, Enforceable by the Fourteenth Amendment Upon the States
Precluding State’s Theory of Prosecution by Unlawful Intentional
Stabbing with Knife, the Alleged Battery Act Described in the Amended
Information filed on 03416/12 3201-3224
Notice of Motion and Motion to Seal Records filed on 03/22712 3416-3429
Notice of Moation and Motion to Waive Filing Fees for Petition for Writ of
Mandamus filed on 12/06/13 46935-4697
Notice of Motion and Motion to Withdraw as Attorney of Record filed on
09/23/15 5517-5519
Notice of Motion and Motion to Withdraw as Attorney of Record filed on
(9/29/15 5525-5527
Notice of Motion filed on 01/13/14 4721
Notice of Motion filed on 01/21/14 4748

| Notice of Motion filed on 01/27/14 4760
Natice of Motion filed on 02/24/14 4810
Notice of Motion filed on 03/04/14 4833
Notice of Motion filed on 06/08/15 5154-5160
Notice of Motion filed on 07/23/14 4890
Notice of Motion filed on (G8/29/14 4922
Notice of Motion filed on 09/15/14 4953
Notice of Witness and/or Expert Witnesses filed on 02/03/09 G166-0167
Notice of Witnesses and/or Expert Witnesses filed on 02/] 7/00 0178-0179
NV Supreme Court Clerks Certificate/ Judgment Affirmed filed on
02/06/15 5072-5081
NV Supreme Court Clerks Certificate/Judgment Affirmed filed on
07/26/13 4653-4661
NV Supreme Court Clerks Certificate/Judgment Dismissed filed on
06/18/14 4866-4870
NV Supreme Court Clerks Certificate/Tudgment Dismissed filed on
03/12/15 5089-3(93

NV Supreme Court Clerks Certificate/judgment Dismissed filed on

-6-
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(9/28/15 5520-5524
NV Supreme Court Clerks Certificate/Judgment Dismissed filed on
10/29/14 3062-5066
(O"Keefe’s Reply te State”s Oppesition te Motion to Admit Evidence
Showing LYMPD Homicide Detectives have Preserved Blood/Breath
Alcohol Evidence in Another Recent Case filed on 08/13/10 1256-1265
Opposition te State’s Motion to Admit Evidence of Other Bad Acts filed

| on D2/G6/09 0169-0172
Grder Authorizing Contact Visit filed on 03/04/09 0219-0220
Order Authorizing Contact Visit filed on 08/12/10 1253-1254
Order Denying Defendant’s Ex Parte Motion to Extend Prison Copywork
Limit filed on 08/13/15 5486-3488
Order Denying Defendant’s Ex-Parte Motion for Reimbursement of
Incidental Cests Declaring Defendant Ingigent and Granting Forma

uperis filed on 03/11/14 4840-4842

Order Denying Defendant’s Motion for Relief From Judgment Based on
Lack of jurisdiction for U.8. Court of Appeals had not Issues any
Remand, Mandare or Remittatture filed on 09/04/14 49274920
Order Denying Defendant’s Motion 10 Dismiss filed on 04711/12 3434-3435
Order Denying Defendant’s Motion to Seal Recoreds and Defendant’s
Motion to Admit Evidence of Plygraph Examination filed on 05/24/12 3448-3449
Order Denying Defendant’s Petition for Writ of Mandamus or in the
Alternative Writ of Coram Nobis; Order Denying Defendant’s Motien to
Waive Filing Fees for Petition for Writ of Mandamus: Order Denying
Defendant’s Motion to Appoint Counsel filed on 01/28/14 4761-4763
Order Denying Defendant’s Pro Per Motion for Judifical Notice- The
State’s Failure to File and Serve Response in Opposition filed on 04/01/14 4855-4857
Order Denying Defendant’s Pro Per Motion for Leave to File
Supplemental Petition Addressing all Claims in the First [nstance
Required by Statute for Judicial Economy with Affidavit filed on
07/15/15 5464-3466
Order Denying Defendant’s Pro Per Motion to Modify and/or Correct
lllegal Sentence filed on03/25/14 4852-4854
Order Denying Defendant’s Pro Per Motion to Withdraw Counsel for
Conflict and Failure to Present Claims When LA.C. Claims Must be
Raised Per Statute in the First Petition Pursuant 1o Chapter 34 filed on
G7/153/15 5461-5463
Order Denying Matthew D. Carling’s Motion to Withdraw as Attomey of
Record for Defendant filed on 11/19/15 5574-5575
Order Denying Mation 10 Disqualify filed on 10/06/14 S037-5040
Otder filed on 01/30/09 0149
Order filed on 11/06/10 1462-1463
Order for Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus filed on 10/15/14 5051
Order for Production of Inmate Brian O'Keefe filed on 05/26/10 i032-1033
Order for Return of Fees filed on 11/10/1] 3183

-7-
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| Order for Transcripts filed on 04/30/12 | 3442
Order CGrranting and Denying in Part Defendant’s Ex-Parte Maotion for
Production of Documents (Specific) Papers, Pleadings. and Tangible
Property of Defendant filed on 02/28/14 4818-43820
Order Granting Ex parte Motion for Defense Costs filed on 07/01/10 1044-1045
Order Granting Request for Transcripts filed on 0172071 ] 2966-2967
Order Granting Request for Transcripts filed on 04/27/11 3043
Order Granting Request for Transcripts filed on 09/14/10 1430-1431
Order Granting Request for Transeripts filed on 09/16710 1438-1435
Order Granting, in Part, and Denying, in Par(, Motion by Defendant

_O'Keete for Discovery filed on 08/23/10 1394-1395
Order Granting, in Part, and Denying, in Parr, Motion by Defendant
O’Keefe to Preciude the State from Introducing at Trial Other Act or
Character Evidence and Other Evidence Which is Unfairly Prejudicial or
Would Violate his Constitutional Rights filed on 09/09/1( [427-1429
Order Granting, in Part, the State’s Motion 1o Admit Evidence of Other 3199-3200
Bad Acts filed on (3/13/12
Order Relgasing Medical Records filed on 04/08/1 1 3039-3040
Order Requiring Material Witness to Post Bail or be Committed to
Custody filed on 03/10/09 0230-0231
Order Shortening Time filed on 08/16/10 1283
Petition for a Writ of Mandamus or in the Alternative Writ of Coram

| Nobis filed on 12/06/13 4663-4694
Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus or in the Alternative Motion to
Preclude Prosecution from Seeking First Degree Murder Convietion
Based Upon the Failure to Collect Evidence filed on 01/26/09 0125-0133
Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus Pursuant to NRS 34.360 Exclusive |
Based On Subject-Matter of Amended information Vested in Ninth
Circuit by notice of Appeal Then “COA™ Granted on a Double Jeopardy
Viglation with No Remand Issued Since filed on 09/]15/14 4940-4949
Petitioner’s Supplement with Exhibit of Oral Argument Scheduled by the
Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals for November 17, 2014, Courtroom #1
filed on 10/01/14 4984-4988
Pro Se “Reply to State’s Opposition 1o Defendant’s Pro Se Motion o
Modify and/or Correct Illegal Sentence filed on 03/04/14 4821-4832
ProSe “Reply™ to State’s Opposition to Defendant's (Ex-Parte) “Motion
for Reimbursement of Incidental Costs Subsequent the Courts Declaring
Defendant Indigent and Granting Forma Pauperis™ filed on 02/24/14 4792-4799
Receipt of Copy filed on 01/03/11 2761
Receipt of Copy filed on 01/12/11 2812
Receipt of Copy filed on 01/12/11 2813
Receipt of Copy filed on 01/18/11 2876
Receipt of Copy filed on 01/27/09 0134
Receipt of Copy filed on 01/30/00 0146
Receipt of Copy filed on 02/06/00 | 0168
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Receipt of Copy filed on 03/04/09 | 0221
Receipt of Copy filed on 03/24/09 0323
Receipt of Copy filed on 05/24/10 1031
Receipt of Copy filed on 06/13/1) 3163
Receipt of Copy filed on 06/30/10 1G36
Receipt of Copy filed on 08/02/10 1240
Reczipt of Copy filed on 08/02/10 1241
Receipt of Copy filed on 08/02/10 1242
Receipt of Copy filed on 08/02/10 1243
Receipt of copy filed on 08/13/10 1255
Receipt of Copy filed on (09/14/10 1432
Receipt of Copy filed on 08/17/10 1433
Receipt of Copy filed on 09/21/10 1440
Receipt of File filed on 07/01/10 1046
Reply in Support of Supplemental Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus
{Post-Conviction) filed on D8/25/15 3300-5510
Reply to State’s Response to Defendant’s Pro Per Post-Conviction
Petition for Habeas Corpus filed on 06/16/15 5423-5432
Reply to State’s Response (o Defendant’s Supplemental Petition for Writ
of Habeas Corpus filed on 08/24/15 5489-54%9
Reqeust for Rough Draft Transcripts filed on [0/21/15 3549-5551
Request for Rough Draft Transcripts filed on 07/17/12 3458-3460)
Request for Certified Transcript of Proceeding filed on 09/09/09 0772-0723
Request for Rough Draft Transcript filed on 05/21/09 0329-0331
| Request for Rough Draft Transcripts filed on 11/20/12 4629-4631
Return 1o Writ of Habeas Corpus filed on 01/29/09 0135-0145
Second Amended Information filed on 08/19/10 1326-1328
State’s Opposition to Defendant’s {Ex-Parte) “Motion for Reimbursement
of Incidental Costs Subsequent the Courts Declaring Defendant Indigent
and Granting Forma Pauperis” filed on 62/07/14 4768-4791
State’s Opposition to Defendant's Motion for a Reasonable Bail filod on
0927110 1452-1461
State’s Oppaosition to Defendant’s Motion for Judicial Notice — The
State’s Failure 1o File and Serve the Response in Opposition filed on
(3/10/14 4834-4839
State’s Opposition to Defendant’s Motion to Dismiss filed on 03/21712 3407-3411
State's Opposition 1o Defendant’s Motion to Preclude the State from
Introducing at Trial Improper Evidence and Argument filed on 01/12/11 2814-2871
State’s Opposition to Defendant’s Motion to Seal Records filed on
04/05/12 3431-3433
State’s Opposition to Defendant’s Motion to Suppress his Statements 1o
Police. or, Alternatively, to Preciude the State from Introducing Portions
of his Interrogation filed on 08/1 7/10 1306-1319

State”s Opposition to Defendant’s Motion to Withdraw Counse! for

Conflict and Failure to Present Claims When 1.A.C. Claims Must be
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lfaised Per Statute in the First Petition Pursuant 1o Chapter 34 filed on
06/25/13

|
5447-5446

State’s Opposition 10 Defendant’s Pro Per Motion for Leave of Court 1o
File Motion. . .Rule 2.4 filed on 09412/14

4935-4939

State’s Oppasition to Defendant’s Pro Per Motion to Chief Judge 10
Reassign Case to Jurist of Reason Based on Pending Suit Against Judge
Michael Villani for Proceeding in Clear “Want of Jurisdiction™ Thereby
Losing Immunity, Absolutely filed on (9/12/14

4930-4934

State’s Opposition to Defendant’s Pro Per Motion to Maodify and/or
Correct Illegal Sentence filed on (2/24/14

4811-4817

State’s Opposition to Motion for Evidentiary Hearing on Whether the
State and CCDC have Complied with their Obligations with Respect to
the Recording of a Jail Visit Between 0"Keefe and State Witness Cheryl
Morris filed on 08/10/10

1244-1247

State’s Opposition 10 Motion to Admit Evidence Pertaining 10 the Alleged
Victim's Mental Health Condition and History, Including Prior Suicide
Attempts, Anger Qutbursts, Anger Management Therapy, Self-Mutilation
and Erratic Behavior filed on 08/16/10

1277-1282

State’s Oppositicn to Motion to Admit Evidence Showing LVMPD
Homicide Detectives Have Preserved Blood/Breath Alcohol Evidence in
Another Recent Case filed on 08/10/10

1248-1252

State’s Opposition to Motion to Dismiss and, Alternatively, to Preclude
Expert and Argument Regarding Domestic Violenice filed on 01/18/11

2908-2965

State’s Oppasition to Motion to Preclude Expert Testimony filed on
0B/18/10

1320-1325

State’s Response and Motion to Dismiss Defendant’s Motion for Relief
from Judgment Based on Lack of Jurisdiction for U.S. Court of Appeals
had not Issued any Remand, Mandare or Remittatture of filed on 08/07/14

4891-4902

State’s Response and Motion to Dismiss to Defendant’s Pro Per Petition
for Writ of Habeas Corpus Pursuant to NRS 34.360 Exclusive based on
Subject-Matter of Amended Information Vested in Ninth Circuit by
Notice of Appeal Then “COA”™ Granted on a Double jEcpardy Violatio
with No Remand Issued Since (Post Conviction), Amended Peition ang
Accompany Exhibits, Opposition to Request for Evidentiary Hearing, and
Opposition to Pro Per Motion to Appoint Counsel filed on 10/10/14

3041-5050

State’s Response to Defendant’s Motion to Preclude the State from
Introducint at Trial Other Bad Acts or Character Evidence and Other
Evidence that is Unfairly Prejudicial or Would Viclate his Contitutionsal
Rights filed on 08/16/10

1268-1276

State’s Response to Defendant’s Petition for 2 Writ of Mandamus or in
the Alternative Writ of Coram and Response ta Motion to Appoint
Counsel filed on 12/31413

4708-4713

State’s Response to Defendant’s Pro Per Post-Conviction Petition for Writ
of Habeas Corpus filed on 06/02/15

5145-5147

State’s Response to Defendant’s Pro Per Supplemental Petition for Wit
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of Habeas Corpus and Evidentiary Hearing Request, “Motion for Leave to
File Supplemental Petition Addressing all Claims in the First Instance
Required by Statute for Judicial Economy with Affidavit.” “Reply to
State's Response 1o Defendant’s Pro Per Post Conviction Petition for
Habeas Corpus,” and “Supplement with Notice Pursuant NRS 47. 1 S({2);
NRS 47.140¢ 1}, that the Untied States Supreme Court has Docketed (#14-
10693) the Pretrial Habeas Corpus Matter Pursuant 28 USC 2241{c)(3)
from the Mooting of Petitioner's Section 2241 Based on a Subsequent
Judgment Obtained in Want of Jurisdiction While Appeal Pending” filed

on 07/0%/15 53455-5458

State’s Response to Defendant’s Reply in suppott of Supplemental Post-

Conviction Petition for Wit of Habeas Corpus filed on 09/03/15 3511-5516

State’s Response to Defendant’s Supplement to Supplemental Petition for

Writ of Habeas Corpus (Posi-Conviction) filed on 07/31/15 54'73-5475

State’s Supplemental Opposition to Motion to Seal Records filed on

04/17/12 3436-3437

Stipulation and Order filed on 02/16/09 0173-0174

Substitution of Attorney filed on 06/29/10 1034-1035

Supplement to Supplemental Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-

Conviction) filed an 07/13/15 3459-5460

Supplement with Notice Pursuant NRS 47.150 (2); NRS 47.140 (1}, That

the United State’s Supreme Court has Docketed (#14-10093) The Pretrial

Habeas Corpus Matter Pursuant 28 U.S.C.4 2241 ©(3} From the Mooting

of Petitioner's Section 2241 Based on a Subsequent Judgment Obtained in

Want of Jurisdiction While Appeal Pending filed on 06/17/15 53433-5437

Supplemental Appendix of Exhibits to Petition for & Wat of Habeas

Corpus Exhibits One (1) Through Twenty Five {25) filed on 06/12/15 3161-5363

Supplemental Notice of Defendant’s Expert Witnesses filed on 0729710 1117-1151

Supplemental Notice of Expert Witness filed on 0571 7/12 3443-3447

Supplemental Notice of Expert Witnesses filed on 01/03/] | 2756-2760

Supplemental Notice of Expert Witnesses filed on 08/13/10 1266-1267

Supplemental Notice of Expert Witnesses filed on 08/16/10 1297-1305

Supplemental Notice of Witnesses filed on 01/14/11 2872-2875

Supplemental Notice of Wilnesses filed on 03/10/09 0228-0229

Supplemental Notice of Wilnesses filed on 03/1 1/09 0237-0238

Supplemental Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post Conviction) filed

on 04/08/15 5094-5144

Supplemental Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus filed on 06715/15 5364-5419
| Verdict filed on D3/20/09 {289

Verdict filed on 06/] 5/12 3457

Verdict Submitted to the Jury but Returned Unsigned filed on 09/02/10 1397-1398

Wit of Habeas Corpus filed on G1/30/09 0147-0148
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TRANSCRIPTS

Document Page No. |
Transcript ~ All Pending Motions and Calendar Call filed on 02/04/11 2996-3038
Transcript — All Pending Motions filed on 07/10/09 0351-0355
Transcript — All Pending Motions filed on 08/30/12 3461-3482
Transeript — All Pending Motions filed on 11/23/10 1464-1468
Transcript — All Pending Motions on 07/10/09 0348-0350
Transcript — Calendar Call filed on 02/04/1 1 2968-2973
Transcript — Calendar Call filed on G8/30/12 3520-3535
Transcript — Continued Hearing: Motion in Limine to Present Evidence of
Other Bad Acts filed on 08/30/12 3483-3509
Transcript - Defendant’s Perition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post
Conviction) filed on 10/29/15 5560-5564
Transcript ~ Defendant’s Pro Per Motion to Dismiss Based Lipon
Violation(s) filed on 08/30/12 3510-3519
Transcript — Defendnat’s Motion to Settle Record filed on 07/10/09 0342-0345
Transcript — Eniry of Plea/Trial Setting filed on 07/10/09 (356-0358
Transeript - Jury Trail — Day | filed on 10/14/09 0724-1022
Transeript — Jury Trial — Day 1 filed on 07/10/09 0582-0651
Transcript — Jury Trial — Day 1 filed on 07/10/09 0652-0721
Transeript — Jury Trial - Day 1 filed on 09704/12 4278-4622
Transcript — Jury Trial - Day 1 filed on 11/23/10 1579-1602
Transeript — Jury Trial — Day 2 filed on 07/10/09 0515-0581
Transcript — Jury Trial — Day 2 filed on 11/23/10 1603-1615
Transcript — Jury Trial — Day 2 on 09/04/12 4001-4227
Transcript — Jury Trial - Day 3 filed on 07/10/09 (0462-0514
Transeript — Jury Trial — Day 3 filed on 11/23/10 1616-1738 |
Transcript - Jury Trial — Day 3 an 09/04/12 3779-4000
| Transcript — Jury Trial - Day 4 filed on 07/10/09 0408-0461
Transcript - Jury Trial — Day 4 filed on 11/23/10 1739-2032
Transcript - Jury Trial — Day 4 on 09/04/12 3600-3778
Transcript — Jury Trial — Day 5 filed on 07/10/09 0359-0407
Transeript — Jury Trial — Day 5 filed on 09/04/12 3538-3599
Transcript — Jury Trial — Day 5 filed on 11/23/10 2033-2281
Transcript — Jury Trial — Day 6 filed on 11/23/10 2282-2507
Transcript — Jury Trial — Day 7 filed on 11/23/10 2508-2681
Transcript ~ Jury Trial - Day 8 filed on 11/23/10 146G-1470
Transcript — Jury Trial - Day 9 filed on 11/23/10 1471-1478
Transcript — Matthew D. Carling’s Motion to Withdraw as Attorney of
Record for Defendant filed on 10/29/15 5557-5559
Transcripi — Motions Hearing — August 17, 2010 fited on 11/23/10 1479-1499
Transeript — Motions Hearing — August 19, 2010 filed on 11/23/10 1500-1536
Transcript — Motions Hearing ~ August 26, 2010 filed on 11/23/10 1537-1578
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Transcript — Notice of Motion and Motion by Defendant O Keefe o
Preclude the State from Introducing at Trial Improper Evidence and

Argument filed on 02/04/11 2974-2989
Transcript — Partial Transeript of the Jury Trial - Day 2 filed on 03/18/09 | 0240-0244
Transcript — Petrocelli Hearing filed on 05/19/11 3049-3162
Transcript — Proceedings filed on 01/02/09 0028-0124
Transcript - Sentencing August 16, 2012 filed on 12/03/12 4632-4635
Transcript — Sentencing August 28, 2012 filed on 12/03/12 4636-4652
Transcript - Sentencing filed on 07/10/09 0337-0341
Transeript — Status Check: Availability of Dr. Benjamin for Trial filed on

| 02/04/11 2990-2993
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MR. PIKE: Based upon -- it's information that is
he's basing his opinion on whether to call for medical help.
Present sense impression of Brian O'Keefe, excited utterance
{indiscernible) .

MR. SMITH: Well, Judge it's still his statement: and
it's offered -- it would -- we presume it would be offerad for
the truth --

THE COURT: I'm going to sustain the objection.

BY MR. PIKE:
Q Without saying what he said -- well, without saying

what Brian said, you heard him talking to Victoria?

3 Yag .
¥ 2nd then you went and called for an ambulance. Now,
the -- and the entire time that you went up there, Brian didn't

try and keep you cut of the apartment?

A Other than take a swing at me and tell me to get the
hell out,

Q Right. Didn't come at you with a weapon?

A No.

Q0 Indn't try and lock door?

A Nao.

Q Didn't try and clese any doors on you?

A No.

8] bidn't try and shove you out of the apartment?

& No.

Verbatim Digital Reporting, LLC - 363-798-0%90
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Q Other than the swing, he wasn't swearing at you,
wasn't yelling at you? When you came up btowards the apartment,

you didn't hear any yelling or acreaming - -

A No,
0] -- or fighting or anything at all, did you?
A Ho.

o} And then when you left the apartment, Brian didn't

try and run out of the apartment?

. Ho,

O He didn't try and leave the scene.

A No,

9] He didn't try and break away or leave that apartment

or leave Victoria, did he?
! Ne.
MR, PIKE: Have I in further gquestions.
THE COURT: Moy redirect.
MR. SMITH: Briefly.
REDIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. SMITH:
8] Mr. Armbruster, how long did it take the police to

arrive from the time you left the apartment?

3 It seemed like just a couple minutes.

2 S¢ was it pretty quick?

A Pretty guick,

Q Okay. Now, while you were inside the apartment,

Verbatim Digital Reporting, LLC - 303-798-0890
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after Mr, O'Keefe tLook a swing at you, were you asked to call
for medical assistance or anything?

A Na .

19! Okay.

MR. BMITH: HN¢ further guescions.
THE COURT: Any further cross, Mr. Pike?
MR. PIKE: Thank vyou.
RECROSS-EXAMINATION
BY MR. PIKE:

o] And as Brian -- as you saw Brian during that period
of time, and you saw him get up from where he was looking ak
Victoria, he appeared to be stumbling and not very steady on
his feet, didn't he?

A Yeah.

ME. PIKE: HNo further guestions.

THE CQURT: Anything further?

MR. SMITH: Nothing, Judge. Thaok you.

THE COURT: Any questions from the jurors? All
right, no. S8ir, you're instructed not to discuss your

testimony with any other witness involved in this case until

this matter is finally resolved. Thank you for your time, sir.

THE WITNESES: All right,
THE COURT: Do we have a witness that will take a
short amount of time or --

MRE. SMITH: We do actually have a short witness.

Verbatim Digital Reporting, LLC - 303-798-0890 001002
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THE COURT: All right.

ME. PIKE: You're Honor, we'll also relieve this
witness from --

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. PIKE: -- the defense subpoena.

THE COURT: All right.

MR. PIKE: 80 this is your -- all of your
appearances.

THE WITNESS: Okay.

MR. PIKE: Thanks.

THE COGURT: All right, next witness.

MR. SMITH: Scate's next witness, Judge, is Jimmy
Hathoox.

THE MARSHAL: Mr. Hathcox, 1f you'll re=main standing,
please. Raise your right hand and face the clerk.

JIMMY HATHCOX, STATE'S WITNESS, SWORN

THE CLERK: Please be seated. Will you please state
your mame and spell it for the record.

THE WITNESS: Jimmy Hathcox, H-a-t-h-c-o-x.

THE CLERE: Thank vou.

THE CCURT: Go ahead, Counsel.

MR. SMITH: Thank you, Judge.

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. SMITH:

Q Mr. Hathcox, where do you presently reside?

Yerbatim Digital Reporting, LLC ~ 303-798-0800
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Q
A

o

5001 El Pargue, Apartment 36.

How leong you been living there?

About a year.

I= Apartment 36 next to Apartment 357
Yes.

Are you familiar with rthe occupants of Apartment 15

back on November 5th, 20087

A

Q

wearing.

A

Yes .,
And who resided there?
Brian ¢'Keefe aznd his girlfriend.

Ckay, do you see Brian O'Keefe present in court

¥Yes, I do.

Now, will you identify for the record what he's

Right here.
THE COURT: He's on the far left?
THE WITNESS: Yeah, I see him right here.

MR. PIKE: We'll stipulate to the identity, your

Honor, Thank vou.

defendant .

THE COURT: Record reflect identification of the

MR. SMITH: Thank you, Judge.

B5Y MR. SMITH:

Q

And the -- you you said his girlfriend. Would that

Verbatim Digital Reporting, LLC - 383-798-08%
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he a female occupant?
A Yes,
Q I'm showing you what' been admitted as State's

Exhibit 4. Is that a photograph of the female occupant?

A Yes, sir, it lcoks like her.

Q Let's zee if T can focus it. Is that a picture of
her?

A Yes, it loocks like her.

Q How I want to draw your atteéentisn, sir, to

approximately 10:00¢ o'clock p.m. on November 5th, 2008.
Anything unusual happen?

. I heard some noises over there, and I heard a --
well, whar are you referring to exactly? I mean, I --

Q Let's start with the noises. You say you hear noises
at 10:00 o'clock pom.?

2 Yeah. Yeah, I heard -- I heard noises coming out of
apartment. I don't remember the exact time. It was around
there, yeah.

8} Okay. Do you remember writing a handwritten
statement?

A Um-h'm.

Q Pursuankt to the peolice arriving afterwards?
2, Right.
Q Would looking at your handwritten staktement refresh

your recollection as to what time you began hearing rioises

VYerbatim Digital Reporting, LLC - 303-798-0890)
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coming from the apartmentc?

A Yeah, it was probably -- it wag prcbably around
10:00. It was probably around 10:00 I heard some toises, some
thumping noises coming out of there. And thenm a little bit
after that I heard a loud bang on the rail outside, and I
opened up the door and looked, and when I locked ocut I saw
Brian going into his apartment because I was looking out of
mine. I looked at him, he looked at me, he had kind of a weird
look on his face. 1 just closed the door. 2nd then probably
about 15 minutes later I heard Cookie from down stairs velling
zall the cops, and I went to my door, and when I got £ my
door, Cookie and Todd were there.

And Todd had went inte the apartment, and I said --
and then I didn't -- so I just kind of basically turned around
and went back into my apartment --

] Okay, let --

& -- at that peoint.

Q - me ask you this. Going back to the time when you
cpened your door and you look out and you exchange a lock with

the defendant, Brian O'Keefe --

A Right.

Q -- and then he goes back into his apartment? 1Is that
4 yeg?

A Yes.

Q Did you continue to hear anything coming from his

Yerbatim Digital Reporting, LLC - 303-798-0890
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apartment?

A Yeah, I kept hearing a little bit some noises over
there.

4] Ckay. And then at some point you just testified

Cockie comes out?

A Cookie apparently had heard the noise from down
staire and went up there, and he walked in and saw what he saw,
and came out and was yelling call the police. That's when I

went out my front door and looked in, buk I didn't go in the

dpartment.
| Q Okay. Now, can you describe that look you saw on the
defendant?
. It was & look like I ain't never seen on his face

before. It was a --

Q Ckay.

A -= Bgary looking leook to me. T just closed the door
and said h'm, you know.

Q Okay. ©Now, let me ask you this, throughout the time
that they had resided in Apartment No. 35, how many occasions
would you say you saw Victoria Witmarsh?

A I've seen them together almogt everyday.

Q Okay. Can you describe her stature, her body

composition?
. Her size, you mean?
g Yes, sir.

Verbatim Digilal Reporting, LLC - 303-798-0890 ne1LNN7
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A She was a small girl. Probably around five foot,
five foot, one, real thin, frail like. Kind of, you know, just
gmall girl.

Q Okay. Do you recall giving a recorded statement to
the police regarding the incidents of that night?

A Yes.

Q Do you recall telling the police that she was
actually a little kitty thing?

A Yes, she is. Shows a little bitty thing, yeah.

Q Ckay.

MR. SMITH: Nec further guestieon, Judge.
THE COURT: Cross,

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY ME. PIKE:

Q Good afternoon, sir.
A How you doing?
D I'm showing yvou Defendant's Exhibit Ne. §, which has

been admitted into evidence. And do you recognize thaose

apartments?
A Um-h'm.
4] Is that a yes?
A Yes.
O 1'm sorry, we're recording it --
A Okay, ves, yas.
Q -- 52 yes, I do that. BAnd your apartment would be

Verbatim Digital Reporting, LLC - 303-798-0890
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6.
A Right .
Q This apartment?
A Right.
0 And evening that -- of the events that we're talking

about, the door was open when you came out and when you heard
the noise on the guardrail ocut here?

A Ne, when I heard the noise on the rail, the door was
closed. He was geing in, and T just opened my door and kind of
looked out, and I saw him, and he saw me, and I just kind of
closed my door and went back in.

Q And went in, and then you didn‘t come back cut until
you heard Cookie.

A Right.

Q All right. HNow, you'd been able to see Mr. 0'Keefe
and the Victoria coming im and out of the apartment and also
you'd seen pricr to Victoria moving in there, you saw Brian
with a Cheryl Morris. Do you remember Cheryl?

Fo Yes.

o And during the time that you saw them out there, T'11
represent Lo you that there are other witnesses that indicated
that there was some chairs kind of ocut on the balcony down
towards the end there.

¥ Yeah, there were.

] And the building kingd of ends right there --

Verbatim Bigital Reporting, LLC - 333-798-08%0
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A Right.

Q -- dopesn't ir?

A Right.

Q S50 it's almost like a little patioc that has access

from your apartment and from Brian and Victoria's apartment?
. Right .
Q And there's chairs out there and you'd seen Brian

there with Cheryl, and you'd seen them out there drinking

before.
A Right.
Q And when Cheryl moved away did it seem to you that

Brian's drinking got worse?
i Maybe a little -- maybe --
ME. SMITH: Judge, I'm going to make an objection,
I'm going to make an objection to the relevance.
MR. PIKE: Intoxication is at issue in --
THE COURT: ©Overrule the objecticn.

BY MR. PIKE:

2 Did it appeay to you that he had been drinking more?
A Maybe a little bit more, yeah.
Q All right, And you saw the interaction between

Victoria and Brian when they'd come up the stairs and go into
their apartment, and you'd seen them on their day-to-day
travels to and from Lheir apartment.

A Ies.

¥erbatim Digital Reporting, LLL.C - 303-798-0890
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Q Buring that period of time did they appear to be a
couple?
A Yes, |
2 They were open about their relationship?
¥ Yes. I
(] She had moverd in?
A Yes.
o And they appeared to be a loving couple?
A Yes.
MR. PIKE: MNo further guestions.
THE COURT: Redirect?
MR. SMITH: Briefly, Judge.
REDIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. SMITH:
0 Mr. Hathcox, your cobservation of Mr. Q'Keefe that |
night, would you describe it that in your opinion you chought
he wag angry atL any point?
A He said -- he had a -- he had a look on his face that
night when I looked at him that I hadn't actually seen on his
face before. It locked -- he looked pissed, yeah,
Q Okay.
MR. SMITH: No further gueations.
THE COURT: &Any further cross?
RECROSS -EXAMINATION
BY MR. PFIKE:
|

Verbatim Digital Reporting, LLC - 303-798.0890
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you didn't hear noise for like an hour?

A

yelling, yes.

Q

pericd of time?

A

Q

Maybe f[ive minutes? Maybe an hour?

A

minutes or so, you know, on and off.

BY MR. SMITH:

Q

clear. It's your testimeny that the noises began, teo your

recallection, approximately 10:00 o'clock p.m.7?

A

Q

down your question and your juror number, please. Counsel

approach.

@ ® 285

Prior to the time that you heard Cnookie yelling, and
Well, did I hear noise. yeah, before I heard Cookis

But was it for a short pericd of time or for a longer

What do you mean?

About how long did it last? Maybe ten minutes?
Well, the first noises I heard probably lasted 20

MR. PIKE: Okay. HNo further questions.
ME. SMITH: Just briefly.
THE COURT: Yes.

FURTHER REDIRECT EXAMINATION

And, sir, I just want to make sure the record's

Yes, Eir.
Okay.
MR. SMITH: No further guestions,

THE COURT: Any guestions by the jurors? Yes, wrika

Verbatim Digital Reporting, L1.C - 303-798-0890
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(0Off-record bench conference} .

THE COURT: Ladies and gentlemen, I had mentioned
before that cerrtain guestions would be reviewsd by the Ccocurt as
well as the attorneys, and we're not legally able to ask this
particular guestion. All right, thank you, sir, for your time.
You're instructed not to discuss your testimony today with any
other witness involved in this case until this matter is
finally resolved. Thank you for your time, sir.

THE WITNESS: Thank you.

THE COURT: All right, ladies and gentlemen, it's
just six minutes after 5;00. We're geing to end -- we're going
to take a recess for the evening at this point. Every morning
I have a motion calendar. Tomorrow I have a criminal calendar
and Mondays and Wednesdays are my civil calendar. Tuesday,
Thurgdays are my criminal calendar. And I should be done about
9:15. T just got to scort of change gears here before we Btart
the trial. So if we can have everyone back at 9:30.

Sometimes cases go a litkle bit longer, but we
endeavor Lo start promptly at 92:30, but hopefully we're not any
later than 9:30. But please bear with us if we're a few
minutes late because like I said, I have about 19 matters I
have to resolve tomorrow morning hefore this case resumes
again.

So we'll you back at 9:30, During this evenirng

recess it is your duty not to converse among yourselves or with

Verbatim Digital Reporting, LLC - 303-798-0890 nG101 9
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anyone else on any subject connected with the trial or tao read,
watch or -- excuse me. You're not to converse among yourselves
or with anyone else on any subject connected with the trial ar
to read, watch or listen to any report over commentary on the
trial by any person connected with the trial or by any medium
of information, including without limitatian, newspaper,

television, radio or the Internet.

You're not to form or express an opinion on any
subject connected with this cage until in matter is finally I

submitted to you. We'll see you back at 9:30 tomorrow morning .

(Jury recessed at 5:08 p.m.}
(Qutside the presence of the jury)

THE COURT: All right, anything we need to resoive
before I leave the bench?

MS. GRAHAM: Should we resclve the photos because --

MR. SMITH: Yeah, we should because we probably want
Lo start getting inte that stuff tomarrow.

THE COURT: Ch, have you those photos? Well, letr's
-— you know what, let's -- can you guys stick arcund for a few
minutes? Do you have the numbers of the photos that are in
dispute? For the record, we're cutsgide the presence of Lhe
Jury.

Ckay, there was Proposed Exhibit 32. Ms. Palm or Mr.
Pike, are you familiar with --

M5. PALM: Randy. Mr. Pike.

Verbatim Digital Reporting, LLC - 303-798-0890
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MR. PIKE: Yes.

THE COQURT: -- Broposed 327

MR. PIKE: Yes.

THE COURT: Do you have an objection to that one?

ME. PIKE: I do. The cnes that have been separated
apart I have objections on. Maybe if we came up to the bench,
we can 9o through them with the Court, and --

THE COURT:; All right.

MR. PIKE: ~-- I can identify my cbjection.

THE COURT: That's 32.

MR. PIKE: 32. I objected. it shows the auropsy
photograph with bruising on the left arm in relationship to the
case. It -- again, the bruising, as I've indicated, the doctor
testified at the time of the preliminary hearing, was
cccasioned by her cirrhosis and she cannot identify them 2sg
contemporaneous with or associated with this event.

THE COURT: All right, Mr. Smith.

MR. SMITH: And Judge, that -- it's the State's
position that that's not what the medical examiner testified
to. What the medical examinar testified to is that a person
who suffers from cirrhosis, granted they may bruise easier than
a person who does not suffer from cirrhosis. That being said,
any argument based on that would go to the weight of that
evidence and not the admissibility, especially when now we have

evidence that there was a struggle this took place in this

Yerbatim Digital Reporting, LLC - 303-798.08%0
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apartment for at least an hour.

We should ke able ta put in these pictures that
corroborate our theory of the case that this was not jusk
simply the defendant stabbing her in a fit of -- or at a sudden
heat of the moment or that thie was a guick incident, but
rather that this was a long drown ocut affair.

Furthermore, it's certainly probative because it
helps to counter any claim that the defendant is going to make
that thig was self-defense.

THE COURT: Mr. Pike, was the testimony of the doctor
that although someone can bruise easier, that this is
specifically related to cirrhosis of the liver cnly?

MR. PIKE: It -- she just testified that cirrhosis of
the liver would cause someocne to bruice more eazily. If the
Court's concerned about whether or not these could be tied into
this event, then I think that at the time that the ME comes in,
there ehould be a proffer with her present as to whether or not
she can identify the time frame as to this.

Insofar as a struggle that has been suggested, there
is nothing in the photographs of the apartment to show that
anything is disturbed, that there was anything to indicate that
there was a fight, anything other than slammed doors, banging
on walls. But as far as a physical altercation, we don't have
any evidence of thar yet. Just loud noises.

THE COURT: You're saying you object to all which

Verbatim Digital Reporiing, LLC - 303-798-08%0
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would be 32 through 38,

MR. PIKE: It's ostensibly all of them.

ME. SEMITH: All wmuch them.

ME. PIKE: &ll of them.

THE COURT: Okay. Well, I think I'll just hear from
the medical examiner. You can just show the photographs before
they're -- you know, before you show them to the jury and then
see if she -- you know, that they can state this is strietly
related to a medical condition, I mean, in and of itself, or if
this is consistent with someone being grabbed or punched or
pushed, et cetera.

MR. SMITH: Well, is what she's going to say is that
it could be consistent with a person being battered, you it
could alsc be consistent with a person bruising easier due Lo
them having --

THE CGURT: Okay.

MR. SMITH: -- cirrhosis. S¢ means the threshold of
its admissibility, and it would just -- it's the State's
position that it would fall on Mr. Pike and Ms. Palm to argue
the weight of that evidence --

THE COURT: Right.

MR. SMITH: -- but not the admissibility itself.

THE COURT: Well, right now I'm just not -- I'm not
admitting the evidence --

MR. SMITH: Okay.

Verbstim Digital Reporting, LLC - 303-793-0890
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THE COQURT: -- because we need to have --

ME. SMITH: Sure.

THE COURT: -- the foundation.

MR. SMITH: Well, we wouldn'Lt show it to any --

THE COURT: Right.

MR. SMITH: -- of Lhese witnesszes.

THE COURT: Okay.

ME. SMITH: It would be the corcner.

THE COURT: Right.

MR. PIKE: Bubt the remainder of the photographs of
the scene, of the area and the other photographs - -

THE COURT: Okay, let's go over those, then. 44.

MR. PIKE: TIt's the same thing, ycur Honor, the
bruising that was there.

THE COQURT: Is this strictly the bruising sbjectien
versus any other objection that as long as it's related to --

MR. PIKE: Right.

THE COURT: Well, we'll see what the medical examiner
has to say. I thought there were some photographe that someone
may have said was overly gruesome or --

MR. SMITH: Yeah, are you talking about the cne --

MR, PIKE: There's --

M. EMITH: -- of the --

MR. PIKE: There's some that have blood on the -- the

bruising on her body can be shown without showing the entire

Verbatim Digital Reporiing, LLC - 303-798-0890

A01018



10

11

12

13

14

15

&
17

18

15

20

21

22

23

24

25

‘I' 'I' 2948

body laid ocut on the gurney, so --

THE COURT: Well, I haven't seen & quote, gruesome
photograph yec. Dc you have -- is it in this stack? I've gone
through all the stacks, and all the other cnes just show
bruising. And this is in No. 607

MR. SMITH: Judge, that's not too gruesome. T've
certainly seen worse.

MR. PIKE: Well, we're in a horrible profession to
Say what is gruesome and what isn't.

THE COURT: We had a bad one in a civil case couple
weeks back, so --

MR. PIXE: Oh, okay.

THE COURT: Now, I mean, I'm just -- like I say, I'm
going to wait for the medical examiner. But No. 60 just does
not seem overly gruesome. I mean, it's --

ME. PIKE: And I'm just -- and eut of an abundance of
caution, just so long as they bear -- if rhey can meet the
threshold that they show relevant injuries that are potentially
relevant to this case. And Counsel's correctly stated the
burden that he has, and we can -- we'll address that with the
COronery --

THE COURT: A1l right.

MR. PIKE: -- when she testifies.

THE COURT: There's really nothing I can do right at

this point until we hear the coroner. Anvthing else?

Verbatim Digital Reporting, LLC - 303-798-0890
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MR. PIKE: The remainder of the photographs can be

THE CQURT: Okay.

MR. PIKE: -- the State's.

THE COURT: Can you tell the clerk which numbers zo

M3. PALM: Did you guys look at ours?

MR. SMITH: No,

THE COURT: All right.

M5. PALM: ({Indiscernible}.

THE COURT: Yeah, we're off the record.
{Court recessed at 5:15 p.m. until Tueaday,

March 17, 2009, at 92:30 a.m.}

Verbatim Digital Reparting, LLC - 303-798-0890
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CERTIFICATION

239

1 CERTIFY THAT THE FOREGOING IS A COREECT TRANSCRIPT FROM
THE AUDIQ-VISUAL RECORDING OF THE PROCEEDINGS IN THE ABOVE-
ENTITLED MATTER.

AFFIRMATION

I AFFIRM THAT THIS TRANSCRIPT DCES NOT CONTAIN THE SOCIAL
SECURITY OR TAX IDENTIFICATION NUMBER OF ANY PERSON OR
ENTITY .

Verbatim Digital Reporting, LLC
Littleton, CO 80120
(303) 915-1677

% Lot 10~ 3-09

JULIE LORD, TRANSCRIBER DATE
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FILED

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

MAY 06 201
BRIAN KERRY O'KEEFE, Supreme Court No. 53853 %m
Appeiiant,
VS,
THE STATE OF NEVADA, Disirict Courl Case Mo,
FRespondent, > G

CLERK'S CERTIFICATE

STATE OF NEVADA, ss.

|, Tracie Lindeman, the duly appoirted and qualified Clerk of the Supreme Caurt of the State of
Nevada, do hereby certify that the following is a full, frue and correct copy of the Judgment in this
matter.

JUDGMENT

The court being fully advised in the premises and the law, it is now ordered, adjudged and decreed,
as follows: "ORDER the judgrment of conviction REVERSED AND REMAND this matiter to the
district count for proceedings consistent with this order.”

Judgment, as gquoted above, entersd this Tih day of Apdl, 2040,

IN WITHNESS WHEREOF, | have subscribed my name and affixed
the seal of the Supreme Courl al my Cffice in Carson City,
Mevada, this 3rd day of May, 2040.

Tracke Lindeman, Supremsa Court Clerk

™" Deputy Clork R ]u’%m

001023
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IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

BRIAN KERRY O'KEEFE, No. 53858
Appellant,
va, '
THE STATE OF NEVADA, F I L E D
Respondent. APR 07 200
TRAGIE K. LEDEMAN

e

ORDER OF REVERSAL AND REMAND

Thie i3 an appeal from a judgment of conviction entered
pursuant to a jury verdict of one count of second-degree murder with the
use of a deadly weapon. Eighth Judicial District Court, Clark County;
Michael Villani, Judge.

Appellant Brian Kerry ('Keefe contends that the diatrict court
erred by giving the State's proposed inetruction on second-degree murder
because it set forth an alternative theory of second-degree murder, the
charging document did not allege this alternate theory, and no evidence
supported this theory. We agree. “The distriet court has bread discretion
to settle jury instructions, and this court reviews the district court’s
decision for an abuse of that discretion eor judicial error. An abuse of
discretion occurs if the district court’s decision is arbitrary or capricious or
if it exceeds the bounds of law or reason.” Crawford v. State, 121 Nev.
744, 748, 121 P.34d 582, 585 (2005) {internal quotation marks and footnote
omitted). Here, the district court abused its discretion when it instructed
the jury that second-degree murder ineludes involuntary killings that
occur in the commission of an unlawful act because the State’s charging
documment did not allege that ('Keefe killed the victim while he was

0RO
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committing an unlawful act and the evidence presented at trial did not
support this theory of second-degree murder. Cf, Jernings v. State, 116
Nev. 488, 490, 998 P.2d 557, 559 (2000) (adding an additional theory of
murder at the close of the case violates the Sixth Amendment and NRS
173.075(1)). The district court’s error in giving this instruction was not
harmless because it is not clear beyond a reasonable doubt that a rational
juror would have found (YKeefe guilty of second-degree murder absent the
error. See Neder v. United States, 6527 US. 1, 18-19 (1999): Wegner v.
State, 116 Nev. 1149, 1155-56, 14 P.3d 25, 30 (2000), cverruled on othey
grounds by Rosaa v. State, 122 Nev, 1258, 147 P.3d 1101 (2006). Because
we conclude that the judgment of conviction must be reversed and the case
remanded for a new trial, we need not reach O'Keefe's remaining
contentions, Accordingly, we

ORDER the judgment of conviction REVERSED AND
REMAND this matter to the district court for proceedings consistent with
this order,

Clan

Iy

e

ce:  Hon. Michael Villani, District Judge

Special Public Defender . i
Attorney General/Carson City = “,IL-
Clark County District Attorney JEm T s
Eighth District Court Clerk L T
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IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

BRIAM KERRY O'WEEFE, Supreme Court No. 53859
Appellant,

VE.
THE STATE OF NEVADA, District Court Cage Mg, C250630
Fespondent.

REMITTITUR

TO: Steven D. Grierson, Clark District Court Clerk
Pursuant to the rules of this court, enclesed are the follawing;

Certified copy of Judgment and Opinion/Order.
Receipt for Remittitur.

DATE: May 3, 2010

Tracie Lindeman, Clerk of Court

By: Q. \{yﬁt—ﬁz\—-- = amo
Deputy Clerk

cc (without enclosures):
Hon. Michasl Villani, District Judge

Attorney General/Carson City
Clark County District Attorney
Special Publi¢c Cefender

RECEIPT FOR REMITTITUR

Received of Tracie Lindeman, Clerk of the Suprems Court of the State of Nevada, the

REMITTITUR issued In the above-entitled cause, on MAY 0 § 2010
HEATHER LOFQUIST

Doy Dustrict Court Clerk
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DAVID LM SCHIECI;(EFEN FILED

SPECIAL PUBLIC DER .

Nevada Bar #0824 MAY 2 4 200

Assistant Spaial Public Defend bibfones
ssisiant pecla uplic Ender

Nevada Bar #1940 c%"m COURT

MICHAEL W, HYTE,

Deputy Special Public Defender
Nevada Bar #10088

330 So. Third Street, Suite 4806
Las Vepas, Nevada 89155

(702) 455-6265

702) 455-6273 fax

:-MAIL: rpikef@co.clark nv.us
E-MAIL: mhytef@ico.clark.nv.us

Antorneys for Brian OKeefe
DISTRICT COURY
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
THE STATE OF NEVADA, CASE NO. C 250630
DEPT. NO. 17
Plaintiff

VE,
BRIAN O'KEEFE, ID# 1447732,
Defendant

MOTION FOR JUDICIAL RULING

DATE: June 10,2010
TIME: 8:15 AM

COMES NOW, BRIAN O'KEEFE, by and through his artorneys DAVID M, SCHIECK,
Special Public Defender and RANDALL H. PIKE, Assistant Special Public Defender, and
MICHAEL W, HYTE, Deputy Special Public Defender, and moves this Court to lssuc a mling
to the Defense regarding iU's obligation to provide the deceased's medical records to the

Defendant in light of HIPPA requirements, This Motion is made and based on the pleadings of
file herein, the Affidavit attached hereto, and any argument of counsel at the time of hearing of
the motion.

NOTICE OF MOTION
TQ: THE STATE OF NEVADA, Plaintiff; and
TO:  DISTRICT ATTORNEY 'S OFFICE, Plaintiff's attorneys:

, 010
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YOU WILL PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the undersigned will bring the foregoing
Motion on for hearing before the above-entitied Court on the 10th day of Junie, 2010, a1 the hour
of B:15 AM

STATEMENT OF FACTS
The defendant has requested that he receive a copy of the deceased’s medical records regarding

her treatment ai various mental health facilities, Al the first trial, Defense counsel filed a Petty
brief to admit her records which are believed lo be relevant to her state of mind at the time of
her death. The relevant portions of the medical records are outlined in that moticn. The Motion
was detied by the Court.

NT AUT
The Svandards for Privacy of Individuaily ldentifiable Health Information {“PrivacyRule™)

establishes, fur the first time, a set of national standards for the protection of certain health
tnforrnation. The U.S. Department of Healih and Human Services {"HH5"} issued the Privacy
Rule to implement the requirement of the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act
of 1996 ("HIPAA™). 1 The Privacy Rule standards address the use and disclosure of
individuals' heaith information—<alled “protecied bealth information” by organizations subject
to the Privacy Rule — called “covered entities,” as well as standards for individuals' privacy
rights lo understand and control how their health information is used, Within 11HS, the Office
for Civil Rights ("OOCR™) has respensibility for implementing and enforcing the Privacy Rule
with respect 1o voluntary compliance activities and civil money penalties. The Special Public
Defender is concerned that it fulls within the definition of “Business Assaciates™ and that
disseminatian is controlled by either HIPAA unless ordered by the Court. In general, a business
assoCiale 1S a person or erganization, other than a member of a covered entity's workforce, that
performs certain functions or activities on behall of, or provides certain services to. a covered
entity that involve the use or disclosure of individually identifiable health information. Business

associate functions or activilies on behalf of a covered entity include claims processing, data
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analysis, utilization review, and billing, Business associate services to a covered entity are
limited to legal, actuarial, accounting, consulting, data aggregation, management,
administrative, accreditation, or financial services. However, persons or organizations are not
considered business associates if their functions or services do not involve the use or disclosure
of protected health information, and where any access to protected health information by such
persons would be incidental, ifatall. A covered entity can be the business associate of another
coversd entily.

It is the policy of the Special Public Defender’s Office to only allow client’s access to
discovery that is redacted of addresses, telephone numbers, social security numbers and any
other items that would be considered personal information {Credit card numbers, any account
numbers, etc.). However, given the sensitivity of psychiatric records and in light of the Court’s
previous ruling that these records are inadmissible, the disclosure of the complete records
would be required by Court Order, (It is only through this method that the records can ever be
subject to subpaena.).

CONCLUSION
Wheretore, it is requested that the Court either enter an Order allowing the records (as redacted
abave) o be supplied (o the Defendant or rule that the requirements of HIPAA preclude such

digsemination.
i,
DATED this-q 77 of May, 2010.

SUBMITTED BY:

7 A S H-FF
MICHAEL H. HYTE
330 8. Third Sureet, Suile #R800
Las Vegas, Nevada 89155
Attorneys for O'KEEFE
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DAVID M. SCHIECK

SPECIAL PUBLIC DEFENDER
Nevada Bar #0824

RANDALL H. PIKE

Assistant Special Public Defender
Nevada Bar #1940

wrd Jo-PAYG

MICHAEL W, HYTE G -
Deputy Special Public Defender Tu J
Nevada Bar #10088
330 5. Third Street, Suite #800
Las Vegas, Nevada 85155
{702) 455-6265
T02) 455-6273 fax
-MAIL: rpike@co.clark.nv.us
E-MAIL: mhytef@co.clark.nv.ug
Attorneys for Brian O'Keefe
DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
THE STATE OF NEVADA, CASE NQ. C 250630
BEPT, NO. 17
Plaintiff
V3.
BRIAN O'KEEFE, 1D# 1447732,
Defendant.
RECEIPT OF COPY

DATE OF HEARING: June 10, 2010
TIME OF HEARING: 8:15 a.m.

RECEIPT of a copy of Motion for Judicial Ruling is hereby acknowledged.

Dated: ,ﬁfﬁﬂfé’é

ABCEVED
WAY 2 4 2010

ouesK OF THE COUR!

DISTRICT ATTORNEY'S OFFICE

Las Vegas, NV §9155
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OPl cnen
DAVID ROGER ' o
Clark County District Attorney N
Nevada Bar #002781 My 26 | 2. FR'iG

STEPHANIE A. GRAHAM

Deputy District Attomey 5
Nevada Bar #0010058 o
200 Lewis Avenue i
Las Vegas, Mevada, 89155-2211

{(702) 67 1-2500

Attormey for Plaintiff

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

THE STATE OF NEVADA,

Plaintiff,
Case No, C23063¢

)
-¥5- i
E Dept No.  XVII

BRIAN O'KEEFE, aka,
Brian Kerry O'keefe,

Defendant.

ORDER FOR PRODUCTION OF INMATE
BRIAN O'KEEFE, BAC # 129208

DATE OF HEARING: 06/10/2019
TIME OF HEARING: 8:15 AM

TO:  Dwight W. Neven, Warden, High Desert State Prison

TO: DOUGLAS C. GILLESPIE, Sheriff of Clark County, Nevada

Upon the ex parte application of THE STATE OF NEVADA, Plaintiff, by DAVID
ROGER, District Attorney, through STEPHANIE A. GRAHAM, Deputy District Atiorney,
and good cause appearing therefor,

IT 1S HEREBY ORDERED thal Dwight W. Neven, Warden of High Desent State
Prison shall be, and is, hereby directed 1o produce BRIAN O'KEEFE, Defendant in Case No.
250630, on a charge of MURDER WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON (Felony - NRS

PANPDOCSORORFORDRELTEZI 4801 doe
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Moo = O oLh B L R ma

[ I e o i e B I o o o o T o s
G2 ~1 Oh0 Lh o L B e D M B0 =] T Ln B b kI = e

200.010, 200.030, 193.165) wherein THE STATE QF NEVADA is the Ptaintiff, inasmuch
a5 the said Defendant is currentiy incarcerated in the High Desert State Prison located in
Indizn Springs, Mevada, and his presence wiil be required in Las Vegas, Nevada,
commencing on 06/10/2010, at the hour of 815 o'clock AM and continuing until completion
of the prosecution’s case against the said Defendant,

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that DOUGLAS C. GILLESPIE, Sheriff of Clark
County, Nevada, shall accept and retain custody of the said Defendant in the Clark County
Detention Center, Las Vegas, Nevada, pending completion of said matter in Clark County,
or until the further Order of this Court; or in the alternative shall make all arranpgements for
the transportation of the said Defendant to and from the Nevada Department of Corrections
facility which are necessary to insure the Defendant's appearance in Clark County pending
completion of said matter, or until further Order of this Cougt.

DATED this A [ day of May, 2010,

/WME{_?'H

131

DAVID ROGER
Clark County District Attomey
Nevada Bar #00278]

BY - //L/l/

- L

ATEPHARIE A GRAHAM

Depuly District ;dktmrna}f
Nevada Bar #0G10058

PAWPDOCSWORDRFOR DRER AR 31348010 doc
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SUB Ffi..l’:D

Patricia Palm

Nevada Bar No. 6009 3 \
PALM LAW FIRM, LTD. W23 10 35 gy 11g
1212 Casino Center Boulevard ;

Las Vegas, NV 89104 Q¥ :

(702 3859113 ELER: R o

h
(702) 386-9114 (facsimile) AT

Pairicia.palmiaw@gmail com

Attorney for Defendant

DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

THE STATE OF NEVADA Case No.: C250630

Plaintiff,} Dept. No.: XVII

Y.
BRIAN K. O"KEEFE,
Defendant.
SUBSTITUTION OF ATIORNEY

FATRICIA PALM, of PALM LAW FIRM, LTD,, is hereby substituted as attorney for
the Defendant, BRIAN K. O'KEEFE, in the above-entitled action; in place of and instead of

DAVID M. SCHIECK, CLARK COUNTY SPECIAL PUBLIC DEFENDER.

DATED this 27 day of ;LEHM_Q , 2010.
2 QW

BRIAN K. O'KEEFE, Defendant

nE{;ENED
SN 9.8 200
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K. O’KEEFE.

[ received a true copy of the foregoing SUBSTITUTION OF ATTORNEY,

I hereby consent to the above and foregoing substitution.

DATED this gi day of é iig -— 2010,

. SCHIECK, Bar No. 824
330 S. Third Street, 8* Floor

Las Vegas, NV 89155

(702) 4556273

I hereby accept the above foregoing substitution as attomey for the Defendant, BRIAN|

DATED: gg[uﬂfi/"d
P W FIRM, LTD.

B}"I g___s:?—_.-
PATRICIA PALM
Mevadn Bar No, 6009
1212 Casing Center Boulevard
Las Vegas, NV 89104
{702} 3869113
Attorney for Defendant

RECEIPT OF COPY
4
L the undersigned, acknowledge that on the m}r ) . O 2010,

no103%
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FILED
E'iq;lnlcm PALM nd) 62 i 10
b

State Bar No. 5009
PALM LAW FIRM, LTD. ;

1212 Casino Center Blvd. CLERK GF THE COURT
Las Vegas, NV 89104

Office: (702) 386-5713
Fax: {702) -9114
tricia.pal mail.com
Altornay for ant
DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

STATE OF NEVADA, CASE NO. C250630
DEPT. NO. XV1I
Plaintiff,

V3.
BRIAN K. O'KEEFE,

Defendant.
)
RECEIPT QF QQEY

RECEIPT OF COPY of Defendant Brian K. O'Kesfe's Substitution of Attcrney filed June

29, 2010 is hereby amm?%%&d.
DATED: '.Q i , 2010.

EY'S OFFICE

20 ve. 3" Floor
Las Vegas, NV 89155

RECEIVED
JUN 80 208
QLEMK OF THE OOURT
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PALM LAW FIRM, LTD. w3l 82l
T cerkar B, j
8 S, ]
Phoneﬁg{?uz 366-0113 QE%; ﬂiF- (s

Fax: [?ﬂ?; 89114
Email: ricia.palm mail.com
Aftorneay for ndant. Brian Keefe

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

THE STATE OF NEVADA GASE NO. 250830
DEPT. NO. XVIi
Plamtiff,
V8.
BRIAN K. O'KEEFE, DATE OF HEARING: N/A

TIME OF HEARING: N/A
Defendant

EX PARTE MOTION FOR DEFENSE COSTS

COMES NOW, Deferdant BRIAN K. O’'KEEFE, by and through his aftormey,
PATRICIA PALM, ESQ. of PALM LAW FIRM, LTD., and respectfully submits the
fallowing Motion requesting a finding of indigence and an order for defense costs.

Thiz Motion is based upon the following Points and Authorities, Declaration of

Counsel, papers on file, and any argument as may be heard.

RECEIVED
JUN 8 0 200
OLERX OF THE QOURT
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Dated: June 30, 2010.

By:PALM LAW FIRM, LTD.

Patricia Palm, Esq.
Nevada State Bar No. 6009
1212 Casino Center Boulavard
Las Vegas, NV 89104

(702) 386-9113; (fax) (702) 386-
8114
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BQINTS AND AUTHORITIES
FACTS

On or about November &, 2008, Defendant, Brian O'Keefe, was amested and
booked into the Clark County Detention Center for the crime of murder. Since the timey
of O'Keefe's arrest, he has maintained his innacence and has remained i custody and
without any income.

On November 10, 2008, the Clark County Public Defender was appointed to
fepresent O'Keefe. On November 12, 2008, the Clark County Special Public Defender

was appointed as replacement counsel, dua to & conflict. At all times since, the Clark

County Spacial Public Defender's Office had represented O'Keefe. In doing so, it
necessary to ulilize staff investigators and to retsin several expert withesses o
O'Keefe's bshalf. The case went to jury trial before this Honorable Court in March
2009. The jury raturmed a verdict of guilty on second degree murder with use of
deadly weapon, O'Keefo was sentenced to 10 1o 25 years in prison for the secon
degres murder and 26 t¢ 240 months on the deadly weapon enhancement.
Judgment of Conviction was filed on May 8, 2009, O'Ksefe appealed to the Neva
Supreme Court, and the Court reversed O'Keefa's conviction and remanded the matter
for further proceedings. See O'Keefe v. State, NSC Docket No. 53859, Order (Aprit 7|
2010). The matter is fiow pending retrial before this Court on August 23, 2010,
Because O'Keefe and his family desired that he would have counsel of hig
choosing to act as trial counsal in the retrial of this matter, O'Keefa's family agroed tao
pay the fee to retain this counsel, Patricia Palm, of Palm Law Firm, Ltd.. A Substitution
of Altorney was filed on June 28, 2010. However, O'Keefe's family is unwilking and/or

001039
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unable to pay for any of the other costs associated with his defense, including
associated with retaining an investigator, hifing defense experts, witness travel a
other incidental costs necessary to a proper defense. O'Keefe has compiete
exhausted all of his family’'s goodwill and has na funds avallabla to pay the non-attorne
related costs associated with his defense of this case. |

In order to properly defend this case, it will be necessary to continue to work with
an investigator and to retain expert witnesses, Due to the serious nature of this case,
counsel needs investigative services to aid in serving subpoenas and locating and re-
interviewing potential witnesses. Additionally, as with the prior trial, the netention o{
several expert witnesses will likely be necessary in order to affectively defend the casa,
O'Keefe has no resources to pay for these vital services.

Counsel for O'Keefe has agresd to a discounted fee to represent him through
trial. However, thet fee does not include any costs associated with the defense, 'such ad

investigator, expert witnass, travel or other incidental costs. Accordingly, coun
hereby requests that the Court declare Brian O'Keefa indigent and grant the use
public funds for incidental expenses relatsd to his defense, including the hiring of a
investigator and expert witnesses, as may be approved by the Office of Appointe
Counsel upan appiication of O'Keafe, in order to prepare and present an adequ
defense.

01040
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ISSUE

Brian O’Keefe is indigent, and, therefore, the State is
obligated to pay for his necessary defense costs.

ARGUMENT

The Nevada Supreme Court has praviously determined that even though
defense counsel was privately retained by defendant’s famity, where the deferdant wa%
indigent, the State was legally obtigated to pay for reassonable defense services.
Widdis v, District Court, 114 Nev. 1224, 968 P.2d 1165 (1898).

Pursuant to Widdis, the decision on whether to grant defensa costs tums on twol
factors: first, the defendart must be indigent. in the instant case, Brian O’'Keefe has!
been previously found to be indigent and eligible for the services of the Public Defender
and the Special Public Defender. Brian O'Keefe has bean in custody and unempioyed
since his arrest in this case, and he has no assats.

Second, cosis must be paid by the State when they are reascnable and
necassary to the defense case. In the instant case, it has previously been determined
fo be reasonzble and necessary to use public funds for the defense investigation
performed by the Special Public Defender as well as to retain expert witnesses for trial.
Here, the retention of an investigator is necassary to obtain further specifics regarding

the facts of this case, various witnesses, as well as information regarding th
prasecution’s witnesses. An Investigator will aiso be necessary fo assist with
service of any subpoenas. In addition, witnesses praviously used and determired to
necessary to the defense included experts to address the cfime scere investigation,

e -bcmnrfx
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substance abuse, and medical aspects of the case, The same types of witnesses wilJ
be necessary during the retrial of this matier,
This mation Is timely as it is made immediatety upon the retertion of thig
counsel's sarvices, and is necessary due to O'Keefa's indigence and his upcoming triam
date of August 23, 2010,
WHEREFORE, Defendant, BRIAN K. O'KEEFE, respectiully raquests that the]
Court find Mr. O’Keefe to be indigent and Order that the State cover defense '.Icusts i
this case, subject to the approval by the Office of Appointed Counsel of such costs ay
reasonable and necessary {o the defense of this case. |
DATED: June 30, 2010.
PALM FIRM, LTD.

atricia Paim, Esqg.
Nevada State Bar No. 8009

1212 Casino Center Boulevard

Las Vagas, NV 89104

(702) 386-8113; Fax (702) 386-9114
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CLARATION OF PA PA

Pursuant to NRS 53.048, PATRICIA PALM, baing first duly swom according to
law, deposes and states as foilows:

1. That | am an atforney duly licensed to practice law in the State of Nevada and
have agreed to represent Brian K. O’Keefe as frial counsal in the instant case, ;

2. That, when ! was employed as a Deputy Special Public Defender, | previously
represented Brian O'Keefe during the March 2008 prior tial of the instant matter, along
with my former co-counsel, Assistant Special Public Defender, Randall H. Pike.

3. That Brian O'Keefe has been in custody since his arrest in November, 2008,
and has been treated as eligible for the services of a public defender, and the Bpeciaj
Public Defender's Office had previously retained several experis and used interna
investigators and other resources in its defense of him.

4. That Brian O'Keefe’s family desired to assist him to retain trial sounsel of hi%
choosing, and that they have agreed to pay a nonrefundable retainer to me for attorney
services only, and have done so by making a one-fime nonrefundable paymant for my
services, which was at a discounted rate based upon counsel's previous famitiarity with
the case, and which does not incluga expenses incidental to representation such
investigative services, expert withess or travel fees or other incidentsl costs. |

5. That despite this one-time payment from his famity to Paim Law Firm, Ltd.,
O'Keefe's financial resources have not changed. He remains in custody and has been
unemployed and without any assets to pay for the remaining and necessary costs of hi%
defense of these charges. He has exhausted the goodwilt and/or ability of his family to
assist with payment in support of his defense, and he has no othar resources.

| deciare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.

DATED thflmy of Juna, 2010. -
Pi‘éfélém PALM, Eisq. .

Bar No., 6009

i | 001043
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PALM LAW FIRM, LTD,
1212 Casino Canter Blvd.
Las Vegas, NV 89104
Phone: (702) 386-9113

Fax: szi!rs:l 6-2114
Email: pa i ‘g.ﬁglmla@?mail.ﬁ?
Attomey ndant: Bran Keafe

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

T '-i ,-‘,-r’l_f:‘ﬁ-u..h.‘_
BLERY & 0 ~OURT

%

THE STATE OF NEVADA, CASE NO. C25063D
DEPT. NO. XVii
Plaintiff,

V5.

ORDER GRANTING
BRIAN K. O’'KEEFE, EX PARTE MOTION

FOR DEFENSE CDOSTS
Defandant

This matter having come at the ex parte request of counsel for the Defendant,
Patricia Palm, Esq., of Palm Law Firm, Ltd,, the matter having been fully reviewsd, and
good cause appearing therefar, Brian K. O'Keafe is determined to be indigent, and

IT IS HEREBY CRDERED that the State of Nevada, County of Clark, provi
funding for the investigation and defense of this case, inclyding investigative, expe
witness, and other incidental costs, subject to the appraval of the Qffice of Appecint
Counsel of such costs as reascnable and necessary to the effective defanse of

DEPT. 170N
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of Defendant in this matter.

DATED this 22 day of June, 2010,

PATRICIA PALM, ESQ.
PALM LAW FIRM, LTD.
1212 Casing Center Bivd.
Las Veegas, NV 85104
Aftorney for Dafendant

%4 P

DISTRICT COURT JUDGE 4%

01745
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| PAVID M. SCHIECK .
2| SPECIAL PUBLIC DEFENDER fio 6D
Nevada Bar No. 0824 T
k! EANDALLSH, F"II'(E=r 5 ;
sgistant Special Public Defender - 4
4 | Nevada Bar No. 1940 el 3 aaperio
MICHAEL W. HYTE
5{ Deputy Special Public Defender 9
Nevada Bar No, 10088 CLER s
6| 330 S. Third Strest, : ' PURT
Las Vegas, Nevada 89155-2318
7 02) 455-5265
702) 455-6273 fax
8 || rpike@co.clark nv.us
mhytei@co.clark.nv.us
9 || Attorneys for O'KEEFE
10
DISTRICT COURT
11
i CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
2
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THE STATE OF NEVADA, } CASE NC. C 250830
14 g DEPT NO. XVII
Plaintiff,
15
Vs,
i6
BRIAN O'KEEFE #1447732,
17
8. Defendant. }
19
20 RECEIR IL
21 I
RECEIPT of the entire Brian O'Keefe file is hereby acknowiedged.
22
23 Dated: mf/i‘a! tQ
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m 25 1212 Casino Center Bivd.
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BRI e -
Phone: (702} 386-9113 %%

Fax (702) 386-9114
P Cl

Email: Patn ?.uglglawggmail.mm
Attomney for Brian

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

STATE OF NEVADA, CASE NO: C250830
Plaintiff, BEPT NO. Xwi
V8. DATE: ~mmoeem =~~~
BRIAN K. O'KEEFE, TIME: E:E?m #opan

S B

NOTICE OF MOTION AND MOTION BY DEFENDANT O'KEEFE TO PRECLUDE THE
STATE FROM INTRODUCING AT TRIAL OTHER ACT OR CHARACTER EVIDENCE
AND OTHER EVIDENCE WHICH IS UNFAIRLY PREJUDICIAL OR WOULD VIOLATE!

HiS CONSTITUTIONAL RIGHTS

COMES NOW Defendart, Brian K O'Keefe, by and through his attorney, Patriciﬂ
Patm of Palm Law Firm, Ltd., and hereby moves this Honorable Court for an order
pracluding the State from introducing other act or character evidence and other
evidence which is unfairly prejudicial or would vialate his constitutional rights,

This Motion is made and based upon the record in this case, incuding the papersl

and pleadings on file herein, the Constitutions of the United States and the State of
i

it
i
it

i RECEIVED

JUL 21 2010
CLER OF THE COURT

nolL047
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Nevadz, the points and authorities set forth below, and any argument of counsel at rhq
time of the hearing on this Mation.
Dated this 21st day of July, 2010,
PALM LAW FIRM, LTD.

atricia Palm, Bar No. 8009

1212 Casino Center Bivdl.

Las Vegas, NV 84104

Phone: (702} 386-9113

Fax: (702) 366-9114

Altorney for Defendant O'Keefo

NOTICE OF MOTION

TO: STATE OF NEVADA, Plaintift and
TO:  DAVID ROGER, District Attorney, Attormey for Plaintiff

YOU WILL PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the undersigned will bring on the a
and foregoing MOTION BY DEFENDANT O'KEEFE TO PRECLUDE THE STA
FROM INTRODUCING AT TRIAL OTHER ACT OR CHARACTER EVIDENCE AN
OTHER EVIDENCE WHICH IS UNFAIRLY PREJUDICIAL OR WOULD VIOLATE HI

TITUTIONAL RIGHTS on the ﬁ day of 2010, at the hour ol
.M., in Depariment No. XVIE of the abave-entitled Court, or as soon thareafter as
counsel may be heard.

Sr
DATED this=¢/ “day of July, 2010,
PALM LAW FIRM, LTD.

: ALM
Nevada Bar No. 009
1212 Casino Center Blvd.
Las Vagas, NV 89104
02) 3889113
omay for Defendant O'Kaefe

ﬂ(r1048
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T UTH [ES

The State cherged Defendant Brian K. O'Kefi with murder with use of'a dead!
weapon. He entered a plea of not guilty and nvoked his ight to & speedy trial, - T
State filed a motion to admit evidence of other crimes, which O'Kesfs appoesed Th
Court ruled that the State could infroduce evidenice of threats to tha afleged wdl
Victoria Whitmarsh that witness Cheryl Moris claims were made by DI{eafe and hi
damnnatrattm of proficiency at kiling with knives, which Moris nlanrns tn hav
witnessed. The Court further ruted that the State could introduce t:arhﬁed CDPIEB
O'Kesfe's prior Judgment of Conviction for felony domestic battery
Whitmarsh. Further, if O'Keefe testified, then the State could | inguire into his: nlher priur
felony convictions. Pursuant to the Court's ruling on his prior Judgmenits of Cnnwctmn
the State is permitied fo introduce only the datails of when O'Keefs was convicted, Irj
which jurisdiction, and the name of the offenses, and with the felony domestic batiery,
the fact that Whitmarsh had testified against him in thaf case. 3/18/09 TT E-iﬂ o

The instant case was tried before this Heonorabla Court beglnmnn Man:h 186,
2009. After five days of tral, on March 20, 2009, the jury retumed a verd'ictﬁndm
O'Kesfe guilty of second degree murder with use of a deadly weapon. anhy 52009
this Court sentenced O'Kesfa to 10 to 25 years for sacond-dugraa"rﬁﬁrda:r":ﬁﬁd
cansecutive 86 to 240 months (8 to 20 years) on the deadly WwEapon anhancemanl

O'Kesfe timely appealed o the Nevada Supreme Court. After bnaﬁng Iha Cnu
reversed O'Keafe's conviction, agreeing with him that the district court afred by gwin
the State’s proposed instruction on second-degree murder because it sat fnrth 8
altarnative theory of second-degree murder the charging document did nut anage thi
aitemate theory, and no evidence supported this theory." The Cauﬂ expimned _
State’s charging document did not allege that O'Keofe killed the victim whila he ‘was
committing an unlawful act and the evidence presented at tial did. not suppﬁrt thi
theory of second-degree murder.” O'Kegele v. State, NSC Docket No. 53559 Grdartj

3 . poinag




